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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Tenneco Automotive India Private
Limited ('the Company'), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flow and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the standalone financial statements, including material accounting policy information and ather
explanatory information.

. Inour opinion and to the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind
AS'") specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March 2025, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's Report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion an the standalone financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont'd)

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears o be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repart in this

regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accardance with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going caoncem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for averseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism threughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
refarence to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;
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Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont'd)

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aftention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

\We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not

applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of
the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 187(16) is not applicable.

12, As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central

13.

Gavernment of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Eurther to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial
statements;

b) Except for the matters stated in paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books. Further, the back-up of the books of accounts and other books and papers of the Company
maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in India, on a
daily basis;

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
accolnt;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appoinied as
a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and ather matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph 13{b) above on reporting under seclion 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph
13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended);

Chartared Aceountants




Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont'd)

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinian; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
infarmation and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company, as detailed in note 41 io the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2025,

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025;

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025

iv. a, The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
nate 47(m) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have bean advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securiies premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed In
note 47(n) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or atherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on benalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the managemant
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

' The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025
and until the date of this audit report is in compliance with section 123 of the Act.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont'd)

vi. As stated in Note 48 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included
test checks, the Campany, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2024, has used
an accounting software SAP ERP for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature was not enabled
at database level for accounting software to log any direct data changes. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with in respect of the accounting software where such feature is enabled. Furthermore, the
audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention where audit trail is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
m's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

rship No.: 507428

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 June 2025
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2025.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-
of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment,
capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets under which the assets are
physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(i){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment including right-of-use
assets and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year, except for goods-in-transit and inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and where discrepancies of 10% or
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory noticed on physical verification as compared to book
records have been properly dealt with in the books of account. In respect of inventory lying with third
parties, these have substantially been confirmed by the third parties and in respect of goods-in-transit,
these have been confirmed from corresponding receipt and/or dispatch inventory records.

(b) As disclosed in Note 47(d) to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
aworking capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores, by banks. Pursuant to the terms of the sanction letters,
the Company is not required to file any quarterly return or statement with such banks or financial
institutions.

(i) The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during the year. Further, the Company
has made investments in a company during the year, in respect of which:

{(a) The Company has not provided any loans or provided any advances in the nature of loans,
or guarantee, or security to any other entity during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clauses 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

—__ (b) The Company has not provided any guarantee or given any security or granted any loans
~Ui~ or advances in the nature of loans during the year. However, the Company has made an
“O%  investment in one entity amounting to Rs. 3.10 million (year-end balance Rs. 3.10 million)
! and in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, such
.-J- . fl investments made are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2025.

(¢) The Company does not have any outstanding loans and advances in the nature of loans at
the beginning of the current year nor has granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii){e) and
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.,

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/ services/ business activities. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vil) () In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the
Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute except for the following:

Name of the | Nature of Gross Amount paid | Period to Forum where
statute dues Amount under which the | dispute is pending
(Z millions) Protest amount
(¥ millions) relates

Income Tax Income 10.00 -| 2003-2004 | High Court of India

Act. 1961 Tax

Income Tax Income 2.54 - | 2004-2005 | High Court of India

Act, 1961 Tax

Income Tax Income 3.85 -| 2004-2005 | Commissioner of

Act, 1961 Tax Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Tax Income 528 41 2005-2006 | Commissioner of

Act, 1961 Tax Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Tax Income 0.34 - | 2006-2007 | Income Tax Appellate

Act, 1861 Tax Tribunal

Income Tax Income 7.80 -| 2007-2008 | Commissioner of

Act, 1961 Tax Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Tax Income 149.07 - | 2008-2009 | Commissioner of

Act, 1961 Tax Income Tax
{Appeals)

Income Tax Income 10.91 -| 2008-2010 | Transfer Pricing

Act, 1961 Tax Officer

Chartered Accountantis
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph
members of Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited on the standalon

year ended 31 March 2025.

12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
e financial statements for the

Name of the Nature of Gross Amount paid | Period to | Forum where
statute dues Amount under which the | dispute is pending
(% millions) Protest amount
(% millions) relates
Income Tax Income 0.80 - | 2009-2010 | Deputy
Act, 1961 Tax Commissioner of
Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Income 40.51 - | 2009-2010 | Commissioner of
Act, 1861 Tax Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Income 13.37 - | 2010-2011 | Transfer Pricing
Act, 1961 Tax Officer
Income Tax Income 47,89 -| 2010-2011 | Deputy
Act, 1961 Tax Commissioner of
Income Tax
{Appeals)
Income Tax Income 520 -1 2011-2012 | Transfer Pricing
Act, 1961 Tax Officer
Income Tax Income 224 .44 -| 2017-2018 | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Tax Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Income 1.08 -| 2020-21 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Tax Income Tax
(Appeals)
Tamil Nadu Sales Tax 25.71 - | 1990-1991, | Commercial Tax
General Sales 1992-1993, | Officer, Hosur
Tax Act, 1959 1993-1994,
1996-1997,
and
1999-2000
Goods and Goods 1.84 -| 2017-2018 | Deputy
Services Tax and Commissioner
Act, 2017 Services
Tax
Goods and Goods 6.14 -| 2018-2019 | Deputy
Services Tax and Commissioner
Act, 2017 Services
Tax
Goods and Goods 6.65 0.32 | 2019-2020 | Deputy
Services Tax and Commissioner
Act, 2017 Services
Tax
Customs Act, Customs 0.13 -| 1987-1988 | Assistant
1962 Duty Commissioner of
Central Excise, Hosur
Customs Act, Customs 19,97 1.22 2008 Commissioner of
R 1962 Duty Customs
{07, | Customs Act, Customs 14.12 0.82 [ 2007-2008 | Commissioner of
e 1962 Duty Customs
Y-} Customs Act, Customs 13.87 - | 2021-2022 | Commissioner of
|| 1962 Duty Customs
/< '{ Customs Act, Customs 0.08 - | 2024-2025 | Commissioner of
/| 1982 Duty Customs
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2025.

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

{ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company does not have
any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and as stated in note 50, the Company has
received whistle blower complaints during the year, which have been considered by us while
determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

(xily ~ The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiil)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details
of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements etc,, as
required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an
internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required under
the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period
under audit.

{(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company.

Charlered Accountants
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2025.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
does not have any CIC.

(xvil) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable o the Company.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information in the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We. however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent
amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing
project as at the end of the financial year, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xxi)  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo.: 001076N/NS00013

Ankit Mehra

bership No.: 507429
UDIN: 25507429BMIXGA4398

Place; Gurugram
Date: 26 June 2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Tenneco Automotive
India Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’).

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Tenneco Automotive India Private
Limited (‘the company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountant of India (‘ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or erraor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, of disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements. R

Chartered Accountants




Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Tenneco Automotive
India Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20256 (cont'd)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

7 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial

8.

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Partner
bership No.: 507428
UDIN: 255074289BMIXGA4398

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 June 2025

Chartered Accountanis



Tenneen Awtomaotive Indin Frivate Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as on 31 March 2025
F AN geeviessoris g & Afuffnons, b obfersse stavedt

Particulars Nules Amuount 8y 8l Amenint as at
I Mar 2025 A1 March 224
ASSETS
Nomecurreni iy
Propeny, plant and equipment i 2000 Sy 1IKT T8
Uapital work-in-progress ] 16302 11K 30
Right-of-use pssets k] 1768 177 59
Intangible avsels 4 S60 599
Financial nssets
(4} Ivestinents 4 E 256792
(i Loany fr an 25K
iy {ther Fnoncial ossels v LR ETITLS N
Delerred tax assets (net) ¥ B4R 4115
Income tax assels inet) L 16T 17287
Other non-cument asmels fu 4171 57,06
Totnl non-current nasels 11T EASGD
Currenl assels
Inventmics i RA a3 #2370
Financial nssets
(1 Trade teceivables 12 2R 205803
(i) Cash and cash equivalents [RIEY] BT 0% W56 S0
{4iih Bank halanees other than cash and cash equivalents 13ih) i Al 040
1) Lisans f R L )
v Othe linsncinl nsets ? LY ) 514
Other cument nssets 14 hl 22 133 diey
Tutal current assels excluding sssets classified as held for sale 474084 196231
Aty clasnilied as held for sale M K70 %
Total current assels 4,749,004 396231
Tuial nasris 15,756.64 9316491
EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
Equity
Equity share cypatal 15 1.0 1 0y
Uhther equity In Jn 232 ap 453 18
“Toial equity 10,223,90 452515
Liabilities
Non-eurrent lahilitles
Financial lokilinics
| eose habilities 17 1428 M52
Privisions 1% 4104 2640
Unher son-current linbilities 19 M43 1766
Total pon-current labilities 19768 138,56
Current liabilities
Financial liohilities
) euse labilities 17 bt I+ It 36
1t Vendor ball finoneing 0 5073 44 dR0 32
iniiy Trade pavables
- ol wtstsinading dues of micro enterprises and small enterprses # i) KEd A8 FO8 40
- total owtstanding dues of ereditors oilier than micm enterprises and small enlérprises 1| 2 b 4 260307
1w ) Oher financial Hablitics 12 [ETIES: ) e
Oitkier current liabilities n [EAR "] REERE]
i isqekne 18 RUR N 25450
et tax labilitses (nety N K9 W 3o
Total currend labilivies exchid g labilithes relating 1o sssels beld Tor sale £126.00 4,563,270
Liabilines relating to ossets clussified as held fior sale 34 X7 =
Tutal current Habilities 5 215 ¥ 4,563,20
Total liabilities 5483274 4, 791,74
Total equity and Habilities L5756,64 931691
The ahove standalone halance shieet should be read in conjunction with the sccompanying nofes
This is the standalone balance sheet referred fo i our repert of even dats.
Iker Chundiok & Co LLP SN ST T aimid i behall of W Board of Direciog,

Tenneen Automotive Indin Private Limited

R Sabramaniam Praveen humar Singh
Mamaging Director Dipestor
srship Mumiber SU7429 I3 (BS540 1NN, ORABEY
Tace: ﬂgwm Place: Pune Plice: Pune
Dates 20 Jume M35 Davtes 26 Jume 2028 Date: 26 June 2025

] e
fligo N
Priva J:tlr Hr-
Conpeiny Sevietan
Plaewr Mane

Dates 26 June 2025




Tenneeo Automotive India Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Frofit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2005

f_-”ﬂ samromnadn i & AR i, nleas rﬂ.ﬁ.‘lhhr stunbenall

Particulars R For the year ended Faor the year ended
M March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revotiue Tiom operatings b 2RI 0 18.645.05
Uither mcome 26 4237 4374
Totnl income 21,1239 1'L188.79
Eapenses
Cost of matenals consumed b (ERETE 12,724, 14
Change in inventories of fimished poods and work-in-progress. b ] (20,374 145.27
Frphoyee benefits expense P 1.344 B 120811
Finance ¢osis 1] 49.77 40,19
Diepreciation and amortisiion expense M MRS 24 R L]
hher expenses n 2448 80 3 8h2 85
Total expenscs 18,564,23 1741532
Profit before excepiionnl items and tay 1,5589,u% 1.773.47
Exceptional item i 5 710 5] -
Profit before tay R.193.56 117347
Income ths expense
= Uwrrent fay 33 144150 13307
« Tax pertaining o eatler years 13 hay 440
- Deferred 1y 13 (334 545
Total tay exprase 141498 342,92
Prafit for the vear HATH.SH 1 AJ0,55
her ecomprehensive income fur the year
Ttems that will nol be reclassified 1o profil or loss
« Reaneasurements of e past empliyment defined benelin abligations s (gain) Ain ks 19 3
= Ineaine tax elfect {1025 s
Toml other comprehensive incame for the year, net of iy (30,423 700
Tatal eomprehensive ineome for the year (LN 143755
Ewrnings per cguity shave (of € 10 each)
Bashe amd dluted carmings per share (2} H R, THS HO 14,305.50

The above staadalone statement of profin and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompany iy noles

This is the standalone statement ol profit and loss refenrsd 1o in our repor of even dale

For Walker Chandiok & C'o LLP
-hartered Accountanis
Registralapn Mumber O 1OToN NSOMI 3

Abership Numbser S07420
e Crumigeram
Dale: 26 June 2025

Fanr anid on behal §of the Faoand of Dinectoes
Tenmecn Autamotive India Private Limited

Cﬁdmmm;_

RO Subramaniam
Managing Direcio
1 6844540
Place: Pune

Date: 26 June 2028

flia Niw
Mot
Prikh Nimje
Company Secretany
Pluce: Pune
Diate: 26 Jume 202§

Praveen Kumar Singh
Dhirecom
(RTERTE ANET

Pliger Pune

Dites 26 June 2028



Teanecn Automothve India Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cush Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2028

Al aworrts iy & AT, podeas st e suiredly

Particulars Far the year ended Fur the year ended
3 March 218 31 March 2024
Cash Mow Troam operating activities
ootk before tas K2R S0 1.7713.47
A justments for:
Dlepeociatios snl anostisaion expenie LR LT
Wiatten-hack proadsdion fist doubitfial advmnces to supplics (5404 1M
Promasbon foe wiivandy expenses (R [ERE]
Pravisbmn for exprected creidi loss b1} 12 %
Interest incomie i fved deposits with banks {70} 1§54
Interest inconve from Ginanctal assels 1y 1134
Iterest inconie fom fncomm ey sl LRI -
1 intility nos longer requined wntten-back (B2 -
Fimange cost wT N L
Laws on disposal of property. plant i equdpment 1139 [i%}3
Untcalised forelgn exchange hess 440 519
Ihvidend fincoine (204 14y 1497 54y
Exeephonial dem (gaim en sale of subsidiary | 15,73 511 .
Ojpeerating profll befare workbog capital changes 3,730,583 16,41
Misvemenis in working capital
(e rease Pdeorcase b asadts
= tride receivables 11041 3% [ LEEL
= imvieriltien 2704 (RN [T}
= other currem and mon-current Anancial assens (k1] I i
- cuirrent and nof-cirrent Joans ol [T
= other Cusvent mwd ROR-CUnET avets RRTLL 13240
Increasel{decrease) in labilities
= trdde pavables 26T 4 sn
= current and noR-EurTen provishons 1A TR) (Bl 2k
= oiler cumrent thmancial Babilmies meluding vendor b Bnancing 13 144 6
= ofher cumment nnd non-current Dabileics 89 97} _1_?3?_
Cash generated from operations past warking capital changes [EITEY] B
Incvame taxes poand (net | [EINEAT (307 i)
Nt canh inflow from epserating sctivities (A) [T 1,639.41
Cash Nows frem nvesting astivities;
Pugchase of property, plant and euipme (mchiding chpstal work-in progress 290 46) (R
Proceals fioan sale of property. plani sl equipoien (E L nEs
Drividend reveived foom sbiidingy compeamy g w 447 A0
Purchase of investmen 1 m .
Mtoverment in other hank balances (et LRI
Inerest severved .21 35400
Nt cash inflon Grom investing activities (8) [ 19408
sy Mows fram Gnancing activities:
Repavment of slorl fersin Borron bivgs . 18 0y
Repayment of bease habiliies (248 {340,044
Dividend paid (1 14 41) {2653 M)
et gash auiflow from Anancing sclivities (0} (1,173.87) (168106}
Net decrease In cash and cash equivabents | ALY (329.45) (B4R 20
Cash and cash equay alents ai the bepinning of ihe Gnancial vea _ush &0 1804 T0
Cash and cash cquivabents sl end of the vear BRI0s 950,50
Revonviffation of cash amd cask equivaleat ms pee the stateswent of coah flows:
Cawhy and cash exuivalents as por above comprise of the fullowing
Casl aid cah w\ﬂmh i3 Ll ] RAUR]
HMAnCes per sIATemrend ol cash aws [l 1] %

Phe absvye standibisne statenant of cashy Baws shaubl be end in conjunetion with the ascompanuing nales

This it stambalone statennent ol candi Bivds pelered 1o i our repeon of even dme

Phe Standalone saterbeni of cash Dows have been pregaced wnder the indurect imetiod os st ou i Ind A% 7, Saatement of Cash Flows'

QA

Refer note 14¢) for movement of Tiabilities ariving from Hmn;[l;-q'_lj‘lliﬁﬁ
(72,

Fowr and on behalf of the Board of Darecmes
Tenneen Autamitive Inidla Privale Limiied

R.C.Subramaniam

Aanagang Directol

DIN: B4 510

Flace: Pune

Date: 36 Juoe 2028
flgo W

Fd;gsimj:u‘r-

Comapaty Secretiny

PMace: Puse

Date: 26 June 2024

Wt

Prwveen Kumar Singh
Dhireciog

DI (R EIARY

Place: Pune

Thater 206 lune Mi23
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Tennecn Auwtomative India Privaie Limdied
Mot o the Standalong Finamolal Statements for the vear ended 31 March 1025
LA msenmnts o & S fliaunn sondins bl rwing akre )

[

Carparate Informaiion

Tenneoa Aupomonve Indin Private Limitad (the Company’) was incorpoiabed os o Prvate Dioted Conapang on 13 Janosy 190 undes the Conpanies Act,
194, The Cimmpamy as fommed by Tenngen LLC. VSA (fomerly, Tenneao lae, 178 A0 (the cutret intennedite holBing compang ) o manafactune. diaribote
snd o orherwise deal in aroniibile parts ned compongnts and iher related activities incloding esaldishment of 8 compechansive tesearch and devclpment
centre, Pursamt to a Scheme of amalgamstion ms pet the otder of  Honoarable Madras High Count dated 9 July 2000, Tenneco BE Indla Povaie Limiied
(TRCIPLY, Tenneco Gxluanst Dndia Private Linied (TEPLL Tenneco lndin Engingering and Shored Services Privare Limited { TIESS) amd Renowned Auto
Produacts s Private Linabied (RAPSS wore amalpamated with the Conpany effestive from Apal | 2008 The Comspany be | am ihie flisture of
shock abaarbers and smits The Comgiany’s reglatered office s bocated a1 122, Sipeat ldustrial Comples, o, Tannd Nada, lada, 635120

Tharimg the yene, the Cwmpany d share swap g i vide alaied 15 Mosch 2005, amangsd the cosiw bile holding company, Temnevo Miaritias Hhildings
Fimitesl Tenneco Mauritins Limibied sl Tenneen Chean Adr bndia Linabied (formerdy known as Tennecn Clean Al binlin Privaie | bmied) 1 Clean Aa" 0
pirsusnd fo which W equity slires of the Compuy hiving 8 (e value of INR 10 (Indion Bupees Ten) each mre to be msmaferred by Tenneco hlanritio
Halidimgs §imited 1o Clean Ar, and vemalning 7090 (Seven Thowsand Che Dhandred and Ninety Sivg equity shares of the Conpany having o foee value of INK
10 (b Bupees Tond cuch ate i be transfered by Tenneco Maurstiae Limited 1o Clean At As o vesult of these wansfers, Clean Al Becomigs the immediare

Holdsng Campang of the Cosripany

1 Summary of maberial aecounting palicy information

L1 Hasks of Preparation
The inl of the y have begn prepased in accondance with Indian Accounting Svandueds Cind AS) as notificd by Minbsey of Compotate
Alfsies prrsusnt 1o secthon 133 of the Companies Act 2008 ¢ the Act’) read with Compamies (Inban Ace ¢ Stamdarch) Rules. 3008 gy gmicnded fom
tiime o time. Prosentation requitements of Diviiim 1 of Schedule 11 10 the Companies Act 2005 “as amendal”. as applicable v the Standalone Financial
Statemnts have haon fisllowed
The finameil vatements have beon prepaied on secnial and gaing doncem hasls The accounting policies are applicd consdently to all the periods presented
in the financial siasemonts. The finaacial sataments hase been prepared on a Bistoncal cost basde exdept for the following assets and labilities whach have
heen mecasumedd at fain value
+ Cgitain Nuancial awsets sid laahilities ingaured ai faw valug (1eler oo g policy separdany Gianeal sl
» Delbmed hemefit plans - plan asscts icarared st Tut valie

LY Maierial pcoouniing polivies

a)  Current sersis mwv-current dlasification
Fasedd on the time invodyed between the acquisition of muels R procesing ond theis realisation in caih ond cadh equivalonts the Comgany hay identified
welve mustiths ds its opersting cy<le fon detenining coment and nin-cument classification of ssscts and lishihites in the halanee theel

b Progerty, plant and equlpmeat

eeomaritivm annd priiod mivenisingn

roperty, plant andd equipment e vated o thein co ol acquisition. The cost comprises (he purchase price, bawmying aost (7 capitolisstion eriteria mre met)
und am, atpibmtabile costs of bringing e asset to Ws working condifion for it intended nse, Any tade discount e pelates ane dedicted in mriving at the
purchase price. Subsequent costs are included i the aset’s camying amount o tesognised as @ separste assel, as appoopeiate. anly when i b prohatibe that
Tt o ¢ b fits attnibutalle 1o such wab cout avvociared with the fem will flow o the Compary . AL other repais ad maintennnee casts me
reengnbsd i staterment of profit of bivs as incurred In case an e of propenty, plant and eqapnicat (s scquired on defered poymem basds, interest expumies
ineluded in deferred payiment by recnpnived s interest expense ind not inclided in cou ol Rasat

Ny nt ecatviraner flepes e sl i Nved
[Dhepreeiation an propenty, plan and equipment is proyided on ke ssraighs-line method presenbed under Schedule 1 of the Act. computed o the has of wielisl

Jives praseribed under Schedule 1 of ihe Aet o technical gval of the propermy. pla and exulp I the widd v rechmical expen which

wre mentioned below
. Manageavent entimated Usefial | Vseful Life as per sehedale 1
? Life fin years) [in years)

Harildings (on beasehold land)

Factory buldinges Ty L1
Caber than fatory buildings® L] L]
Fetioes, wells e wells® a 3
Tomporan, structures anid walls* L 3

Plant and machinery:
a1 anil Machingry other than incess plamt i 1
| entimwons process plant® 24 »
i mhers (B 1%
LRELTUEE N 35 L
(fice equipments® Lin 1
Farmiture and fistuies 10 1

¥ & X

* e aselul lives have oen desermined based on techiicnl exaluation dome by the ianapement’s ¢ upert which & B Fom those speciliad by Schedule 1o e
Cormpanies Act, 2003, i orcder 1 relleet the ainial wape of the scery

The vesidual valaes, usaful Bves and method of depreciation are reviewed o each Ginancial sear end sl adpnted prospectively I apprapriat

Where, dunng nny Ginancial year, amy addiibon han been made jo oy psset. or where oy asset has been sold. docarded. demalished o destioved (a8 sgmilican
components teplaced; deprecintion on soch woaets is eoleulated om o pro tata basis ax individoal soets with ypecific usefil e oo e auoth of such sddinon
wor, it e e tinay Die, g G Dt il oe il such avaet s been sald. discarded, demalished o destiaged o replaved

I povvegwidioig

A e of progeny, plan and il et il is de-recopnised upon disposs] or whien o Taesee econmmis Benelits ne
expecied (haim its use or disposal Any goan of Ioes arising on dececognition of the assel (calonlabed as the diffesence between the net disposal proceeds nmd
thy canvying spount of the seet) 14 included in the income statemant when the auet is devecapnised

{1han apuis i b B jesicnrnally foi Muandy




Fenmecn Sufamtive India Private Linvited
Nistes to thee Standalone Financial Statements for ibe year ended 31 March 2025
EA crpspaits am & Afsblires pdican sirfioma v sl

wl

d

Tvtanpilde assels

Mewngimprvw gd gl mwanrvencand

Inmiamgihle assers acquired separately sre meavisred on il tecopniten o cout. Falloadng initial recopmition. intangible sty are camied af cont o any
e s socummlared npammen Towes, i any.

Mlﬂ.lhﬂl‘ AR PR (iR AR R L

AN intangable assets are pocounted for uaing e cost model wherehy capialised coas are amortised on i diaight-dine Bisis over thew edmated wsefil bves
The estuiviated sivefal Wle of an identiliable mangibe asset bs hosed on & member of facions inclading the eifects of vhwlescene. demanil competition. amd
wther ecomomie Mctoes (sach me the stsldling of the mdasiey, and known technological sdvancesh md the level of nuinienance espanditures requined 1o obiaing
thie awpected litane cash Mo G the et Bestdunl yalogs and wsefn] Hoes ane revievied o each seponting dabe, The cont of caplidlisod software s
mimertised oaer 8 period b the pange of Lb yesrs fiom the date of its scquisition

The smortisation penisd and the amonksation methis) G ivtangible assets are reviewed mt least o the eml of each repating period Changes in the expeaed
useflal 1ife on the expected patteni of comamption of e economic benefit, gmbadicd i e aset are convidered 1o modify the amrtisation perfod of
miethodl. s oppropriate. and sre neated ms changes in sccomming emmaies

heavs eagtinatinu

Ciadns or Powses amising Bom derecmg af an thile ansch are micassred as e dieranee Bt oot the nel dispereal proceeds sl the canying st of
the aveet and are revogmmed in the statemant of poofin on o when the assgl s dergoogmiwd

Irmpad et o s onaane il assis

For impasrment assessmand parposcs. assets ane groaped o the lowes levels for which ihore are largely independant cady inflons (cah pencrating asitsy As &
result, e nasets are tested kb ddually for imparrment and somse arc teded ot cabspencrating unit levid

The Company assesses 8) each halange sheet date whetber thete is aen indication that an aseet may be impainead 10 a0y such idication esrste the Campany
extimades the recoverable amound of the aoet 1 such reconeralile amount o the piset of the recoverahils ol the vash ing umit b wlich the aset
Iclonygs 15 bess tham its camying amount, the camying sinound is feduced to it recoverable amoist The reduction b treited as an impaimment los ond i
ecopndred in the satemnent of profil and loss [0 a0 the halance sheet date, there is an indication that a previcasly assesed impainment Boss o longer existy
ihan the recorverabl NN d and the assel b8 ellecied o the reconenble amonnt sabject to o masinun of depreciated hisorical cost
Tampairment losses previoiudy revopnised sre sccondingly veversed in the statemant of profit and low

To determing valug-in-use, managament estimoates expected future cash Nows from each cashegenersiing wmit and + o suilable d ride wm onder
ta calgulate the present vabue of thine cash Mows. The datn wsed Ra i | bestimg bires wre divecily hinked o the Company s lodest appiosed
Isaidger. admaed as necessony to exclude the effiects of futiee re=organiiamions nnd assel enhancements Diawount Tt are determined individunlly for cach
ensh-geneiating unit and reflect cument market nsscument of the time valoe of meney and sodtspecific vish fctns

I jen arie atitend mt Dosver o eosd o met realisable valse The cost in respect o the various teims of invenion by compuabed os nade
o materials. stones oo spares|Lovwer of ¢osl amd net reabisable value Cost represnts purchase price aml other dineay costs amd s deteomined on o
i wing welghted average enst basis. However, materials amd other itoms helid for ase o the production of imemtones mne
writen don Bebios comt 17 the finidiod prodaces inowhich they will b ineorporated e expected fionhe solid ut o abo
ol
[Cinarcds i frmiieit ane vabied ot cose

Woerrheinprogress Fmnished Coods [Lovwer off gost and et realisable salue Caat for this parpose inclisdes material labour snd appespriate allscation off
o erheaids Cost b determined on a weiphied aerapge haos

et realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ondinary course of business less mny applicable selling evpetnes Provision for edaalescende and sl

memi iy tmventory is made haced o gentvenil ‘s beat estimates of net realisable value of such inventones

The amount of any wite-diwn of inventanes fo et sealisable value and all besses of imyemones is secognized as an expense in the period the wiltedawn o

b ccmrn. The amant of any reversal of any wiite-down of nyentories. ansing fiom an increase in ot realisable valug, is recognized ss & reduciion in the
o im s recogmneed me an expense in the period in which the reversal ascurs

Farelgn currency translafion

Fvaim il avind pecacitabion ey

The fnamcial siatemenis ae prevented in fndian Ropees (INE or ® ) end sre mounded o oo decional places of lacs, whach bs alw the Coinpans s finstional
cungnsy

Trsmenanciamm amsd Bafain v

Transactions in forelpn curmenates ane initially reconded by the Company 3t il fasctonal comney sped dates ot the date the Bamsaction first qualifies fior

ecgEninion

Mangtary assets amd habilities demominated in feign curencivs are manslated st the functivaal cumency spol rates of exchange 01 the reponing dare

Foachange differencos artamg on seitbermend of franslation of monetary fems a o reprrting date sre recoprmived ks statenment of profit amd liss

Seoutmmonetany e thal are seaurad i e of histerical cont in o facign cutreney are iransdided using the eschange tales ot the dafes of the inilial

AR

Non-manetan ihess measrad a0 Gar valie in 8 foregen cumency are manadated wong the exchange rates of the date when the fair value is detenmined The gain

e bows arvaamge on sranslation of nonanonctary ilems measured o Guir valie is treated in fine with the recopnitivn of the pain o liss om the change in fir valise

of the brem (1¢,, transbation dillerences on iema whise falr value poin of liss i recopnised in sther comprehensive income ('OCT) or profit on bos ae ala
gnised in 00T on vatement of profin and buss. vespectively)

AT aguanee B Bawm imicummematfy Joie Rlhanky
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Right-of-pe avnets sl lease labdlities

Ava bewser

e vaganty o gl

The ['un;nu‘t‘q Fensed s clavses Fimnib‘cﬂniu af leases i lond and building The Company asseses whetbien o contiaet contaiin a lease. s hnqiim
of & contract A conliact 18, of comtaina, 8 leass i the compacy conveys the sight 1o comrol the wer of s idennfied aesct Bir 8 perisd of tiame I esebange T
eomabderation, To asess whether @ coniraet conveys e vight to comtrsd e use of an idenn Bl issel. e Uompany sseoes wheiher (1) the dontie invidves
ihe wse o an ddentified assel i the Company has sisbsiantially oll of the ecommmic benedits from use of the asiel thioigh the period of the lease snd (i) ihe
Compamy s the sight v diseey the wse of the necet

Matwvagaantienns il i il mernivevaneand vl vaglifoasf g aver

AL e dabe of comimgacamient of the lease, the Uomijany recnjiiaes o gt af-mse asset © ROV and i comespondany loise habiling for all lease anampments
T ik b o lewsee, exept Fiot leases with o feon of twelve months of bess (dhor=term feases) and bow valoe leaves For these dwat-term and low value
Teases. the Conpany recopnizes the lease payments as on opeesting exponse on o arphe-line hasicomen the renm of the beaw

Cntain bease armngoments inglude options o extond or tenmiinate the lease belfine the eml of the ease vomn ROLT asscti and lease Bishalinies tischude these
options when i1 1s seasonably centain thal they will be evercived

,\'uhwmm AR R el ll'u‘i atfadini’ afinat

The sight-aluse svsets ane inially seeognied of cost, which ¢ompuises the mannd amoust of the lease labilny adpsted G wm beaw pavesats made st o
o 1o the commencement date of the lease plus smy initiol dinect cots keis any hease incentives. They are whsequently messirad ol el less secumilated
deprecianon pnd imspainment Toases

TRight-ad-ame pasets are deprociatd Foim the commencement date sm o stesight-line hasds oven e shorter of the Tease rerm and wsefidl lige oF the uniderlyimg

T (BT

The leass Bability is initially pacasuoed at amoitised cont af the present yaliie of e fabug lease paymienis The lease payments are discoimted wang the mlerest
vate imphicit in the lease of, (F nat peaidily J ble, wsing the | berohing raes i ihe country of damiclle of these leases | eake payanenis
mchuded in the measrament of e lease labuliny are made up of fined payments inchiding i substance fued poymentay snd sanable payments bal oo sn
iinibles o rate Stlsssequend fo initial imensuteent, the lability will be redused for payments made snsl increasad fof inferest | ease labilities ate romeasred
with i corresponding sdjustment 10 the telated nght of e s if the Conspany changes ity asscssment of shether o will exercine an extenvion of &
TErmEn (i

Fair Value wf fnanelal instowimeni
Fair value in the price that woulid be teccived 1o sell am ouset or paid 1o fansfir o Babilite inoan ordedy amaction betwoen markes pamgipants at the
meassventent date The b value mensurenent is based om the | i than the tos el the asset v ansfer the loability wkes ploce either

Ittt prrmeipad marken fur the asset o Dability, o
* I the abvicnoe of o promscipal marker i the st advamtageos marker fof the asset of labilny

The principal ap ihe mest mlvantageoios marke) mus be poeessibile by the Company

The fair vabie of an avet or & Mabainy bs mensired iming the sssimptions that imarket participsaiits ol i when pracing the mset o hatality, tasiosing fal
kol paiacipants oct in their econoimee e interest

A fair valise mesmarement of 8 non-financial peser 1akes in account & marker partbcpamt’s abiliy o generale economic besefin by using the paset m s
highest and best use of by sellimgg it 1o snother madket participant that wild wse the st i ks lghest and best e

Cranpatsy wses daluation technigues that are appropriase in the ciraimtonces and for which sufficient data are availalde b mease Gl vitliee. mssimlsing the
usa ol velevand olservable inputs and minimidng the wse of unobscrvahle inpots

Al sty mnd Hatabiies for which fair valise is nsgasianed of disclosed in the Ruancial resulls are cotegired within the (b valae lerarchy. deseribed as
Tollows, based om the bowest Jevel inguat that s skumifbeant s the fair value measunement i a whole

Tevel | = Qwisted famadjusted) marker prices i sctive markers fon idennical nasets oo Gahihibes

evel 3+ Valunrion vechmigques for whish the Snwest level inpul that is significant 1o the faly valise measurenment s dieectly or indinecily ohwenabie

Leved 3 - Valation technupues fir which the et Bvel inpul that b vignificant 10 the fait valwe messargnent i | nobsgmablc

Voot masets amd linbilities that ase pecognized in the Anancial statements on o recurmng basis, the Company detonmines whether nansfiors have agcurted betw gen
levels i the hsevarchy by reassessing catepomation ibased on the lowest bevel input that bs szt Beant 1o the falr value imeassrement s nwhabe) ot the end af
each reporting penod o each cae

For the purpase of fair value discl s i € campany has & aned ¢ lasses of wssers nnd abilines on the bavs of the mansre. charscteranes and mks of the
avnet o Hability and the level ofihe Faix valve bicraschy a5 explained abone

Wevenue pecoznilion

Revenus b memmral hased on the constdermion specified o conmract with a costomer and excludes amounts colleced on beball of thind parnes A
perfommande obligation is & proatie in a contract to eramafer o diringt good (o o bundle of poods ) 1o the customer and is e unit of secout in lnd AS 118, A
combraet s ransaction poace is allocsted to cach distinct perfennamce shligation amd recopnied as revemee, o when the perfsmmance obligation 1s ailiod
The Company revognises seveiue when i ramsfens control of & prodect 1o 2 castonier. Revenue is méasrsd a1 the el value off the conmderatin recelved o
receivwhle. wking inty scomumt conrsctually defined torma off payments and evclides ton and duties colbected an bebnll' of dhe povemmsent. The Campasy
recygmbues renemie fom e (oblow ing majon saoces.

Resenur from sale af producis

Revemme Tvom sabe of producis (including sceap abes) is meanured based an the constderarion specified i conmaet with s customer amil evchides asmoants
collected o bahald ol ihird parthes I8 §s mgacared at fale value consideration recchyved of receivable, met of retums. anil allowasiees. trade diseoants and volime
rehaies. The Company recogiidaes revenue when i) ansbers control ser 8 prodact 1o o cosome Le when poods are delivered at the delivery paiil. as pe
s of ihe agrecimen, which could be ebber costoine preimiues oo cnimler preindses wha will debiver gonds to the costomer, When payments scecived Fom
gustomets eveeed revemue secanised v date on n particular conteace, amy evcess (o conmaet Balulity) is repamed in the Dalance Shewt wnder other cument
linhilaiies
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Reatrsfan frinet iof poefinrmann o bl nnum

The Conpueny’s reswnug i5 devived o the single perfonmance obligation to ransfer praniandy prodiscts under amangerents in which the e of comteol of
the prosbucts and the Rulfilment of the Cormpang's perfi hligation oocur ai the same e Bevenue foon ihe salle of goods i recogrised whim the
Comapany has tamsfirred controd of the goods o the bayer and the buger ebisins the benefite fom the goods, the potential cash Mows sal the smount of
revente (the wnnaction priced van be meaunred sehiably, anl it is probabile thm the Company will collect the comsideration §o which o is emtitled 10
exchange fir the pals

Whether the custimen has obtamed contial tver the s depends on when the poods sre mode svaitable 1o the carmien o the biyer takes possesiion of the
poads. depemnling on the delivery teoma Far the Company, penerally the criteria to recognise nevensie las hoen nvet when it products are delivered 1o ils
custimers oo 1o a carier who will iansport the goods bo it customen. this is the point in time when the Company has completed it pertonmince obligntions

Fevenoe s measired at the tansactiom peice of the sonsklamathon receis el of receisable. the amaum the Compady espeets by b ennitled 1

v nsvan feemy
Thiy sale of gasisls s typieally nede usder credi pavment tenns diffesing Som casomer to customer and ronjses between 30-120 dwy <

Viraiabde ominsberupiiin dvias tad vath ui fe sl

Peviodiently. the Conmpany laanches varous volume on athee rebate progoms where once o cerain volume oo other conditions ane met, i pves the customer ak
vt dhscamint soinie potson of the amounts previoashy ballead or paid For ssch amangements the Compans only necopmises tevenue i the amouis il
whtamiately e vpects b geadine fiom the costome The Company estmmated the vanahle comaderation g these peoganms mving e st Tikely smount method or
e expocted yalie methol shicheyer approish hest predicts (he oot of e corsideratbon based o the temms of e comisc am] availabde snflormanisn gl
upslates ity estimates gach repartmg period

Revenisr Trom servioes

Revinue fomn sale ol serviges is tecopnived opon rendenng the services based on sgreements srmmngenments with the concomed partics For fised price
contracts, tevenue b recoymised hased on the actual service prosided to the end of the repostimg period as @ propoenen of the ofal servioes i be proviiled
overtime amee the Compamy s performance dises pol create an mvset with an shemative use G the Compary and the Company has an eafiicesble g 1o
paymment for pi fammance comypleted o date

Revemue From abeschpment of contomer pabil boal:

The Copany incurs pre-prodachion toolmg costs iclated 10 te products developed for its customers unden supply arcangements. Tooling income ineti
repuenents amounts recovered fom cudomers, which are in excews o davebopanent couts incurred by the Company to manifacnae soch ool except 1o the
wxtent whem sich cous i d whe na bly ascertainalibe. The Company tecopmiss sach toaling income (hatl toaling doa inet) when the conteal of
ihe poosds have passed ou to e customer. When it iv probable that total development costs will excesd the tling vevenie. the expected Joss bs ecognired an
an expense in ihe Starcment of Profls snd | o in the period bvowhich wch probabsliy ocomr

The veveny fion developinent of fds is 1o be tevogndaed over time becanse tle Uwempans s perfommases dogs nol create gsset wilh s albemating use io the
Company sincy the ools are customised R each customer and the Company has & lepally enforceshle vight 1o payment of i value fis perfommunee
completed o date Tooling incinge (met) s deferred and pecopmised over the usefil life of the develuped tool, whisch 1s ied for prodsction as sequited by the
cusboariens. The wselil Bl penerally mnging Fom 2 1o % yeais 1oevaluated by management and o technical esperts. Acconlingly. the delamad penion of sch
icunne by tecopnbed as deferned mconse im ihe Aalone Binain ind

Eapari BeneliinIncentives:
e from export incentives bs recaopmived as and when the right v receive such an income 1s established and no uncenainty exists on it ultisnate collection

Inciomie recogniifon

lateresf

Ineiest invomne on linancial sssets of amwniraed cost amd Roancinl ssscis o1 Tal value thiough siber comprebensive moome FVERCT) s calenlased using the
elficctive interest imethod i reoopnised in the stngemem of profin and liss ad part of other income Inerest income b caloulated by appliing the effectig inerest
rate 10 the gross camying mmousit of 8 financial aseet except for nancial tssets that subiequently become ceedil impaired. For credit impalred finsmcial assets
the effective interest iate 1o applied 1o the Bet carying mnount of the financial ssset (afler deduction of the lows allowance)

ik

Dividendy me received from finameanl avsets at faie value feough peofin on lss asd s FYOCT, Dividends me recognised s other incomme in peodit on Loss when
the night ta recenve paymmnt is extablished This applies even iMhey are posd ot of pre-ocquisstion profite unbess the dividend vhearly seprosents o eooveey of
pant of the cosl of 1he nyveament
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Financial instrsments
A fimancial matrement s amy contract that gues rise 10 a fnancial auet of one entity and o financial labalis: or ety instranent of another entily

Frrarm gl arvners
Teritacal pvginimnr stid mvosenreamni

Fimancial nasets ire chassificd a mitial ition, as subsequant] | at ised cont, bt value thipagh other comprehensive meome (0011, and
Faie value o profic o loss
The classificanion of financial avsets ab infind recopnition depends on the | et s contactionl cnsl Dow chimscteristics and the Company s business

model Tor wanaging thems, With the excoption of irade receivables that o it contain @ sipnifl financing commponemt or for which the Company has
applicd the practical epedient, the Comnpany initially mensures a finoncial asser an s fiir ullnc s in the casve of o linancial axset pot ot G vabie through
ool o liss, tiansachion cous, Teade teceivables that do oot comtain i signifleant financing compancnt or for which the Company kas applied the pactical

eapealient are imensuned o the howy parice o e mider fmd AS 118 Befer 10 the accvamting policies in sectin (1) Reveonae Gom comtiacts with
CustisngTs

Ty owder fior @ Giameinl asser 1 e clossified and measured an mmud cont of Falr value thivsgh 001 b peeds 10 give e 1 cadi e that aie salely
payments o pritcipel and ivgrest (SPETE o the principal This in mefivned 1o o the SPPL test aml i perfonmed a1 on

imstmument bevel Finnncial assets with cash fows Iu'r are nol SPPL are clasatied lml measared al Er value thaoagh profin or boss, brespective of the busness
mdel

Ve Commpainy’s Diasimess model for managing finngial asseis iefer b how it manages its financeal sty in onler B generale <oy Hiss. The Tarsiness bl
determings whether gash Mows will pesill fhotn collecting contsetaal cash Moms, selling the fnancial saets o both Financial aisets dlavified and measored
ot aeortised cost are held within o busisess model with the ohjective 1o hald fmancial assets in onder 1o coliect contratanl cash Rows while financial aoets
classified and measured at fabr value through €01 are held within @ bustnes model with the sbijevtive of bath heldiig o collect cotisctual ead Bows and
selbing.

Prirchases or sales of finangial assets thal tequire delivery of asels within & time fame estaldithed by regilation o0 conventian i the marketplace fregular
waw trades | mre recognised on the rade date. i e, the date that the Company conimits o putchase of sl the sl

Subnequent smeasrerient of finamckal sasets anad finsnial Habilities i desonbed below
§ “Torvniiboonmmonit snnd AMhegage miiv e e

For the pnpsrse of subsequent riscasiiorienl, anclal ssiets se classified i the follinving categonies upon il recogamim

Finangial sssets o0 amartised goal - 0 financal I ol al Bont 17 bth ihe Ballowing condimons e el

+ The meset b held within @ buisingss inede) whose olbjective s 1o hald pasers fm collesting contragtual caih flows and

« Conmactual s of the asset pive rive om speciliod daies 1o cah Mo 1B are solely paymants of prifciel sad letest (S on the princips) smoum
oalsianding

Adbes imitial mgasreimsent, such financial nisets are subseqently imeasured at mmorised cod using the effisctive iMaes method Fifecthe intenes rate (ETR ) 1s
vhe tabe that exasily discounts extimated Tabime cash recelpts tmigh the expected life of the fiancial soet o the net esmyang ammmt of dhe il sse,
The futare cnddy (o s imchide ol b bmsseilon o pail o eoeiyved, presiamms of dbcosimts iFany, e,

Iy estments i equity lnstruments of subsidiarbes - Inye i ity i of subidinties are ag o fie it cont i socordance with fnad AS 27
Separnte Financial Siatements (- dhaposal of these investiments, dse differencs between gt dispisal proceeds and the careying amsian ste tecognbed i the
staremenit of prasfin and los

Finaneinl assets ai Tuir value

Investments in equity insirvments other tham alwve - All equity imvestments i scope of bind AS 109 are meaveed ot i vabie Faguaty instranients which
e el fior inading are generally chassified an at fiie valus ol puelit and foss (FVTIL) Poe ol sther equity instruments, the Company deckdes 1o clavaify
the wivie cither a4 ot (ab saloe tivugh ather comprehensive neome (IVOCT) o e salue thiough pulin and loss (FVTPLE The Company maked sach
election am nn intrmsent by inuoament basis The clasvificmtion is made on ininal recogninon and is inevicable

I s Coumpamy devides b classily an equity instrurment as af FVOUL then all fair salne changes on the instrument, exeluding dividendi. are recogniiel in the
oiber compevhensive income (00T} There (s no recyeling of the smamts from (1 1o profil v losa zven on sabe of myestinent. Howeser, ihe Company may
ransder the comlative gam of loss within eqieity. Dividends on such investments. ate recognised v peofit o loss unless the divedend clearly represcnits »
recovery of pan of the coni ol the Invesiment

Equity invinuments indluded within the PVTPL category are meammed 8t fare value with all changes recognised prodin o loan

Dherbvative mssats - AN ity stine sassis ang wisassined ) Gald sabor daogy ol s los 7YV

Fhearewwiginenivi o Rl anscty
A fimancial meset s prianily de-recognised when the rights 1o receive cash Bons from the asset have expired o the Company has wansfered s nghts 1o
receive cash lows froi the aswet

Mo by antidsat oof fibomts aoal ivechy

The Company. determines classification of finaneial avsets and Rabilities on inal revogniticn. Al avinial recopiition, no reclaifiention e made i
fimancinl avsets which are ety instruments amd financial labifiiics. For Bnancial asscts which are debt msinments. 8 reclassilication bs mads anly ifihery is
u change in the busingss model o managing hose assets. Chanpes 10 the business wodel ace expected 1o be infrequent The Company’s senior menl
determines chanpe in the basiness model ns a veslt of extemal ot | ch which are shmilicant 1w the Cinnpany ‘s 1w-nrinl-| Such changes are
evident 10 extermal paries A change in e business inodel decurs when the Company either Beging ot egases 10 perfirm an activity that is signi ficant 1 ils
aperations, IF the Company reclassifies financial asets. i applies the reclaslfication prospectively lom the rechassifleation date which bs the fiest day of the
immediately nest reporting period fallowing the change in husiness usodel. The Compony docs not restate any provionsly recognised pains Tosies Giscloding
e gubine o lovses) of inderest

b wpvnew M Bovn ool Lol Bl




Tenneen Auineotive India Private Limited
Nofes to the Standalone Financial Stafements far the sear ended 31 March 2022
LA ammmivamrs w & AR, pnfenn onifeers o sl

]

Finamnc kal B bilities

Frritgl ccoaininn ol g rcinn

Fimangial Wabalities dre clasuflod, al il secopmition. is nanand lablines ab G valioe o profi of loss, Rans sind lsanmings pasables of &
derivatives desaprated as bedping inviosmienis in o elTective hadpe. ay appiopriate

All fimancial labilities are recopnised iminally s fair valie and in the case of foans and barmos ngs s pasablos. met of dareetly mbarable mansactim costs
The Comnpany s ipancial linhilities include wade and other pavables loans and horrowings inchiding bonk ovenbiafts financial gaaantee contracts and
dbetiviine financial wstrmnenis

.,\'.I|nl|-u.|mu TSI TR TR

At inktial recopnition, the Bmancal labilities, siber than demvarive labilines aie sibsoqeently meamred a0 amontised cost osing the effective mleres)
insthod (ETR )

A d cout is calcabated by adenmg sy discount o preimum on aequlsiiion and Fees of costs that are an intepral pan of the EIR The ellec of EIR
amontiation by incladed as fnimee ooty i ihe statement of peodll s liss

A dénnvntive Tinbalitbes are measared al e soloe theoagh peodbe and loss dEVTIL Y

oy vigmantvame anf v sl Dualeidesies

A finamcial ligbility 15 dhe-recopmisgd when the oblipation wader the Tiahility s discharged oo cancelled or espoes. When an existing financual liability is
veplaved by amother From the same lender on wstantially different femms, or the fenms of mn exsiiag lahilaty aie substantially modified. sich an eschange or
modl (leation i3 ireated as e deesvecognition of the oaginal Tabitity anid the recognition of 3 new labilin. The diTacnce in the respective camying mmmumts ks
revagnined in fhe statement of pofin o loss

A BEvieaTerd ool Pt il s prvsic ey
Fimamcial avsets and financial Habibiies are odTaot and the nel amount iy reported in the balance shoet i there is 8 cumemtly enforccable Togal myght b olTiet the
revogningd amounts and there iv an miention toosetthe o g net bast o reahine the assets and settle th Habalithes stemltaneondy

Tmypaiwenent of Bnancial saeis

Al financis) aseets ewvept for those st IV TPL e subect 0 cevien For impainnent st each reparing dte 1o idennfy whether there s any objecine evidence
that & finamcial msset o & proup of financial 9sets b bmpasred fTerent criferia i deterdne impatnneny are sppibied for cach catepory of Tinancial aswty
In acevadance with Ind AS 104, the ety ipplies expected crelie bass () kel fion anid pecopmition of iy Rewns. i Fonanscial
ssets carmied m peortised cos

EUL in the weighted mensge of dilference Ietween all contiactual cah fows thiat are die to the Company in accordance with the contrace and all the eash
Mo that the Company expects fo teech e, dissounted ot the arighnal elfective nterest tate, with the respective risks of defiub accuming o4 the weights. When
wstimating the cmsh Hovwa the Company 15 tequired to comside —

o Al comiraciual terms of the Tenaneial assets mchinbing prepaynsent and extension b over the expected life of the assets
o Caady Maows fown i sabe of callateon) ekl or mher evedin enbameements that sse sntegral 1o the contractusd twnms

Tl wevervahden

i For debtors that are aot gast due = The Company applics apprvach revpired by Ind AS 108 “Financial Instnuments . which requises hisime espected
credit lowses 10 be pecognised upon initial eeogninim of ieceivaldes. Lifetime ECL e the expected aredit losses rewilting from all possible defaull events
over the expectod life of s finangial instiament 1 iletime espected credit lisses are masessed and accoumted hased on comyrany’s hstorical countes paity defanli
rales and Foiegast of macro-econonile Gctors by doading reoeiiables that are not conshillered to b indvoibially sipni fcamt by refierence 1o the business
seginent of e conmier party anid oiher shared credin mal chanacterisiigs 1o evaluate the expectod cradin Tows The expeciod coodit s eitimate 15 then based on
recent hisorical counder party defanll rates. The Company deflnes defolt as an event when the (inancial asset ia past due e more than 120 dags This
delimmiian i based on it s espectation of the wime pensld bevond which it s recovable s owvitandmg, i is ebjegnive evilence of pnparing

i For debtors comaidered past due = sy enhancement (n the acomal done for expocted credin low on indidaally sigmificant receivahles s made 10
recvgning any additional expected eredit lowe on anbdaint recdverable The Company wiites ofT rade receivables whim there is objective evidence that such
aensonirts wonld mil be recovereld Fimamcial sseets that sie wiittes-ofT are sl subjea 1o enfircamnent activiny by ilbe Commpary

@ arlwer Fsaani il ansers

Fawr vecopnimion of wparment s on other inancial svets amd risk exp rhe Company whether there has been o sigmficant iperease in the

credit thak since iatbal recogniton 17 the credin iisk has aot increased dgnificantly ance initial recogmimion, Mie Company nieavares the o sllowance @ an

amount equal to twelve manth expected erodit lasses, chie it an amoust equal 8o the hiferime evpected credit lses

When making vhis the Coinpany wees the change fn e nsk of o defouly occuring wver the expecied Tile of the Toancial asset To ke that
the Cemy pares the risk of & defudt socuring on the financial auet 9 at the halance sheet date with the nak of o defiult dcourming on the

financial maset as at the date of initial recopnition and comsiders ieasnalile and supportabbe informuation. that is available without e cou or T, hat is

indicative of snificant incieases in credil ik since imitisl recogiition. The Company asaanes that the ceedit risk on o financial asset has ot increised

sipnificanty sinee ininal secognition iFthe finangial asset is o bredd too Bt B grigalit pinds at fhe halance dheet dale

(s e ol s dounr anscanrvamally e Al
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Pt emplay amil sther emplay ee bene fit

Petitil gasinrabaitiem pdos

A defimed contmbition plan is a plan wnder which the Company pags fived contabuions o an independent und admsnistered by the povernmend. for
exnmple. contritiation (owards Emplovees” Provident Fund Scheme, Employess” State Insurance Scheme and National Pension Scheme. The Company has oo
Tepal or comstmctive whlypation o pay tuher contifbanions afber its payment of e fved contritation, which e necopnisad v an oxpenie in the year thal
related ctnployee services are received

el Bt phans

The Gantisity amd Provident Funad {Pandedi are defined benefll plans. The cisd of providing benelits under e defined b plan is determined using the
projected nmit credit method with actuarial vahuarinns being carthed oul at each balonce sheet date. which recopmires cach penod of serviee ss phvng rise o
ncdditionnl wnit af aolyee benefit emithenment aml measre each unit separately b babld up the fnal ahlysation Graig: G is administered theaugh §ife
Insumange Corpornthon of [adia

Remeasurements, comupaising of sctustial pains mnd losses. exchusling mmounts inclisded in net iierest on the net defined Denetis labiliny e vecopnized
immedsately in ihe balanee sheet with o comesponding debit o credin 1o retained camings through other comprebiensive neome i the periosd in which they
wour. Remseasimements ae nil reclassified to profit i loss in subsgquent perinds

her employes bemefine
Famgbeems eaplinee Beiselis @ omponsiiteal ihain ey

Lisbility in nespect of compemsatod ahsences becombig dug o espsted to be availad within ong yeat fromm the bulande sheet date i pecogmised on the bais of
unil | value wl i voipiined fo by pabl or eatimated value of benetit evpecteal to be wiailed by the emplisyess Lislalityan revpeat of
compemsatel absences becoming due or expeatad 1o be avatled more tham ane year after the halance sheet date 1o wstimated hased on an actearial valuation
perkuined by an independent actaary ising the projected ani gredin methisd

Actaarial gains and losses prfaing Fom post expenence ol chenges in actuartal sesurpeions aee charged to statement of prafil and boes tn ihe year in which
suagh paing of Boisen ate defenmined

1 Mbsr shussrp-pepiin b bin
Fxpense i respect of other shispt-tem bamglins s recogmired on the hasis of mmount paid or payable foo the period dunimg which sendees are tendered by the

empilaes

Newtracbeod Xk | Tianin (RXT '

Thi Trir value of RS i recogmised as an emploves benelit expense with 8 comesponsding inerease in equity. The total ameint 1o be expensad s detemined
I,u:. relerence tothe Twin value of the 5 fo vested

The total expense bn recognised over the vesting pesiiod whach 1o e peried over shich all of the specified vesting comditions ape v be saisfied S the end of
each peviod, fhe Conpany revises its estimates of the nambser of RS0 hat e expestarl i vest based on the monsommbet vesting and senvice conditnms, It
pecopmives the inpadt of thet bes isbon s otiginal estimates, iy o profin o Bess, with s cormesponding adjsieen i equiy.

Proviskons, contingent Habilitles and contingeni maris

Pronisiens ane recogniood only when there bv m present obligarion. as & result of past events and when a celiable evinnate of the amaam of aldguation can e
madic at the repiorting date These estinates ane reviewed an each reponting date anel sidjusted to reflect the curent hest estinites

If the efect of the tme volie of money is matenal, prosisions are discosnted fo reflect its present value wibng o curent pre-tis rvte that rellects the cunemt

inarket asscasmenis of the time value of mosey ael the risks spevilic o the oblipstion When proiaans sre discounted. the incresse in thie paan sdon due 1o the

passage of Hise (s iecopnised as 8 finance ool

[ Tunbslivy 19 disglosed fioe

- r::uﬂ;aﬂwum*huh il b comfirmen only by future events mot wholly within the conmal of the Company oo

= Present ohligations arising from paa evente where i is nel probable that an oalflins of resoorces will be vequied 1o seitle the chlipation o o relshle
estimute of the amaunt of the ohligarion camot be made

Continpent assets are nof seeognised However, when inflow of ecanomic benefits is probable. ielsted asset is disclised

i ks wjanis Nas b iniditsesi®y Loy Alesd s
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Nobes b ihe Standalone Financial Statensents for the vear ended 31 March 2015
EAN wensintarrs o AR, imlfons athernne slanead)

ol Earnings per Shane
[auc earmings pev hane is cabeulated by divaiding the net profin o Do for the pencad steributahle i equity shanchobders (afber deducting smihansble tns) by
thie weiphied average marber of eqquity shares outstanding during the perind. The weiphted sverage numher of ity shares satdanding duning the period |+
adpsed fim events inchiding a bonas e
Fou the purpose of caloulsting diluted carmings per share, the nel profil or loss B the penod atirbinabile 1o wquity sharchioliders and the wandued averape
nunther of shares outstanding during the period pre adiued for the effecs of nll dilutive petential equity share
Pitentinl ordinary shates shall he treated as diltive when, and ol when, ekt catversion (o ordinans dates would decremse eamings per shate of inerease
lovss per share from comtming oporations

M Taves
A “recind ity
Crament income-tax assets and Fishilities sre measurad af the pmmen expected 10 be recovered trom o puisl o the lasation authorities. The taw rses and s
Tavs usesl ot the amaunt are thase that are enndted on substantively enacied al the reporting date in the countries whene the Compas opersties and
panerites twvable incomse

Cumend meome-ax ielating 1o items recopised outside profit or loss is recopnised outside profit or boss feither in other comprehensive income o in edquity)
Cumment fax iems are recoprbsed 10 corclation 1o the waderhymy ranssction either in other compeebenaise incaime w dicetly in equity. Manageinimt
peniodically evaluatés posstions taken i the o relims with tespect to situations in which apphcable tay regulations. e sabiect 1o inlerprotation: and
eatablushies provashons where appraopriate

Dieterral b

Delierred ax is provided usng e Bahibiny method on lemporry differeaces between the tay hases of avsets und labilnies and thei camyimg ansints fin
finanehal repoieiing purpones 8f the reporting dase

Dafarred vas liahalities are iecaprised Fist oll tasabile ieussmany differences Deferted tas asnts are recsipmlsed fof all desbictibile seasporary BilToemces and sy
unused tan credits and mnused 1as Divaes. Diefened tan asaets are necogmiseil 10 ihe extent that i (s probable that tavable profit will be available apsins which
the deduciible temnpsossry dilTerences, and the carry Forward of vnused 1as credins and unused sas losses can be utilized. Delferad fas is iveavined based on the
pa et andd the tan Baws enacted o subwntively enscred ot the balance dheet date. The carnang amosnt of defemed tan asscls are reviewed ot cach halance
shewt datie and detecopmined o the extont it bs mo bonges probable that sfTicient Hinare tavabile poofles will be avalahby agams which sisch defemed 1 avees
can b realised

Delcared tax relating b e pevipgnned oubside ol m s is recopnized ostside profit oo boss (etiber in odhes comprehensive moome o i equin )
Pelerved tas ilenis ane recogideed i ontrelation 1o the undetlying wamsaction either in ather in other comprehenudye income o0 disedtly in eguity

Delerred tas avsats omd defiemred tan linhilies sre offset i a lepally enforceable right @xists to st off cutrent tay svseks apaing curvent (i Habilities and the
defermed bivves iclate to ihe saume lasable enlity and the sams nabion suthonty

) Segment Reporting
Chperating sepanents are nepaned in o manree consistent with the imternal seporeing povided s the chiel npersting deciaiin make
Idemi ficntion of segnents:
In sccirdance with Il AS 10 - Operating Sepmen, the operating sepments sied to prevent sepanent infommation are ddentified based on inlarmation
reviewed by the Company s management o allocate sescnices o the segments wnd aess tels perfomnance An operating sepment o a companent of the
Cistapany thit i1 basimess aevivities Fronm which inears revemses and incurs expemnses, inchsdimg revemses mnd expenies that relate w bansactions with
any af the Conguaiy s oiher components Results of the aperating sepmients are revivwed regulatly by the management tenim which has been identificd os the
ehief operating decisin maker (CODK, b niabe devisions sloot rewarces o be allacated to the sepment and aswess its gerfonmance and for which discreie
finaecial infiormation is svailphie

r) Uah and cosh epuivalenis
Cath anal cash equivalents comptiee casdy in haml, demand depasiis with banks corporations and short=temm Bighly Dguad mvestments (onginal matany les
than 3 mwnithd that ase readily convertible inta kiiown misunt of cash and ate sisbject 10 an insignilicant tisk of change tn vl

%) Exeoptional items
(O comain oucashions the e, nype. oo ancudence ol an Mom of incame or expense, penmning 1o the codisary activeties of the Companmy s wich that i
divchoasee unproves Use undirstanding of e per of phe Coming Such income or ¢xpense bs classified as an exceptional fem and agcmdmgly

thschivssdd i the nodes 1o ihe standabise nancial sarements

i1 Nowegurrenl sl held fir sale s discontinued operating

The Coanpany classifies non-curmont assets and disposal prosps ss bebd for sale AF thetr camyang amounts will be secovened pringipally tesigh o salo rathir
iham hrough continuing ine

Somecurnent assts amd disposal prowaps clasefied as held for sale are picasined a8 the bowet of shebr canviiig anisant and Tals valie o sots Bl Uoas te
sell mie the incremeontal costs divestly mivibutabile o the disposal 07 o asven (doposal grough excluding linance cons and income tax ¢xpanse

The ermeria for hebd For sabe clasaflcanion is regandedd as met omdy when the sabe 10 highly probable. and e asset or disgaval groug is svoilable Tor immediane
wale in ins present condition. Actions required o comyplete the wale’ distrilution shonld indicate than it (v unlikely that sipnificant changses e the sabe will be
mde oo thal the decison wosell will be withid M sl b imgad by the sale and the wibe expectod within one veas oo the g of
elassitheation

For these purposes. sale iranasctions include exchompes of non-gurent pssets fin ofher non-current assets when the exchinge has commercial sbviance. The
enteria for held For sale classifteation s neparded met only when the assets of disposal group is available for immediate sale in bs present comdidion. sibjoci
sy b tgromis thit ane wsinl and cusemany for ssles of sich pssets for diposal groups). iss sabe is highly probable. amd oowill gensnely be sold, non abandoned
The Company ireats sabe of the asset or disposal groop 10 be highly probalile when:

+ The appeopriate bevel of puanagement is commptted 1o plan t sell the avset jor disposal group,

+ A setive programme 1o locate o buyer s complete the plan has been initiated (i applicable),

* The st for disposal gooap) i being actively marketed for sale ot @ price that s reasanabibe in velation W ils coment fair yalue,

« Th sale s expected 1o qualify for fecogmitiin as p completed sabs within one year o the date of classafication, and

= Action igaquirgd v conplete the plan mdicane thas i is wnlikely thoe syificam changes to the plan will ke made o thin tha plan will be withevann

Propeny, plant and equipnignl and intangible are mol deprecinted. o amoarmieed aasets onee classified s beld for sale Assets and habilities clavaifiod as held e
e o sabe mie presemied separately From siher ilems in the Standalime Halsnoe Sheel Discontrmied operation s are excluded Brom the sesills af continuing
'@L"II CHy ;;P‘m..mdmr precented i g vingle amamint s piofll o boas sfien s Gom discomtinued eparanons i the Stamlalone Profis and Lo
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Sigaificant management judgement inapplying aceounting policies and estimation unceriginty
The preparation of the Conpany’s Ginancial stabements requires m ail b make jind o catimates and avsampiions B sffect the peponed amouants
ol vevenmes, expenses, assets s linhilitive, and the selated disclosres
The actual results are likely 1o daflier from the judigments. estimates and assumptions maide by il will selddsim eogital the eximmated results

abo wigndlicant jud W et and asumimy that hane the meost stgnificont effet on seoopmition and measurement of assels. habulites
Jmmrmdﬂwnmm ﬁwuml bl
Keprvafioamn smnagvnnad findgomim

Recngnltion of deferred tan mssets « The exient 10 which deferred G asseis can be wevognbed b hased on sn assessinent of the pobability of e liture
tasable income against which the defemed 1ay aviels eni he wilived

Evaluation of Indicators for bmpalensent of wsvets « The evaluation of applicability of imdeabors of fyg 1ol pasts tey al sevenal
extemnal amd internal Taciors which evihd resill in deteriotathon of reconerable amoun ol sssets

Classifivatinn of beaies - The Uimigany enters inne leasing amangemems o canons ssiete The el fication af the baadng somangement as a fnsoce loas o
opetating lease is hased on on aeesseent of severald factore incliding. but mot Timited 10, ransfer of owoatshp of Teaved mwet b end of lease o, lessee's

aption 1o purchase and estimated cemanty of evercise of such ophion, prapanion of lease term b the neaet’s ecomomie hife. peopamion. of present vilue of'
it lense payinients b fuin vabie of Teased naset and estent ol specializad namre of the leased st

Impatrmeni of Gnancial ety - AF cach balance sheet date. bused on histoncal dethubl mtes observed over expected life the management asiesses the
expected eredit loss on mtitanding frnancial ascts

Comntingent Liabilities - The Company is the subject of cenpn legal proceedings which are pending in varnios jurisdictions Duae o thie umcertaingy inherest in
s mmttens. it s difliculy o predice the floal outcome of sich matters. The vares and clains againgt the Cianpamy often mise Effical anl comples facial
and legal tiues, which are subjest 1o many ancenanties including but nor liobied 1o the focts and circumatances of each. parmicalar cose and claim. ithe
jurisdiction wnd the dilferences in apphicable law In the monmnal couse of busingss, mansgemen) consulis with legal counel and cenain other experts on
mattens pelated b litigation and taves The Comgany seciiies i Babilin shan i s deterniined that an adverse citeoans is proliable and the smount of the s
can be sgasmably estinabed

Proviskon far warcanfies - Al cach halsnce shect date basis the management judgmen, chamges in facrs and begal aypecre the Company assesvses the
requitesnent ol pronisbons apnin the oulstanling wanantics and guarantees Hloweser, the sciual future sutcome may be diffenent Bom this judganent

Nrimiflomn ety
Recoverability of advances’ receivables < A1 each balance sheet dat, based on historical defiul rates observed oo expeated life, ihe managomen asoncs
ihe enpected credit losa on niraanding iecehvables and sdvances

Useful Bives of depreciablefamortisable nssets « Management reviews s esimmte of the weetul lives of deprecialle amaontinalle assets a1 vach iwporting dae,
Taved on the expeeted anlity of the ausets | 'no jes in thewe ¢ velnne o technical and economis ohsobescence that imay change the unility of certain
sorftw e, enstomer relationshigs 11 equiprient nd oifier plant and equipimsent.

Defined beneli ubligation (D0 - Mamapengnt's conimate of the D0 s based on o mamber of undarlying ..,.'---w-:hn dared yates of i
maeality, discouin inte and aniicipation of Ritiee salony increaied Vanialion i e assaimptions may shmbfcanly snpact the D00 amomt and the anal
defined benelh evpenses

Recont socmuniing promouncensenis

Munisbry ol Corporate Afais (MUA™T oot fes new stansdands o amendenem s 1o e exstng nmider Conapandes { Dindsan A e Stacilards ) Rules
v Famed from tme 1o ine. The Company applied Fallowing amendments Tor the first-time during the eoment yeai which g eflective fom 1
April 2024

Armerilonents 1o lod AR 116 Lease Halsllity n @ sabe and leanelack

The amenikments tequire an enbiey ba tecognise lease labaliny inclbing corable lease paymenis which are non laked v index o o nste n o way 0 does pot
resialt it e on Righy of use masct it retaing

Tostresbue Bam of bl AN VIT - lnsurance Coatrsis

RIC A mtified Tnd AS 117, o compeehensive standand that presenbie, recognition. measurement and disclosure requitements. 1o avisd diveraties in practice fo
acspuming insmance contrsees atd i applies to all compandes Le . oo all “mamince contracts” segaidless of the st Hawever. Ind AS 11T s oot applicabile

1o thie entivies which pe inusrance companies regisered with IRDAL
Amendments tn bod AS 2T - Effects of Changes in Fereign Exchange Rabes

O Moy 9, 2028, MO A notifies the smendmonts o Il AS 21 = Effecs of Changes in Forelgn Dxchange Rates. These smendiments am 1o pmwlr clenrey
pukdance i pasessiing custency evchangealdling and estimating eschange rates V-Iwn cutreckes are nok readily esch bl The demvends arie effective
for ammial periods beginming on or after April |, 325 The Company is Iy i the probable mpact of these amendments on it Tancist
statertiehibs

The Commpary has reviened the new pronosncenserds and based on (s exaluation has detenmined thal these amendments di aul have o sbgmificant imipact o
the v s I 1 &

e iy ot bt diineuimtielly bt Mamli
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Tenneen Auwtomotive India Private Limited
Noles to the Standalone Financlal Statements for the vear ended 30 Mareh 2025
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5 Investmenis

Particulars Amaunt ns at Amount ms at
Al Murch 1025 31 Murch 2024

Non-(Curreni:

A Investment measured al cost

(1) Investment in equity shares of subsid ey com pany, unguoted *#

Nl equity shares (31 March 2024 20,664,039 fully paid ol 2 10 each ol Motocare Indin Provate §inied . 2558001
B. Investment mt faiv valug thraugh profit or loss

(i) Investmend in equity shares of other entity, unquoted

Nil equity shares 4 M Murch 2024 $60 9000 Fully patd of 2 10 ¢ach i Maple Renewable Power Private . K0

Limited

{id) tnvestment in equity shares of aiher entity, unguoted

3,545 cquity shares (31 March 2024 35451 fully paid of 2 53,08 each in Caparo Power [iniited 114 0

piit) tnvestment in equily shares of other entily, wnguoied

H2.000 eguity shares |V March 2004 Nilg fully paid of 2 10 ¢acl i Yadh Metal Besourees Private Limted Lin .
329 1,867.92

Aggregate amount of unguoted investmenis i 1.567.91

Aggregate amount of impalrment in the value of investments - =

*Investments in subsidiany is stated ot cost in accordance with Ind A% 27 'Separate Financial Siatementy

= During the vear ended X March 2025, the Company has (ransferred its 206 64009 equity shate in Motocare India Private Limited {erstwhile subsadiary ) to
Federal-Mogul Motpans India Linnted fellow subsidiary FMMPT), for o considerstion of @ 8291 54 million The profil on sale of investiment § ¢, the exgess
ol consideration recelved wt the carmying value of investment i ¢, amounting 1o @ 57340 5T million has been recogaieed g gain on sale of investment in
“Fxceptional item” FMMP spread 1o poy inferest 12% per annum compounded annually, on the outstanding receivable 10 the Company. The total
consideration, along with the acorued interest, 15 to be paid by FMNMP within tao vears from the closing date re date of the tmasscuon 24 Narch 2025 The
total consideration is receivable os ol the halance sheel dite and discliosed undet the head ather non current Nnancial issets (Reler note 7y g with the
snterest accured on the receivable fom the related party.

Refer note 34 for assels classafied as held for sale

Refer pote 35 for disclosuee of Tir values in respect of linancial assels

Loans
Mui-Lurireat Current
Farticulars Amount as al At as al Avant as al Amriiunt ws at
31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 I Murch 2024
Unsecured, considered goml
Loan o emplovees 233 258 1 .19
L.5K 369 9224
Refer mote 35 for disclosure of fair values in vespect of (inancial assels
iler Minancinl nssets
Non-Current Current
Particulars Amoani as on Amouni as af Amount s on Amount as al
31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2025 3 March 2024
Unsecured, consiilered gooid
Reveivable from refated party £33 M . - -
Security deposits 2T43 LN LNE] 514
K30 AL R L ([N 404
*Refer notes § and 37
Refer noie 35 for disclosure of faie valies n respect of finie il asscls
Deferred tax asseesTiabilities (nei)
The balanee comprises femporary diflerence atinbatahle oo
Particulars Amound as at Amount as at
31 March 2025 31 Muirch 2024
Deferred tas Habhilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible nssers 1260 d5 B3
Right-of-use assels L L 87
41.39 5442
Deferred tan maseis
Diefimed benefit abligations % 45 W0 840
Provisinns 713 3h 6K
Lease lahilities LA i 4
12622 05,57
Deferred tax assets (nel) LI 4115




Movement in deferred ax asseislinhilitics Defined benefii Depreciation and HRight-of-use assels Totul
ahligitions amirtiation
Deferred tay labilities
A3 Mareh 2023 - £).55 10.97 64,52
Charged (eredited)
= tov prodil o Joss - (7.501) (2 20 (LR
< 1o oher comiprehensive income - - - .
Ar 31 March 2024 - 45058 B.77 S4.42
Charged icredited)
= 1o prafit or Joas - 113.05) noz 11303)
« to othir comprehensive imcome - - - .
Al M March 2025 - 3260 B0 41.39
Defined benefit Provisions Lense linbilities Total
nhligatinns
Deferved tas nssels
AL 3 March 1023 7.5 G138 12.33 111.25
Charged icredited)
= Ly profit o bss (11 50 e Bedll AR 1 LEALT
- o ither eomprehensive income 136 s . 116
AL 31 Mareh 2024 2840 &h.68 10,49 98,87
Charged (eredited)
= b profit o loss 0 14 n R 20,42
= tovother comprehensive income [t} - - fin 21
At 3 March 2025 45,54 71.33 R0 1222

el apen e duis Meea antepbemielly el ki
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Income iny nsaets (net)
Particulars Amouni ps i Amouni ns al
A March 2005 31 Mireh 2024
Incomie tox asscls (nel} 11 T 172 8%
116,76 172,87
Oiher non-current asscls
Forticulars Amount as al Amnunt as ol
M Murch 2025 A1 Murch 2024
Capital advances - considercd good 17.82 nan
Prepaid expenses 194 240
Corporate sacial responsihilioy (O8I - excess spem® 2795 17.34
4171 57006
* Refer note 32(h) for CSKH
Tnvendories (valoed at lnwer of cost or nel realisable value)
Particolars Amount us wi Amaouni as ol
31 March 2028 Al March 2024
Raw materials [ includes stock b transit 2 51 60 nullion i previous year 2 73 60 million )] 45100 451 5h
“‘nq‘k.m.nmpu“ RN 125349
Finished goads |inclhides stock in wnsit #5020 million (previous year £ 4100 million)| 17544 T Bl
Siores ond spares B4 37 187
Packing matenals 5.1 533
HELD) 27,79

Nule The above inventory is net-off the provison fr shsnlete and exeess made 1n secordance with the policy of the Coampany amountiog io 71 0t million

iprevions vear 2 46 30 pillon)

Trade receivables
Particulars Amind s at Aol as al
31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Trade recervables - considered pood. secured i T n.E6
Trade receivables - considerad pood, unsecured IMITIR 1,707 30
Trade receivahles from relited parthes - considened good. unsecured J788 9 87
Frade peceivables - sipnificant incronse in credit nisk . unsecuned 39.79 AT e
33341 20495 12
Less: wllowances finr expecied cradit lngses (L)) (A7)
Tl receivubles AI192R2 2,058.03
Refer note 35 for disclosuee of e values in respect of linancial assets
Refer note 37 for related pany balances
Trade receivables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2025:
Particulars Cutstanding for fllowing perinds from due date af payment
Notdue | 0-6months| 6 months - 1] 1-2 vears [ 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year yenrs
i) Lindisputed trade receivables - 144104 15178 . - . - 3,192.82
considerad good
10 Undisputed trade recenvables - which 10 53 1860 K14 | 6% i . EURL]
have siggmlicant inerease m cradin fisk
imi ) Undispoted trade receivables - eredin . . - . . -
impaired
(v ) Disputed trmde receivables - - - . - - .
eonsidered good
v Disputed trade receivables - which - - - - . - .
v sigmaficant inenease in credit nak
ivi) Disputed trade recetvables - credit . . . . . - z
impaired
Toinl 145157 TT0.34 H.14 .68 084 - 3,232.61
Less: Allawances for expectad credit 39,79)
J,192.82

Total
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Trade receivaliles l],dlj schedule as ai 31 March 2004

Mok due | 0 - b months | & months - |
year

Particulirs Outstanding for fallowing perie

1-2 years

1A years

idls from due date of pavment

More than 3 Toul
Vears

(1) Undasputed made tecervables - 152423 AR U 4571
feonsidened goad

2054.03

{3 ) Undisputed wade recedvahles - which 4 KK [ 5 12
have significant increase in credin nisk

- 3.7

tiii) Undispuited rade receivibles - enedil . F Z
limpaired

() Dhisputed (e receivables - - - -
ennsidered poad

v ) Dispated trade reveivables - which - F B
have significant inerease in credit risk

(vr s Diisputed irade recervabiles = credit - . "
impaired

Tutal 1,529.11 498,94 8792

K8

. 1,105,842

Less Allowanies Tor expected cradil
Total

137.79)
2,058.01

Cush und cash equivalents
Particulars

Amaount as at Amaunt as al
A1 Mapeh 2025 3 March 2024

a) Cash and cash equivalents
Halances with schiduled hanks
= 0 CUrrend acedumis

b} Bunk balances other than cash and cash cquivalents
Depasit with orginal maturity miste than 3 wenths but less than 12 months*

Refer note 35 for disclosure of far valies in respect of financinl assels
SIS0 miblens (30 Mareh 2024 20 50 millions s veder Ben wirb banks

82705 GEn S0
627,08 5650
0.5 0,50
.50 1L.50

) Reconcilintion between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liahilities arising from financing sctivities fexeept dividend paid):

Particulars Lemsee lnbilities Shart term
horrowings
Uhpening Balance ax on | April 2023 AN Hi "ol
Mon cash changes due 1o
= Recopmition af Habilites R 50 .
= [mterest expense A dh
= Meletion adjustinent of lakilifies * (1.60)
Cash Mows during the year due b
- Repayment of Habilities 120000y -
Closing Balance us on 31 March 2024 41.8%
Non eash changes due o
« Recognition of liabilinies 1% 8% .
= Interesi expense i -
= Deletion adjustment of liabilites TEIN =
Cush Mows during the vear due in
= Repayment of hobilities 124 4 -
Closing Balonce as on 31 March 2025 580 -
dher current assels
Particulars Amaunt as at Amauni as ml
M March 2025 A Murch 2024
Halnnces with govemment suthanbics S0 b THR
Prepaid expernises Jnal IRK2
Export incentive receivable A i
Lioods and Services iy teeoverahle 1374 1419
Advance to supplicrs
- Considered good 1.0 3B
« Considered doubiful iwith significant inciease in credi nsk ) 3.0 110
12.9% 46,04
Less: loss allowance 15,80 111 3
710 MR
6122 105,

* i represents Goods and Services lpﬂi"ﬁliﬁ'rm:hrd gonls bn transit as i the vear end
-1, .I‘\_I.' " .'_-I

%

.
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15 Equity Share Capital

Particulars Anat As
31 Moairch 2023 31 March 2024
Authorised share enpital
33500 previnus year 22,500 11% Cumulitive Preference Share Copatal (2 100 cach) 225 a0
54275000 ipreviouy vear. 254275 0007 Equity Share Cagnial (2 10 cach) 154075 2,542 78
1,545.00 1,545.00
Issued share capital
O, 0D oo year D000 equity Shawe Capital (8 10 eachy 1,00 100
1,06 1.0
() Movemonts in share eapital
Particulars Number of Amount
shares
As ot 01 Apnd 2022 T T
Movement during the yeat 5 .
As ol 31 March 2023 IELXEI L 1 1
Maovement dunng the veat . .
As gl 11 March 2024 LLELAE R 1.
Mewement during the vear . .
Asat 31 March 2025 Imall 1.00

(i) Wight!'restriction attaehed (o equity shares and 11% comulative preference shares.

Kquity Shares: The Company las one class of equity shares having a par value of 2 10 per share. Fach shareholder 15 eligible for one vote per share held The
dividiend proposed by the Board of Directors 15 subjéct 10 the approval of the sharchelders in the ensuing Annual General Meating, exeept in vise of interim
divtdend. In the event of liguidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible 1o reccive the rematning assets of the Coppany aller distnhution of all preferential

mimounts, in propaction o thelr sharcholding

Preference Shares The authorised share capital inchudes 22 500 number of shates 1 11%s Camulative preference shares of # 100 gacl which are non yet issued

(b Shres held by Holding! Uliimate Holding Company andior their siubsidinrics:

Same of the shoreholden®

An At 3 Mareh 2028

As il 3 March 2024

Number e holding Numbher S hulding
Equity Shares of T 1= each held hy:
Tenneco Clean Air fndia Limited (formerly known us Tenneco Clean Air India Private [
[immeed ), the Holding Campany Hsl R - (1N
Tenneco Mauuntius | loldimps Lonted, Mavritus, {ngermedite Holdimg Compans . . o3 N L2 L
Tennaco Mautitiug | imited, A . Fellow subsidiary 1 Pe 7196 T
bR, 30M 1EH0%% LR 100%

(1) Details of shares hekd by sharcholders holding more than 5% ol the shares in the Company:

Name of the shareholders® As a1 30 March 2008 As gt 31 March 2024
Number Y halding Number % holding
Equity Shares of T 100 each held hy:
Tenmeco Clean Air India Limited (formetly known as Tenneco Clean Adr India Pravate . s -
Limited, the Holding Company
Tenmecs Manrities Flaldmgs | iniod, Mauritios dotermmodiane |lolding Compan o - " L e
Tenncoo Manritius Limited. Maunitius, a fellow subsidiary i s 7,050 il
*The whove information is fumished as per the shareholder register o the vear end
() Details of shares held by promaters of the Company:
Name of the promoter 1 March 2025 A1 March 2024
Sumber of %% of toinl Changes Number of % ol toial Changes
shires Shares  iluring the year shitres Shares during the yvear
Tenneca Clean Air Indin Limited [ formetly bnown as 99,900 10w 1001 - B .
Tenneco Cleun Al India Private Limited), the Holding
Company
Tenmeco  Mauritius  Doldings  Liminesd,  Mounitios, the |0y 02 K LI -
Hiolding Company
Tenneco Mauritius |imited, Maontius, a fellow subsidiary 1 [ LW a) 7 146 il s
LG 100% | (W1, 00N 1L

i) There are o shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or comminments. Further, theve are no shares thar have been issued during the last 5 vears
pursuant o u contraet withoul pasment being receivad incash, no share allotied as fully paid up by way of bonus shares o no shares bought hach

s agwien iy v bty Tofl Mok

CAMIDIO S,
. gt
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I Diher equity

Particulars Amount as at Awmount as af
M Aareh 2025 31 March 2024
Capital reserve 384 i
Capilal redemption reserve [ ek
Securities premim hin2 fhi2
Retaned carnings 1,212 39 4503 0
1122290 452415

(i) Copital reserve

Particulars Amount as ut Amount as at
31 Mureh 2025 31 March 2024
Balance as ot the beginnng of the vem 184 X2
Balance as at the end of the vear 384 184
By Capital redemption reserve:
Particulars Ampuntasal  Amount as al
M March 2015 31 March 2024
Hulance an at the begimning of the vear [ ns
Add movement dunng the year 5 :
Halance as ol the end of the year 65 .65
WY Securities pr
Particulars Amownt as sl Amouni as ai
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balanece as af the begimming of the yem B0 Bl
Add movement during the year 0 -
Balance as ai the end of the vear 00l 62
{iv) Hetained Earnings:
Pariiculors Amourtnswl  Amount as al
31 Mureh 2025 31 March 2024
Balonce as o the heginning of the vem 451304 572029
Less Dividend paid diring the vear ANEETN] (268320
Add Canprehensive income for e year 6,848 1 1.437.55
Bulanee oy at the end of the vear 10,212.3% 451364

Nature and purpose of other reserves
(1) Capital reserve:
Capital reserve 18 ottobutahle 1o mergens n pron years

(i) Capltal redemption reserve:
Capital redempiion reserve is the accumulatbon of profit on forfeiture of preference shires

(i) Securities premium:
Securitics premiim is ased o recond the premm on issoe of shires. The reserve i atilisad in secondance with the provisions of the Act

T han e Bin by angupinasnally b fr Mardy
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17 Lease labilities

Nen carrent Current
PParticulars Aamaonind as al Amauni &% sl Ameian| as ol Amnunt as at
31 March 2005 3 March 2024 M March 2018 3) March 2024
Lease hihilities ( refer note 1) 14.38 3552 21.52 16 36
14.28 1552 21.582 1636
Refer note 35 tor disclosure of fair vidwes in respect of lnancinl labilities
18 Provisions
Nun currend urrent
Particulars Amounat as af Amound as nl Amnunt & al Amauni s at
31 March 2025 3 March 2024 31 March 2005 31 March 2024
Proviston for warrnntiies (refer node (a7 helow ) . . 10 12816
Proviston for emplnyee benefits
Provigion for compenzated absences (tefier nate (b helow ) " . 12981 113154
Priwiston for gratuily (refer nobe (¢} belivw) 419 26 A0 1719 12 80
41.94 26,40 263.69 154.50
{n) Movement in provisian for warraniies:
Provisinns movement Amount as at  Amount as al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening halance 128,16 17259
Add- addivional prosisions made duriag the year 6,51 13,88
Less utitised during vhe year 7158 5829
116,09 12816

Closing Balance

Warmanty estimates are established using historical information on the nature. frequency and average cost of warmanty clams and also monagement
estimates regarding possible future outllow on servieing the customers foF any comechive actnn in respect of product failure

() Compensated ahsences
‘e smnount of provision of € 12981 (previous vear € 113 540 is presented as current. sinee the Company does not have an uncandinional vight to defer
senbement for any of these obligations

T used in detenmining the compensaied phiences benelit obhigalion aie as piven el

Particulars Amuount as i Amount as at
31 Mareh 2028 31 March 2024

Finpricial sasumplions
[iseount mte 0,50 T.20%,
Salary growth rate L 00

Lk i

Muortahity rate Indian Assured Lives Monality Indian Assured Lives Morality
§ 2000108 ) LT Rbmate 1201 2143 Uimate
[Hzabiliny rate S of Morality Rare s of Morality Rate
Withdrawal rate 7 50" 35,
Retirement age SR vean S8 vinrs

() Grataity (defined benelit plan)

The Company provides for gty for emplovees in India as per the Payment of Gratiiy At 1972 Emplovees who ore in continuous service for a petiod
ol 5 vears arc eligible for gratuity The amount of gratuity payable an retirement termiination is the employees Jast divan basee sulary per month computed
propurtianately for 15 days salan multiphed G the numbet of vears of service. The gratuity plan s s funded plan and the Campany makes contributions 1o
recopnived fund in Inda, | ife Insurance Corpormtion (LIC)

Particulars Amount ns i Amuunt ns al
A1 March 2028 31 March 2024
A. Change in defined benefit abiligation (1R
efimed benelfit ohligation al beginning of year 1 T4y 17175
Current service cost 1793 13,39
Interest cost 1204 1254
Henefil payments fiom plan aasets TENED {14y
Axtuanial foss iy 23 19.23)
Definedd henefit obligntion a1 the end of the year 235,70 174,46
Particulnrs Amunnd s wl Amaunt as al
A1 March 20251 3 March 2024
B, Change in fair valoe of plan assels
i walise of plon assels al beginning of vear 134,26 12nn
Interest insoane [[IE A LA L
Emplover contributions 14 45 1235
Henefit payments foan plan assets 131 114,007
Remeasurements - returt on assels (excluding imgtest incame) 1 A i3
17497 133,26

Fair value of plan asss of year
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Particulars Amouni as a Amnunt s al
M Muirch 2028 31 March 2024
€', Assets apd liahilities recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of funded defined benefit ahligation M 17446
Far value of plan asscls 17397 135.36
Nel Hability avising from defined benefit obligation £49.73 39,30
Net Linbility recognised in the Balance Sheet
Current liahiliny 1779 12 80
Mon-current Hability 4104 3640
Tustal 5973 349,20 |
Pariiculars Amununi as ai Amount as ni
31 March 2025] 31 March 2024
1. Reconciliation af amounts in Balance Sheet
Mot delined beneit lability ot beginning of the vear 3 440l
Delined benefit cont included i Statement of Profit and Loss 1933 1677
Total remcasitements ineluded in Oiher Comprehensive (Incomei Loss Jnns 9 35)
Fmploscr contributians b the fund (39 45) 11225)
et defined benefit linhility .73 19,20
Particulars Amaunt ns ni Amaunt & al
31 Mareh 2025] 31 March 2024
E, Tatal expense recognised bn Statement of Profit & Loss Account
Service coal
o Current serviwe cnsl 17493 13,39
Tivtal service cost 17.93 13.39
et anlerest cost
a Intercst expense on delined benelit oblipation 1208 1354
b, Interest incoma) on plan assets i Ny (LR LT}
Tastal et Interest coat 140 L35
Delined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit and Lo 19,33 16,77
Hemeasurement
o Actuaral gpain | loss die 1o linancial sssumplion changes in DEO 42,50 .63
b, Actuarial (Goin) ! Loss dug tis Experience on DO (L LY i101.85)
¢ Rt on Man Assets (Exeluding Interest Income) il 64y 013y
Total setuarial (gain) included in other comprehensive income A,65 {'.35)
Total expenses 80,98 742
¥, Major category of plan assels as % of total plan assets
Insurance managed funds ({1 100 .
€. Expected contribiuting to the gratuity fund for the nest year T7.62 1426
H, Actusrial assumptions
| U
INseomint rale 300 T2
Salary gmnlh rale | [IEET BN
Expected tute of retum on plan assels i A0 7200,
Demographic pasunipiens
Maorialiy rale Indian Assured Lives|  Indian Assured
Moraliy  Ji6-08))  Lives Morality
I Midrmate 1200 2-144
kit
. ol Mertality] 5% of Mopality
I isabiliny rabe Rints Pirind
Withadrawal rake 7 50 35,
Retirement age 5K years S8 veats
1. Weighted average duration of DBO {years) 00 588
(i ypuin e B Boeway pntecenimadly” ey iy
el
3 1
Fl
r/ 3
I )o
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A Maturhy analysis - Expeeted cash Mow for following vears

Year- | Within | vear 18 36 12 80
Year - 2 Between | to 3 years 6201 187
Year -4 Belween 3 10 5 years b8 L] 9 8
Yowr - & Later than § vears 16328 4063

K. Sensltivity analysis®

Giratunly

Tt on X80 due 1 diseonnt rates fup by 1%5) NAM (CI R
EfTect on DO due to discount rates (dowe by 1% 25404 1% 70
Effzet on THO doe e salary escalation fup by 1% RER N T [LTRR]
FiTect on FIEOY due w salury escabatinn (down by 140 21637 161.24
Fiieet on TRO due o withdrmwal rmtes up by 1% anwmn 174 44
Fffeet on DB due to withdrawal rates (down by 1%4) %0 17578

* Discount rate, salary escalation tate and withdrawal rate nee significant actuarial assumprions The change in the present value of Defined Heneli Chligaiion
foor @ change of 100 basis points in the sighificant actusnal assumption s given above

Limitation of sensitivity analysis:

The above scasitivity analysis are based on a change in dn assumption while holding all other assumptions constant In practice, this s unlilely i occur, and
changes in some of the asswinptions may be correlaied When caloulating the seimsativity of the defimed benelit obligaton 1o gignificant actuanal acsumptions.
the same methad i present value of the defined henefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit methad at the end of the reporting petiod) bas been
applied as when calculming: the defined benelit hability recognised in the balince sheat

There was no change in the methids used in preparing the sensitivity atalysis fom prioe years

L. Risk exposure

Valuations are hased on certain assumptions, which are dynamic i nature and vary sver ime As sich valuating of the Unmpany is evposed 1
Following risks -

o) Salary increasest Higher thin expectod increases in salary will increase the defined benelit abligation

i Investment risks Since the plan is funded then assels labiliies mismatch and actual nvesiment return an psscs lower than the discount rate sssumed i the
last valustion date can impict the defined benefin obligation

¢) Langevity: The present vatue of the delined benefit plan hability is caleulated by reference 1o the best estimite of the morshity of plan parscipants both
dhuiring wnd nfler their empbovment An increase i the life expectancy of the plan parteipants will ingrease the plan's lability

&) Discount rate: The defined benefit ohligation caleulated uses a discount twe bused o government hands, I hond yields (all. the detimed benefit abligation
will tend 1o incicase

¢ Interest riski A dececase in the hond interest rate will increase the plan Tabidity. however, this will be panially offset by on increase in the value of the
plar's debt investinients.

1) Mormiity and disability: If the octun] deaths and disabulity cases are Jower o higher than assumed in the valuaiion, it con impact the defined benefil
obligation

g0 Withd rawatlst IF the actual withdrawals are igher or lower than the assumed withdrawals or there 15 @ change in withdrawal rtes al subsequent valuations,
it can impait defined benefin obligation

Other non-current liahilitics
Particulars Amaunt gaul  Amound as al
3 March 2025 3 March 1024
[heferred income (Wling contracts | M43 | Tl
241.43 1 7664

T ypree s Been antomiosally fott Blank)
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Vendor bill linancing
Particulars Amount 5 al Amount as ol
31 March 2025 3 March 2024
Vendor bl financing 503, 44 481.32
803,44 AR1.32

Mate: Vendor hill financing refers o the balances payable to the hanks post supplicrs discounting their inveloes under supplier financing armngements. This
facility Is 10 enable sebect vembors to seceive ey pavment for their invoices directly fom the hank and the Company makes the payments within the due dates
aered with the supplicr and there dre no special guarntees to secure the payments o be made

Trade Payahles

Particulars Amnauni s at Amigrant as al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total outstanding ducs of micre enldmprises ond small enterprises irefer note 435 B14.3% 0 40
Total eiststanding dues of ereditors other thon micro enterprises and small enterprises® 2.3uh 49 160307
3,210,584 3347
*Refer note 37 for relaned party halances
[Refer note 3% for disclosore of Tair values in pespect of Gnaneial labiliies
Trade payable ageing schedule as 11 31 March 2025
Particulars 1] ding for following periods from due date of payment
Unhilled Mot dine | Liss thum 1 year 1-2 yenry 2.3 vears More than 3 venrs Tatal
1) MSRE® [ Kiih 82 153 . - . 21435
iy i nbvers 440 18 (R RS THR 193 b 1) 0 dn e TR U
b D sputed dues - RISME E s " % . . >
tiv ) Disputed dues - Others - - = = - - -
Trade payable ngeing schedule as at 31 March 2024
Particulars Outstunding for following perinids from due dote of payment
1/ nhbilled Mot due | Less than | year I=1 venrs 1-3 vears Maore than 3 years Tiilal
(i) MSME* . han s il . . 049 TOK AN
i) i Mhers AR RE7TI 1. 368 00 a4 184 197 10307
iy Dsputed dues < MSME . . - 5 s
i iv) Disputed dues - Oibers - - - - . c -
*MSME ax per e Micro, Small snd Mediom Enterprises Developmint Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)
Oiher Mnancial Habilities
Particulars Amaunt asal  Amount as b
A1 March 2025 31 March 1024
Capiial crodiiors® 5181 1650
Emplovee beriefits payable 74 #2 1
ihers®* 1300 L]
141163 119.31
*Refer note 37 for refated party balances
o Rler mote 13 for disclosure of fair values in respect of financial liabilities
Cither current labilities:
Particulars Amount as ol Amaount as al
M March 3025 31 March 2024
Advance Tiom costomers. 463 T4.58
[Pelerred incomie (aling contracts) i 58
Customer security deposit 07 0 B
Sistutory dues 15739 23).2%
Prayable to reluned party (refer poe 37) - 737
14388 EELEE]
Current (s Habilities (nei)
Particulars Amaount asat Amonnl s at
M Murch 2025 31 March 2024
Current fax linhilines inel of sdvange tix) #9219 3.
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Tenneca Automative India Private Limited

Notes 1o the Standalone Finnncial Ststements for the year ended 31 March 2025

AN comeninits gn & Afflons, sndss atherne e

25 Hovenue [rom nperalion
Particulars Fur the year ended  For the year ended
A1 March 2028 31 March 2024
Sule of goods i AT43 ILEERTE
Satle of servides
Information technology enabled services wun 154 60
Rusiness support somvices 7300 7572
Engineening services 79,05 71.53
10,7212 1R,590,51
Other nperating revenue
Scrap sales o2 1156
et incentines 274N piik
il i 54584
20,7R1.61 1864505
Heconclliating of vevenue recognised with conteact price: Fur the year ended  Far the vear ended
A1 March 2028 31 March 2024
Contracted price NHTEBS 19,134 K7
Adjustmenis:
Liess: discounts, rebates, velunds and coadis 29204 489 83
Revenue rom opralbns HL7RLL6) 18,645.05
¥ Chher income
Particulars For the vear ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 M March 2024
Interest ineome on
« fixied deposits with hank M 15 49
= frieame 1ax refund LR 1] .
- financial asséls al amonised cost .72 134
Liahility no longer required written-hack 120 -
Prondsion for doubtiul advances 1o sepplier written-hack 542 "
Foreign exchange Muctuation (net) g0 .73
[Hvidend from Subsidiary* hOTR L 497 54
Miscellancius income 11,35 149
ML7 £43.14
*Refer note 37
27 Cost of materials consumed
Marticulurs Far the yewr endisl  For the yoar ended
31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
Oipening stock 452 60 41950
Add: Purchases 1435702 12,756 84
Less: Closing stock (453 00 (45284}
Maw materinls consumpition 1435662 12,724.14
28 Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progres
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening stock
Work-in-progress 125 4 141 20
Finished goads Lt fud 294, 14
29503 437,30
Lesst Closing stock
Wark-in-jagress {1 3 S 112539)
Fimshed goods 75440 {1t d )
(31240 {292.04)
(Inerease) decrease ln inventarics {20.37) 145.27
19 Emplovee benefits expense
Particular Far the year ended  For the year ended
A1 March 2025 31 Murch 2024
Salaries, wages and honus 11367 1063, 14
Contnbution to provident and other funds [refer nate (o) below | 4808 4901
Ciratusly expense [refer note 18(c)] 1933 16,67
Sunll wellane expernses 140,67 139,39
134480 126811
{a) Defined contrilution plans
Amoent recognised in the Suernent of Profit and |oss
1) Prowident fund 4499 4518
() Employee stale insutune 3. 3,79
= 808 W7
EANIDIgES
Qe




Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited

Nates to the Standalone Finaneial Statements for the year ended 3 March 2028

AT animvinris b # X illins, wefens otharrmidne st

n

3

31

Finance conls

Particulars

For the vear ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 A1 March 2024

Interest on lease hobaliny
Interest on delaved pasment of nises
(Whir interests

Diepreciatlon snd amoriisaiion expense

4.2 446
(469 ¥
i 84 338
49.77 0. 1%

Pariiculars

For the vear ended  Far the year ended
31 Murch 2028 31 March 2024

Dheprectatisn on progpeity, plant and equipment (refer nole 1)
Depreciation on right-oluse avsets (refer note 3
Amartisation of mtsngible asscts (refer note 4§

Other exprnses

366 54 154 66
Iy 18,70
257 134
RS2 37476

Particulars

For the year enidedd  For the vear ended
3 March 2025 3 March 2024

Cisnsumiption of stones and spares
Packing materals consumed
Power and fuel
Freaght and forwarding charges
Fepars and manienance

« Buildings

« Plant and machineny

= [Mhers
Rent jreler pote A0
Rates and taves
Travelling and conveyvance
Insurance
COmmunicalion expemses
Prmting and sttionery
gl andd profiessinnal fees
Puyment o puditoee [refer note (o) below)
Provision for expected credit loss
Proviston for doubiful advanees
Research and development expenses
Coptractual labour expenscs
PProndision for Warranty expenses
Lnss on sale of property, plant and equipment {nel)

Comporate social responsibility (CSH) expenditure (refer natelh) helos )

Rovalty espense (refer note 37)

Management support charges (iefer note 37)
Miscellaneons expenses

() Auditors remuneration {eveluding applicable taves)

054 M7.17
17798 265 56
RER R 200 40
17018 150,52
E%.1 LA
143,80 137 19
1827 2085
ah 1K
18 8% 7.72
088 T tl
1567 15 Th
792 (NG
TR 1212
o8 T A5.46
9am 510

3 40y 1290

- 4 M
4311 H0L.73
T 62 33320
TR 1384
2.2 A8
61 1267
468 74 908 44
al dn 142 51
i 2% 497 K2
244480 1861K5

Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended
M Magch 2025 31 March 2024

Statutory pudit fee X 4 Ko
Oithers 230 030
9,110 A0
s spurce hian Aeenn stemtonlly begt Mavls
» N
[ )
) {-
2
1




Tenneco Antomaotive lndia Privaie Limiied
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
LN cempnnnas i 8 A filfians, nndoss atherwase stateed)

th) Carparate Saeial RespamibilingCSH)

a) Civoss ot regquired 1o be spent by the Company duning the yvear in compliance with section 155 of the Act s 2 1661 millions (previous year & 32 67

mnhns)
b} Amount spent during the vear on
Particulars Far the year ended 31 March 2028 For the vear ended 3 Mareh 2024
In Cush Yot i he Tovtal I Cash Vet 1o e paicd in Taal
pid in cash sith
(1) Conmstructhon acquisithan of poy assel » - - - - -
1) U puarposen other than (1) alwove 4723 - 47,31 .12 = M2
41.22 - 47.22 301 - M2

€1 Al experees dises ol fnlude contribution 1 any related pany of the Company

o Details of excess amount spent
Opening | Amount requived o ] Amount spent | Closing
Balamce | be spent during the |during the year|  Balance
1734 Inhl 4122 1788

¢) Thie Company's Board of Dircetons in ns meeting held on 16 May 2025 passed a resolation for unlisation of excoss amounl spent during the vear i

accondance with provision of section 1331 %) of Companies Act, 2013

£ The Company does ot have provision for corporate sovial responsibility eypense at the end of the previous year. FPurther. the Company docs nol have

provision in respeet of ongaing project in seprate CSR unspent account for the year ended 31 March 2022

I} The Company's corporate social responsibility involve proamotion of education. presentive healiheare, emplovment enhancing vocalion skills and rural

development piojocts

(b wpaae da Bewn asteainamnally bt My




Tenneco Automative lndia Private Limited
Notes o the Standalone Finuncial Statements Tor the vear ended 31 March 2025
LA crmpenssints g & Nilhon, alicee ot shatdall

33 Taw expense

Particulars Faor the year enided  For the year ended
M March 2025 M March 2024
Current lax 1.441.50 33307
Tax pertaining 1o carlier years o 440
Iheferred tax charge’ (eredi) [EER LT 545
141498 nn

The major compenents of income tax expense and the reconcibiabon of expense based on the domestic effeciive tax rale of al 250170
31 March 20240 3507 e and the repaned tax expense in profi or loss are as follows

Particulirs For the year coded — For the year ended
3| Mareh 2025 Al March 2024
Provdit befisre income L expenses 8393 56 177347
Prevalent tax sate of 23 168w (previous year . 25 168% ) 2087 22 A4k 38
Tay elfects of amounts which are not deductibde - (allowable) in eabeulating taxable income
Mon-deductible expenses for tax purpose 1234 17200
Mividend Income RN (1253
Tay related w earlier vears i AHI 439
Income taxable at dilferent rase on sale of subsidiary 1023 20y -
Cthers 1437 030
Incame lay expense I A14.97 34192

A Assels elassified as held for sale

During the vear ended 31 March 2025, the Board of Divectors of the Company, a1 its mecting held on 10 January 20238, passed o resalution o sell the entire
sharcholding in Maple Rencwable Power Private Limbied ("MRPPL") Accordingly. the Company issued o notice of lermination of the agrecment via letter
duted 7 March 2025 1o disinvest its investment in MRIPL. This mvestment as at 31 March 2025 is pending to be transfered as at halance sheel date
Conseequently, the imvestiment s been classified as an “Asset Held Tor Sale®

Subsequently, on 16 May 2025, the Company sohd is entire shareholding i MIRPPL i a tobal consideration ol 28 70 million
The details of Magle Renewable Power Private Limited as ot 31 March 2025 as held for sale

Particulars Amonnt ns wi 3 Muarch 20235
Assets clussilied as held for sale 270
Total K70
Liabilities relating to nssets ¢lassified as held for sale %70
Total K70

—— e
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Tenneco Automoiive India Private Limited

Sotes b (he Standalone Financial Statements for the year enided 31 March 1025

FAN aimsivnin i & Adlfons, dnilend otlie v dabicud)

37 Related party disclosures

{n) Name of eebated partics and nature of rilationship:

i Parent entities:
Uhimate holding company !

Inimedinte lolding company

Intermediate halding compunics:

inl Subsidiary compuny:

Pegasus Holdimgs One LLC

Tenneco Clean Air ndia Limited (formerly known as Tennecn Claan Air Indis Private Limined)
(with effect from 25 March 2025,
Tenneen Mauritivs Hobdings Liovted. Mot (all 24 Basch 2025)

Teomeeo LLE, USA (formerly, Tennecn Inc, U1SA)

Tenneca Automotive Cperating Company LLU (famery, Tennecn Automotive Operating Company
Inw . TFSAG

Tenneco Intermational Holdimgs Carp . USA

Tenneco Glohal Holdmgs Inc., USA

Tenmevo Masris Limsted. Maurifius

Motocare India Private Limited, tndia il 24 Masch 2028

[T Parties under comman control with whom transactions have faken place during the year

Fellow subsidinries

(] Key management persannel

Tenmeco Amomative Trading Company LLC (fomierly known as Tennecn Autamotive Trading
Comipany )

Tennecn Automotive Furope BV . Belgium {formerly, Tenneen Autnmotive Furope BVEA
Helguim)

Advanced Suspension Technology LLC § formerly. Dny' Automotive Ine. )

Tenneen Automotive Brazil Lid

Monmoe Mesien S 13 R L 108 OV (formerly, Monroe Mevico 8 ATV, Mexico)

Monmoe Crechia S RO, Cooch Republic

Frie Rt 5 A LC, Argentina

Tenmeeo Automotive Basterm Burope Spe o, o,

Tenneco Kide Contool Somth Africa (07 ) Lid |, South Afrhea

Tenneco (Suzhou) Co Lid . China

Tenneco Korea Limited, South korea

Tenmeco {Changzhon) Kide Contral Sxstem Coo Lad (formerdy, Tennceo (Changehou) Ride
Performance. China)

Federal Mogul Coventry Limaied, LK

Frederal-higul Motorparts ( Indin) Limited. India

Federal-Mogul Motorparts LLC

I3 Japan 1L, Japon

Tennecn i Suzhou) Ride Contenl Co |l China

Monpoe Australia Pty Lid i formeely, Montoe Australug

The Pullman Company LLC (fomeily, The Pallman Company i

Federal-Mogu! de Mexica 5 de RL de OV (fomaly, Tenneco Mexico 5 de RIL de OV
Federal-Mogu| Motorparts (Smgapore) Pue Lid (foemerdy. Federal-hMogul Motarparts (Singapare)
FLd)

Federnl-Magul of South Africa (Propriety ) Limied (farmetly, Federal-Mopul of 8 Afriea)
Motocare India Private Limited, India « from 25 March 2025)

M RO Subrampsiam, Managing [irgctor

Ar. Praveen Kumar Singh, Director

Ms Mayuri Ramdasi, Company Secretary (1l 14 January 2025)
Mz Priva Nimje, Company Secretary (foim 15 May 2025}

The above listing inclades the related parties with whom tmnsactions have taken place in the cument year or previous year

(T apew dins en anicaninomnally fofs Bl




Temuecn Nitamative Indis Privare Limbied

Kl fis the Stand alisne Finamelsl Statements for the year ended 31 Masch 2018

ST spesminsansty e 4 N elfiean, wrvnlnn ol pie ARIRATY
Related party disclosures (goni'd)
{io) Tramsactinns with ihe velated pariie i the ardiniry woiptie il havimr

Satirr of iramuactinn Nature of related party Far the year ended | Far the yrar caded
i M March 1k 31 March 2034
i) Sale ol pands ’ -

Tennecn Avtamosive Operating Company LLC iformerly, Toaneco

Ausomalive Opersting Conymany e , LISA) Jestermiediaie balding compant wa2 iAo

Adbvanced Suspension Tehialigy LU | foensey, 10V Autsitive dnc b Fellow wahal diniy N1y T

Tensacn Ausvmtive Banape DY | Belghen (fornseily, Tranéoo Autamotive Pellaow sabindifisny (R A

Fuipe WVEEA |, Dl jium)

Temnes Ausmetive Tradig Company LLC ifommenis bnswn a8 Teanedn Fllow sbvsldhary 1 %0

Astomativg Tradimg Company )

Tenneco Ride Contyid Sowth Afkiea (MTY ) L3, Soulb Africa Fellwn subaidiry a7 21 4

Teaneco Awnoive Easten Baoge S8 2000 Poland Fellow subwidiary 0 0]

Sanioe Mevion S DE R 1 DEC Y ifommerly, Monrog Meven 8 AC Y Fellon mbwmdian (L] 0

Menicn)

Monpcare faiin Private | i, fndia e Lowrpri RIE R
Doy Japam Lol Tapan Felliw saiisidasry o b}
Tere Aimmeriive Biraedl Lnl Fllina saih sicdeary (B b
Frderal-Magul of Sk Africa (Proprichyl Limited Wamerds| Federal-Magad
of 8 Alrica) Feltow wihwdaany e
Federal-Magul Mataipans {Sngapoin ) Pre Ltd ifmmnty, Federal-Aogl
Mopepades  Singapoiei Pk Faltra wibuldiary 1 .
Fric ot § A LC . Argenting Felliw adisidiany 23 3n 1253

Twisl (IR [FILEE
jil) Sale ol seryioe Dnformation fechnolegy caabled servioe

Tenmeen LLE . VSN (ammerly, Tenneco bne , 'S A) iermadiaie halding compan s RE 1500
Taial T (X0
| iy Sakle 0F worviors: Hivdaess Suppert Seesbors

Tenneson LLE_ U'SA iformely, Toaneco bng, VEA) Intermpdiate hodding compam 27 "

Temneca Amtomative Friope BV, Belgiun (foemarly, Terneds Aubimitive Felliva dvaldhisry A2 0 ¥ Ky

Fairope WVILA, Relgrum)

mrm’;?m'& . l"S:lu ity Fuiete Irnprmuinte bl ding company 22 1

Fedoral Mol Mtorparts LLC Fetliw sibaidian 2 50 (L
[Tatal 306 7878
{0 ) Firchare ol gmnds

Tenneeo Automiotlve Futwpe By | Deignan plarmmly, Temnero Awiomaiive Fellaw wibabiliany a2 Tt LY.L

Fistope BYBA , Welyiiam)

Mionnoe Caechin 5 RO, Ceoch Repulilic Fellow sebradidiary i (]

Tenseco Wide Control Soush Afriea iFTY ) Ll South Afica Falliw sathutdiary b4 1R

Advaneed Suspension Techsalogy LLC | fusmeily. DAY Automutive Ine ) Fellaive saihvia Bty 149 aa

Tenmedo {Sushon) Ca Lod | Ching Fillow sbvaiiary j it Wi

Tenatcn (Changeehou) Ride Comral %y sem Ca Lid (faomery, Terneco

[T hangrhou) Ride Merfermance, Ching Feltom whidian 187 20

Temnecw Awrtometive Hraedl L Felliva subsidiary 149 E5 1]

Phriy Rmpan Lad | bapan Fellows subsidtiary . i

Temneco | Sibensh Ride O oo O 1l Ching Felliny vabssidiary ant 204

Tiemneco Automative Fasiern Fumpe Sp ¢ a @ Fellow subaidian 1 i a4

Fedeval Magul Coventy Lmiind, 1K Fllons ughdiany 2486 140

The Pullman Company |1 (formethy, The Pullman Comgany ) Feblon sbaldiany s in?
Tﬂlll FLL) Lddmi
s ) Paeeboase af propaity, plant amd rguipmes

Advanced Sisspensinn Techalogny LLE | formely, 10 Aubimitive In ) Fellow subsiidiary . T

Mliwtioe Nisstnalis Pry Luch i firmersly, Mymine Aerirnliab ¥ piloms sihisicamey - LI i
Toaal = (LN
i
(vilh Kesimbarvemeni of expeanes pald

Peie bupn Ladd | Lapan Fellww subsidiary 2
Temnean Clean Air India L imated aformerly bronn as Tenmeoa Clen Aar India Urmnediane Bl ding comipasy a
Private Limited) v 25 March 20250 |

Vennesa A ¢ Iatiipe WV, Belpoum [Foemerdy, Tenneco A '3 Fellum aubsidian g 1)

Eurepe BVRA | Relpum]

Fric ot & A 10, Avpeating Fllons sudsshdiary i 80 .
Twial Ly WAl
(v} Br-inibsrsement of eyvproses recebied
Tenneon Clean Air Tndia | insised (farmasty hoowa ai Toweos Cleas A India Tinimgdiate holding company PP
Prrvane Liniited) ifram 28 March 102%) i

Pl sk
Metosare Indis Privare Limired, India Phosc 15_&!'#*&:}‘2-‘1 . a8
Taul i e & il

e
M0y =




Tenweea Autameiive ladia Privale Lismited
Nabes 0s the Stamibalany Financial Sn foor the year onded 31 Sarch 2028
Al arvamnadi grd § At il st i ikifeuli

Helated party diachornres fenni’el)

1) Tranueisiens with the relaird parides b ibe srdinars course af

Nabiew of tranunciben Natwre of rebaied pariy Far the year emibed | Vr the vear enided
datiamsbi M Mlapeh 2028 M March 2014

iy Sabe nl imvestment

Vederal-Megul Matoiparts Iadia Linsived el wubsidiang LR iRE] -
Tutal LELIET] .
iin) lniwresi on reseveiabile from pelatel pariy

Fusberal Aoyl Mitaparts India §insitod Fellomy sikaidiar i A
Ttal [

(u) timin aim wide of vestmenijabaddiang )

Feuberal Mogud Motarpares ndis |imited Feeblonw sbsidiany ERITED! .
Tatal ERITE]] -
in i) Thin ibemed woceluwdd

Mlotacane India Privaie Limoed, [ndia Subsuidiary ;":_l |4 BT R
(Tubal FLINL] RET]
el Diddend padd

Imireedisre hodidng company f Adin
Temneco Maisiiion Holdings Limated. Mo T3 Musch 2038 1 fits td 2482 28

Tonncco Masnnus Linied. Marin Itrmiedpate baldifg compan, [ | o
(Tuial L4man 1,641 J0
i) Ry aley

Tenmevu Automotrve Cperating Cosnpany LLC ifirmaly, Tonnecs -

Audommine Opersiing Company Ine, 18A) Iniermidinie hotding company e A
| Tl 4458 b L]
nivh Management suppori dharges

Tenmevi Auimesive Upernting Company LLC leeserly, Tenseca .

At tive Chperaiing Company Inc 1EAG Inke it comipan bk P
Total 9540 [N
nn ) Beimaneralisn to bey mamagerial prosanpel

M LU Subewmasian Managing Directod T 120

M Praveen Kumar Singh Dligecton 1man 170

Comgpany. Secotany .
A Blovurd Wamnlas 14 035y (] 24
[ Tutal 209 HET

Nokea:

15 AN wabes and purchase shene ae incliasive of GST (wherever pplicable) Sales and purchases arg net af the renrmy

) Kev Managetial Personmel wha are under the employmenst of the Cismpasny ate pnibibed o pai-enapligmye beagfin asid ather long e employes kenafite
pecognived oy per bnd AS 1% - ‘Employee Densfits |n the Gnanclal vatements As these ampboyee henelit an bump sum ansoosts pros ided o8 the hasis of achimad
villuaion. the samg s il pncluded ahove
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Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited

Nates to the Standalone Finpncial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

AT cominints on & Abdhans, welesy otherwie il

Related party diselosures (eont’d)

{¢) Ralances with celated parties #s al the year end 31 March 2025:

Particulars Nature of related party Amount ms al Amuuni us at
relationship 3 March 2025 31 Mureh 2024

(i) Trade payalile

;:':l‘:n‘; ::f;‘p"::’::::f::‘."“w:; ol ,'l'r' £ (formerly, Tenneco intenmediate: helding conpany 212 1% #40.08

Tenneco Automalive Burope WV, Belghum { formerly, Tenneco Automative Fellow subwidiary L IR e

Furope BYHA , Helgim)

Advanced Suspension Technalogy LLC (¢ foemerly, DAV Awomotive Ing Fellow subsidinry 2 1.73

Monroe Caechia 5 R O, Crech Repubhe Fellvw subsidiary i1 018

Tenneco Automotive Fastem Futope Spz oo Fellow suhsidiary 2l 039

Tenneco Ride Control South Africa (FTY )L South Afnca Fellow subaidiary ngl nR7

Driv Japan Lul , Japan Fellow subsidiary fal 113

Tenneco {Suzhoui Co , Lid | China Frellow subsidipry 02 i1t

Tenneeo Automative Brasdl L1 Fellow subsidwry 0n3h i i

Tenneco horea Lid . Seqith Korea Fellow submidiary 54
Tenneco 10 hangdhou) Ride Control System Co Lud (formerly, Temneco Feellow subsidiary 120 ol
(Changehou) Ride Performance, Chinng

Tenneco {Sushoup Ride Comtrol Co, Lad China Fellow subaidiary N2 .

Federal Mogul Coventry Limited, 11k Fellow subsidiagy nsl na2

Tennecn Automplive Fastemn Europe SP 200, Poland Fellow subsidian . ihai
Tatal 17444 [TENE]
(i) Capltal ereditors

Tenneco Automative Furope BY | Relpium (formerly, Tenneca Fellow subsidian, . n3l

Automotive Furope BVIEA | Belgium)

Tenneco Aulometive Eastern Europe Sp s o o Felhm subwidiary - (LE

Advanced Suspension Technology LLE ( fopmerly, DV Automntive ne. Fellow subsidiany . 047
Total B L6l
{iii) Pavables o velated party
Tenneco Clean Alr Indin Limdied (formerly know as Tenneco Clean Aie Fellow subsidiary 7357
Irdin Private Limited)

Total - 1157
(iv) Trade recelvabiles

Tenneco LLC., USA (formerly, Tenneon tne , LISA) Intermediate halding company 1340 1497
r:;:mrmm;mmlﬂrwi.“ tiimuty, Tesnico Imtermedinte holding company 1589 a7

Advanced Suspension Technology LLC | formerly, Dl Autamotive Ine Fellow subsidiary And 5491

Tenneen Auiomobive Europe BY . Belgium (fomely, Tennecn Fellow subsidiary AR a8

Automative Furope BVRA , Relgium)

Tennaeo Ride Control South Africa (PTY ) Lid . South Afnea Fellow substdian 034 0
Monroe Mexieo 5.0E R L DEC V (formerdy, Montoe Mexien S AC V., Fellow subsidian 703 a7
Minica)

Iy Japan | |, Jupan Fellow subsidiory Snl A2

Tenneco Automplive Draeil Lid Fellow subsidian 43 741

Fellow subsidion

Motocare India Mrivate Limited, India i freim 28 March 2028) 274 32 229017

FRIC-ROT S A LC, Arpenting Fellvw subsidiary 12 142

Monroe Crechia 8 RO Crech Republic Fellow subsidian . 0m

Federal-Mojgul Motorpars LLU Fellow subsidiary I1% 0.39

Tenneco Automotive Faster Eumape Sp s o o Fellow sulisidiary [ (I iL]
Federal-Mogul Motorpans (Singapore) Ple Lid {formerly, Federal-Mogul Fellow subsidiary {18 ] .
Matorparts (Singapere) PLud)

Federal-Mojeul of South Aftica (Prwpriely ) Limitad {formerly, Federl: Fellow subsidiary sy .
Mupul of 5 Africal
Total JT4.H8 H197




Tenneco Automotive lodia Private Limited
Nofes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2028
TN st pe 2 AP, biless atlern i stteed)

Related party disclusures (coni'd)
(¢} Balamces with related parties as ol (he year end 31 March 2025;
Particulars Nature of related party Arvound s sl Amont ms ml
relationship 3 March MR M Mareh 2024
(%) Investminl
X ¢ Subwidiany -
Matocare India Provate Linited. India {111 24 March M35} - 235003
Tolal . 1.550.03
{vi) Reeoverahle from relaled parly
Feederal-Mogul Motorparts India Limned Fellow subaidinry #3130
£.312.10 -
i) Loss allowance for lraile receivables:
|.oss allnwanee Intemmedintie Bobdang company 192 1210
Fellow subsidian
Toial 1092 12,10

Note (i1 Loss pllowance has been detesmined by applying expocted credil loss model Loss allowance has been determined on the entire trade receivable bilanse

froum relued parties

The Company's material related party amactions are al ani's bengih and in the ordimary e of huziness Al outstamding recetvible halanves are wnsecuted

amd repay able in cash

{ihin wpce fu Revn bonnemlfe Jobt Sl




Tenneen Automotive India Private Limited
Nates 1o the Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
FALT conpiitints am # Milfions, pxgopd share dit, snlens athen i statadi

I8 Revenue related disclosures

o Revenue from Contracis with Customiers

Indian Aceounting Stindard 115 Revenne froan Contiacts with Castomers (“Ind AS 11575, establishes o fromework for determining whather, haw much and
when revenue is recopnised and requines disclosures about the nature, amount, tming and unceitainly of revnues and cash flows ansing from customer

contracts Under Ind AS 115, revenu is recopnised through a S-step approach:
{11 Bdentify the contrmcti <) with customer,

(1) Mdentily separate performianee obliiaions in the contract,

i) Dheierming ihe transaction price;

v Allocane the transaction prive 1 the performance obligations, and

(v) Recognise revenue when n performance oblipation is satisficd

b Disaguregation of revenue

Revenue recognised mainly comprises of sale of poods and services which magoly compiises of salle of shock observers,

other aulo componcals and services

related 1o infoemition technology, husiness suppon and enginerming services. Set ol below ix the disagpregatinn of the Campans s revenue fron oot

wath customers
Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2025 31 Mireh 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of goods and servaces
I nmcstic 19 16 5% 1716065
Fxport 1,556 12 14290 82
Uhiher aperating incdme bl 40 54 54
Tatal revenue covered under Ind AS 118 20,7R1.61 18,645,058
Particulars For the yeur ended Fur the year ended
3 March 2028 3 March 2024
Revenue by time
Revenie recognisad s paint in thae 20, 53473 [ERFER
Revenue recogpnied ol hime 24 BB 301,83
Tutal 20, 78161 1864505
¢ Contracl balnnces
The following table provide information aboul contrael lahilities fom contimel with customers
Particulirs For the year ended Far the year ¢nded
A1 March 2005 3 Murch 2024
Cantract Hahilitles
Advances fam customers 46l 7483
Diefemed income (tooling contraets | 17253 21019
Security deposits received [tom gustoners i 7 01 K6
Total contract Habilities 1mni 2R6.KR
i Trade receivables
The following table provides information about receivables fom contragt with custimers
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2028 31 March 2024
Heceivahles
Trade receivahles 12326l J1R5 82
Less © Allpwances for expected credit hoas 139.79) (37.79)
Nel receivables 3,191.82 1038.03
¢ Slgnificant changes in the contriet lialvilithes balances diring the vear ore as follows:
Particulars Aot &s ot 31 March 2025
ontrael Liakilitics
Deferred Income Advances from Security deposits
customers recelved from customers
Opening halance 21119 i3 .86
Additions dunng the year (RN 460 (i
Revenue reeopgnised during the vewr wmount refunded during the (74,750 (74K (N1
Closing balange 27153 463 .76
Pariiculars Amount as at 31 Mareh 2024
Contract Linhilities
Deferred lncnme Advanges from Security deposits
customers received (rom custamers
Opening balance 101,59 17.03 45
Addivions durieg the vear S0 T4.80 § a0
Revenie recognisad during the vear amaount relunded during ihe (k1 30y AT (1119}
Closing halance 1119 74,83 0.Ré

(e apsane s been bintoaitiowiaihy eft Mbandd
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Tenneen Automotive India Private Limited
Nutes 1o the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
Lt aampessnts om @ Mblvoms, cawopd stare it itk bhet e bt

Satisfaction of performance ahligations

The Company’s revenue is derived fram the single performance abligation 1 iransfer primanily s products under svangements in which the tansfor of
control of the products and the fulfilment of the Company s performance obligatinn eceur at the same time. Revenue from the sale of goods is reeognised
when the Company has transfermed control of thie goods 1o the buyer and the huyer obtains the henefits from the goods, the poteniial cash Nows and the
wmount of revenue (the Wansaction price) can be measured reliably, and it 1s prohatile thit the Company will collect the consideration to whiich it s entitled 10
in exchange for the goods

Wihiether the custaner has nhiained control over the nsser depenids on when the poods are made svatlable to the camer of the By er takes possession ol the
gonds, depending on the delivery terms. Revenue bs measured al the transaction price of the consideratinn received or recevable, the amount the Company
exprects 1o be entitled to

Paymeni terims
The sale of goods 18 typically made under credit payment terms dilfenngs [rom custome (o castomer and ranges berween 30-120 duvs (exclusding transit dayst.

Variahle considerations associated with such sales

Perindically, the Company annaunees variis solume and other rehate programs, where once o cerain solume of ofher conditions ule mel, 1 refunds the
custamer some portion of the amaunts previvushy billed or paid For such armngements, the Company oaly recognizes revenue for the ameunts it ultimately
expects b realize from the o The Company estimates the vamahle consideration foe these programs using the most likely amoum metbod o the
expected value method, whichever approach hést predicts the amaunt af the consideration based on the tetms of the controct and myailable information and

updates its estimates each reporting period

Segment information
in aceardance with Ind AS 108, the Board of Directors heing the Chiel operating decision maker of the Company has determimed s only one husiness

sement of manufaciuring of autn components and hence there are no ather identifiable reportable sepments
Furiber. in terms of parsgraph 31 of Ind AS 108, entity wide diselisutes have baen presented in the consolidated financial stalcmeits of thie Coumpany

Additienally, the analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers The following table shows the distribstion of the
Compary s sakes by penpraphical muket, regardless of where the gonds were poduced

Geographical information in respect of revenue fram customer Is grhven below:
Particulars Yenr ended Yenr ended
3 March 2028 31 Muorch 2024
Indin 149,230 19 17,208 70
Chiher coantries 1,550 K2 1436 35
20, TRLA] 1B 645,05
Carrving amount of seginienl debitors by geagraphical market (nel of provision)
Particulars Year ended Year emiled
A Maieh 2025 31 March 2024
Indin 218 130617
i Mher countnies 42093 18] 80
319082 1,058, 03

The Company has comman assets for producing goods for Indin and outside countries Hence, separate Ngutes for assets ndditions 1o property, plant and
equipment cannot be furnished.

ATl spwiiwe M B sntsctnaunally o fe Blaaly




Tennecn Autamotive India Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Finaacial Statements fur the year ended 31 March 2028
LT sosspentonts i € X Blfvenes, wvoeps shiere ki, onhess otherwine st

A, Leases

11} Asaets laken on lease

(i) Right-af-use
Fullowing are the changes In the carrying value of cight-af-use for the year ended 31 March 2025

[ Category of ROU awet |
Particulars Lenselohl lind Buildings Vehick Tutal
Groas earrying value
As il 01 April 2023 156,90 136,04 1603 RILR
Addditions tansices - 530 i K57
As it M March 2024 156,90 H1L.M 19.30 J17.54
Additinns transfers - 1371 I %4 1558
Disposals' adjustments - - (100 LRLE
As al 31 March 2028 156" 158,08 0,13 13208
As ol (1) April 2023 1262 9747 b 12009
Dicpreciation charge for the vial I 64 14 66 2 46 15 76
[ Hsposals adjusimenis * . X »
As a1 31 March 2024 14.26 11133 1336 139,958
Pepreciation charge for the year 1.6d 1w 155 LRE
Disposals mdjustmients - - (L LT] (L
As ai 31 March 2025 18590 124.27 15.43 15560
Net carrylog value
As at 3 Mareh 2024 14264 2500 5 177.50
As al M March 2018 140,000 7R 4.70 176,48

The aggregate deprecimion expense on tight-of-use assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the stafement of peorit and loss.

The following bs the break-up of enrrent and non-curvent lease Habilities for the year eniled

Purticulars Aminuni ns w Amount as ol
M March 2025 31 Mareh 2024

Won-carnent bease lahilities 14 18 .47
Curren leuse Jiahilities 2152 Ix 56
5,80 41,88

The followlng s the movement in lease labillities for the year ended 31 March 2025

Farticulars Amount s al
31 March 2015
As al 01 Aptil 2024 A1 88
Additsons 1558
Finance cost accried dunng the year 14
Deletions 1A
Pavment of leasg habalitics 124,48
35,80
The follow ing is the movement bn lease liahilithes for the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars Amaung s 8l
3 March 2024
A st (1] Ageil 2023 L L
Addions K 5h
Finanee cost accrued dunimg (e year 446
Paymment of bease lsbiliies {20,001
A41.88

The table below provides detalls regarding the contractual maturities of lease lialiilities of non-cancellable contraciusl cammitments a5 on an wndisenunted
hasis.

Particulars Amauni as 8l Amount as al
Al March 2025 31 March 2024
Lexs than one viear Mqn 20,40
e 1o five vears 15 10 b 20
Melowe than five vears - -

The Company does not face a significant Nguidiy risk wilh regard o it Jease Tiabilities as the current assets are sullicient 10 meet the obligations related 0 bease

Jiabilities as and when they Fall due
1] i apatc Mmoo imieawisally feft Ml i




Teaneen Automotive India Private Limited
Notes (o the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
£ B0 cimirnni, & Nilirs, exoery chore dati, nalfons albernie stuteah

The fallowing are the amounis recognised in profit or loss:

Particolars For the vear ended  For the year ended
31 March 20258 3 March 2024

Deprestanion expense af right-ol-iee sty 1613 14,76
Interest expense on lease habdlities 4M 448
Eapense relating bo shogt-term beases Dincluded in olher expenses) .41 Ih41
19.98 41.62

(i) Lense reluted diselosures

(a) The Company has leases for lands, budldings snd vehicles. Fach bease s reflected on the batance sheet a2 right-of-use asset and o lewe lability, The Company

classifies its right-of-use asséts in 6 consistent manner 1o its lands, huildings and s chicles

hp Tiotal sy outflow fune leasey foe the year ended 31 dlarch 2025 was € 34 20 mallions (previous vear & 3840 milhons)

ie} The Conpany has short term lease agreenmcnts in which theee are nn lock in periods The disclosire requitement velated to total commmitmient of short erm leases i

This mot applicable to the Company

{di The weighted average incremental horrowing rite apphied W drcount lease Jiahdlithes &8 10 % o i3] Blarch 2024 10 s pa |

Jd Infosmation aboul ¢xtension and lermination options

Bight of use aasels Sumber of | Runge of remalnlng Average Number of leases| Number af leases | Number of leases
leases ferm remaining lease | with exiension with purchase with termination
lerm nption npiion aption

Land 4 51 - %1 Years 71 yeary - 00
Huildings 4 =27 moniths 18 wnaithis . - 4.0
Viehicles |5 fi- 53 manths 3 th . 15,600
11 There are nas leases which are vet 1o commence os o 31 March 2023

41 Contingent liahilities

Farticulars Ammint as al Amaount ns wl

3 March 2025

A1 March 2024

Claims agninst the Company not ncknowledped as debts
« Income tax matiers i 1)
- Excise customs matiers (20
- Sibes e and Uhoods & servive i (GST) matters (31
- Employee related waners (4)
« Clabms by vendiors (51
- (hers (53

a7 50907
w7 14611
A0 4 LERV]

nm 1n

- 1os

. i
[1FNE] B4

{11 Income i celated contingent liabilities are primanily comprsing of corporate tay matters and alyo comidn fansfer pricing matiers

(21 Excise related matters are prmanly related o valuation of excisable poods and custonis related maners ane primarily rebatisd 1o demand of custiom duty and interest

fot the time bareed warchouse and non-fulfilment of export oblipation

(31 Sales v and GST relaved masters are primanily related 1o suppessed tumoner and GS T eredit avaitment

i b Erpplo e relaied contingent habilities are prinanly comprising of misconduct by employees. fong fenm aboences and compensation mations

81 Chaims by vendies and ather matiers are primanty welated o recovery of obd dies and dispited mattess

1t s non practicable fior the Company to estimate the tmingss of cash outflows. ¥ any, in tespect of the abave pending resalution of the sespective procecdings

e Company dies fot expect any reimbursements in respect of the above cantingent Jiahilities

Thie Company 15 cxposed 1o claims and legal actiany srsing in the ordinary course of husiness. The Company accrues a labilie when o liss i considered probabile and
the amiount can be feasonably estimated In the opinion of Management, the outcome of any existing clams and legal on regubatory proseedings, if decided adversely, 1s
not expected 10 have a materinl adverse ¢ffect on (he Company's busingss, financial condition and results of apertions based oin the eurent pasition for such claims

Tepal actions

i e B Beesn imteantiomilfie Joft Maoki




Tenneco Automolive India Private Limited
Noles 1o the Standalone Financinl Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
FAN crmmaeniornin oot & Milloons, wenloss cahervione stoated)

41 Capitsl commitments

Particulars Amwint as at Amouni as at
3 March 025 31 March 2004

Property. plant and equipmen [net of sdvances paidi A6 58 5624
46,58 56,14

43 Details of does to micro gad small enterprises os defined under the MSMED Ael, 2006
0 the hasis of confirmotinn obtained from supplicrs wha have registered themsalves under the Miceo. Sinall and Madum Enterprise Development Act,
2006 MSMED Agt, 2006 and based on the informanon available with the Company, the following are the details

Particulars Armanint 48 ul Amiount as a1
A1 March 2015 31 March 2024
in)  The principal ameunt remaining unpaed as ol the end of year 81435 T840
b Dwtercst due on above principal and remaimng unpaid as ol the end of ihe year 13 046
tel The amount of interest pard by the huyer in terms of section 16, of the micm, small and medium - -
chlerprisd Development Act, 2006 along with the anaunts of the pavment madse o the supplice
beyond the appointed day dining each accounting year.
) Tie amount of interest due and pavable for the penod of delay in moking payment (which have 29,50 13n
been paid but bevond the appointed day durng the year) bub without adding the interest specified
under micen, small and medinm enterprise development Act. 2ié
feh  The amount of interest acctued and semaining unpasd at the end of each accounting vear, and 14213 IRERLY
iy The amount of further interest remaining due and pavable exen in the succeeding years, unlil such B .
dute when fhe mtered dues as ahove are actually paid 10 the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as o deductible evpenditure under section 23 of the Miem Small and Medium
Enmterprise Deévelopament Act, 20406
44 Farmnings per Share
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
A March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Profit [or the year as per Statement of Profit and Lis hATE 5K 1,430,535
Mumber of equity shares oursianding an the beginning of the year L] 1, fe)
less Shares redueed during the penind - .
Mumber of equity shires outstanding o the gad of the yem Fibid (1t e
Weighted average numbet of equity shures in calealoting basic and diluted EPS OB TMOLE D 100, £
MNominal value of shares i) 100 i 1,000
Larning per share - basic and diluted (23 68, TREND 14.305.50

45 Transfer pricing
The Finance Act, 2001, has inttoduced, with elTeet rom assessment vear 200208 (effective April 2000), detailed Transfer Pricing regulawons (the
regulations) for computing the imeome and expenditure from “intemational transactions” between “associated enterprises’ on an ‘am's length’ hasts. The
regalations, inter alia, alse require the mainenance of presenbed documents and information, including feenishing a fepont fom an Aceountant within
the due date of filing the Return of Income. For the fiscal vear ended 31 March 2024, the Company ad undentaken o study 1o comply with the regulations
for which the prescribed cenificate of the Accountant has been obtained and this did not envesage any mx lailiny
For the fiscal year ended 31 March 2025, the Company will carry out @ similar study 1n-comply with the sad regulations. In W opimson of hManagement,
s adjustmients sre expected 1o ariee based on completion of this study

(T gpsres By beew poiremsionally fegt Mok







Tenneen Automotive India Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
T snmaennity i & MG Mroms, exwepd alher b, smdeas oo fo afancls

A8 Audit Trail
The Minisiry of Corporte Allars (MOA) has prescribed & requirement for companies under the prosbso to Rule 300 of the Companies { Accaunts i Rules, 2004
inserted by ihe Compamies | Aceounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies which uses secounting sofiware for maintaiming its books of account, shall
use only such seenunting sofiware which hae o feure of recording sudi trail of cach and every transaction, cecating an odit oy of each change made in the
books of account along with the date when such chisnges were made and ensaring that the audin trail cannot be disabled and prescrved fr the record retention

The Company use i accounting saltware o maintain its books of aceount, which has o Feature of recording audiv trail fedit log) Gaeiity, The audu trail feature
il the application level was enabled and operating throughout the veor. [iowever, the Company has not ennbled ihe feature of recording audit wail cedit log) m
the databitse leved for the said acendnting sollware 1o Tog iy disect data changes. Furthemmane, the audit il has heen preserved by the Compary as per the
stitutory vequitements o record retention where aiadiy teail is snahled

49 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Sacial Security, 2020 which could have o likely impact on the contnbutions made by the Coppany towards
Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Minstey of Labour and Emplovment has rebeased dafl rubes for the Code on Social Security, 20200 en 13 November 2020 and
s mvited suggestiong fom aaloholers which are under oeiive considertion by the Minniry The elfective date from which the Code and applicable Rules
shall be applicable is yet o be nonfied The Company shall dssess and evaluate the bkely fmancial impact once the subpect nles are potified and become

effective

S0 The Company reccived certain whistlehliower complaints during the year and subsequent w year end. alleging cenam financial insgulaniies: Based on the
available information and facts, ncluding preliminary asscesment, management has nol wentificed any matters that woulld require adjustients 16 the amoutits
tepontid in these standalone financial statements. Funher, Management has enggaged an independent thitd-party Torensic specialist o investigate a whistlehlower
complaint received during the vear As of the reporting date, the investigation is ongoing and managemint is confident that this matier 15 0o expecied 1o have
any matenal impoct on the accompanying financiil simements Consequently, no adiustment 1x required 10 be made fo the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025 Aanagement will take appropriste sctinns based on the findings of the final investigation

&1 Provieus vear numbers have been tegrouped reclassifiad, whereved considerad necessury

51 Rounding-olf
Amveaints mentioned as "0 007 in the financial statements denote amounts counded off bemg fess than # 001 aullion

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Fosr aued on behalf of the Board of Directors
Tenneen Awtomative Indin Private Limited

tered Aceouniants
Ragistratipn Mymbef [0 1OTAN NS00
C’cg.baumiam

L RO Subramaniam Praveen Kumar Singh

i - -: Mlanaging Director IMeecio
bership Number 307429 = DIN DASSD DIN 08 444n82
3 Ciurugram .| PMace: Pune Ploce: Pune
Date; 26 June 2025 hs /| Date: 26 June 2023 Date; X6 June 2025

it

Place; Pune
Pate: 36 June 2025



Tenneso Awtomative India Privofe Limited
Comsplidated Balance Sheet ox ut 31 March 20215
AN mamorats i & Million, wnless ofverwise i)

Farticulors Nites Amount as ot Amount as at
M March 2025 31 Murch 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment 3 I, k5. 1379:57,
Capital work-insprogress 2 16342 (N E R ]
Elight-isf-use nssets 3 L7648 263.09
Entungible assers 4 5.69 7467
Firancial mscts
« [nvesbments 11 .29 B.H9
- Loans ] gl 158
« Dither financinl nsets £ & 31063 24
Ereferreid tax asscts {nel) T 483 69.1%
Encome-tix assets (et ) E 116.76 150,05
Uhher nom-curren assels 9 47.71 6122
11,0760 A0R4.24
Currend asscis
Erventaries 10 R54.93 I.B30.59
Firarcmal zswcts
= Trode receivables 12 119353 kS (LR
« Cash and cash equovalents 13{ui BE7.05 1,511.24
« Bank balances piher thas cash und cash eguivalents L3k} 0,50 .50
Lians -] 360 20919
= Diher fAnancial assets & 13 17.78
Chher current assets 14 §1.23 145.61
Total current sssets excluding ussers clussified ox beld for sule 4, Tah. 658097
Assets classified as held for sale 4 K7
Tital corrent psses £, 740 b 6, 580.97
Total Asseds L5, 75684 u.665.21
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Euity
Equiy share capital 15 1.0l Lo
CHher equity 16 10,2229} 111677
L, 223,90 AT
Lishilities
Non=current lizhilities
Firarcal linkslitics
= Lease [mbilities 17 L4278 629
Frrysions 14 LI 1763
[Hher nomecurnent Histbulsies 1% Ja1.43 176 64
2197.65 PR
Currend liabilities
Firancuml linkslilzes
Lease [mbilities 17 X153 63,99
Vendor bl fmancig 20 0344 481.32
« Trade payahles
« lotal partstmmdd ey dues of micr enterpoises aml small enterprises .| HE4.35 HOE. 346
= tneal panstandmp dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 21 155649 1E0
= Oikezr financial [=hilitics 2 14163 h57.89
CHher cument linkslities 23 935K 4G5,
Froysioas ] 635U 25549
Current inx liahahtes inet) 24 H22.14 92 B4
Tutal carrent Hobilities excluling Hobilitics relating o assets held fur sale 521639 5.2546.58
Lhilities refating (e assets classified as held for ale 3 B =
Total current Hubilities 521509 625638
Totsl Equity amd Lishilites 15,756, 6d 9,665.21

The ahove Corsclilated Balance Sheet should be read in comjunction with the accompanying noles
This & the Consohdated Balance Sheet referred to moour report of even dute.

For Walker Chandivk & Ce LLF For and on beball of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountunis Tenneen Automotive lodin Private Limited
Firm Bepistration ¥umber: 0TGN MI00013 S
. i g sy sy gitally sk}
Digitally signed by Akt e PRAVEEN  pebvesriinns
Ankit Mehra (5" 5331.“’.2':23:";"7:: KAIMAR mnzmml
E:;'i';;w’ IR i SINGH 174556 4057300
Ankil Mehra R.C.Subramaminm Fraveen Kunmar Singh
Fariner Managing Director Direcior
BMembershp Samber: SITA29 DN U RA5 4 DHMN: (844682
Place: Puce Place: Puee

Plnce: Gurugram
Date: (M Decendher 2025

Drate- il Diecember 2025

Digetally signed
PRIY’A by PRIVA KEMIE

Diate: 2025, 201
NIMIE s cisaa

Priva Mimje

Company Secretary
Membershgp Munsher:
Place: Pune

Date- 01 December 2025

Diaie: 61l December 2025



Tennecs Automotive India Private Limived
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2028
CAN armeenents fn € Milttons, wnlesy athervive siated)

Particulars Notes For the vear ended For the vear ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Inceme
Revenuse from operations 15 20,TH] .61 18 64505
Other income 26 48.29 46.20
Total Income I0H20.90 1860125
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 27 14,356.62 12,724.14
Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 18 [38.61) 16351
Ermployes benefits expensc 29 134486 1 26511
Finance costs an 49.97 40.19
Depreciation and nmortisation cxpense 31 185.25 37476
Other cxpenses 2 T A48 80 2 RA2. 85
Total Expenses 1554669 17.433.56
Profit before exceptional items and tax from continuing operations 2.283.21 1.257.69
Exceptionol iems 45 O 73548 -
Profit before tax from continuing operations D169 1.257.69

Income tax expense

- Current tax i3 I441.50 333.07
- Tax peruimng to carlier years 33 g 440
- Deferred tax 13 133.40) 545
Total income tax cxpense 141498 34292
Profit for the year from continuing operations 760671 G14.77

Dizcontinued operations

Profit betore tax for the yvear from discontinued operations 3 Q3092 6T
Tax expense on discontinued operations 45 24075 24086
Profit for the vear from discontinued operations BR1.17T hT5 K5
Profit fer the year R.I8T7.8E 1.590.62
Other comprehensive income for the vear

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasuremenis of ibe post employment defined benefit obligations loss/{gain) 465 (930}

- Incoime tax cifiect 110.23) 236
Other comprehensive loss from discontinued operations (et of tax) 1.3 1.77
Total other comprebensive lossincome) for the vear 3rd {5.23)
Tatal comprehensive income for the vear B.255.54 1.5095.85
Earmings per equity share (of T 10 each) from eontinuing operations
Basic and diluted camings per share () - 43 Tin (G T.08 P 147 608
Earnings per equity share (of T 10 each) from discontinued operations 43 6ELLGT 0, T38.54
Basic and diluted eamings per share (3)

Earnings per equity share (of € 10 each) from continuing and discontinued operations 43 B2 RTR.TS 1590620
Baswe and diluted camings per share (3}
The abeve Conselidated Statement of Profi and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noies.
This ts the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Logs refemed to imoowr report of even dime.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLFP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited
Firm Registration Namber: G0T0T6MN/N500013 Digrally g i
RISHINARADAM st HARAD ARG PRAVEEM Cigitasy signed
. ANGALAM Al by PRAVEEN
Ankit o CHIDABARAN S KUMAR s s
Tiris 3033 1205 THE451 4 L5780 STIBEARAMIAM Date 20251201 Date: 20251201
Mehra 17 54:53 4 0T SINGH 17:43:52 20530
Acnkit Mehra R.CSubramaniam Praveen Kumar Singh
Panner Managing Director Dhirecior
Membership Mumber: S0742% DN (R4 540 DHM: OR444682
Place: Gurugrom Place: Pune Flace: Pune
Dase: 011 December 2015 Date: 0] Docember 2025 Date: 0 Drecember 20235

PRIYA. jomssiet
Duate: 2025 52 01
NIMIE LLATR T
Priva Nimje
Company Secretary
Membership Mumber:

Place: Pune
Date: ¢l Deeemnber 2025



Teaseco Autnmetkye badla Frivate Limkied
Comsatidaied Statement of Cash Flows for ibe yeur eaded 31 March 2625
A oty € MR, seacdienn el snied)

Fariiakurs Far the year ended Fuor the year emided
31 Alarch 1828 M March 2024
Cash flow Irnm speratisg ectlvitkes
rodit before wx from cretinuineg opeTationg SEl ™ 1, 25708
Prodit before tax droon decmminead operation U092 SIaTH
‘Totul pradle lsefore tnx 4842 67 217440
A jmstments forn
Diepeecimion and smamisanen expernse 65 RS a50.52
Writien-back provision for doutifal advemees w0 sopplier {441} 4.4
Prosision S expeoied credit loss Bl 140
Linbiliey ee bonger regpared writien-hack e (LA
Privisien for warraney exprezscs allsl 1344
Tmderest imemme ot fived deposizs with barks (25595} 140,51
Imterest incume fivem finmcial sses {1 (L]
Lerminding of discoum an seomiy deposns - LAY
Imtercst imonme fram Joans torelaed pariies E (=]
|mtarest incume from ESCOmE 0% ke CEE 11 =
Fimance cost b4 il
Loms i dispuonal of property. plant ond equipment s {1}
Ulewreakisail foreipn exchunye ks L] S8
i retiromen af right-al-use aeses - W62
Encopriomul ivém | gain os sale of subsidiary) [REEE ) -
Uperating profis befere wer king caplinl chamgpes 378038 pE el
Movements in working eapital
{nereaseydecrense ln asseiy
- tradle recemvahles JLATTON [EAUIRE ]
- MUWCEAOTIES FECER-CH [4LRLY
- il curvens 2l nen-cumren Geancal aseis R 344
- cnrisd and wn-civess laans LR (]
+ ither curnend amd mam-cunrent daseis L [EEN 1]
limse reane decresse) in lalibiiles
- trmde pavables. 41z Th8.3a
- umre and nan-curest proviscons (RN BN [ELRER
- uther corrent fimanceal lahilines inchidmg vendee bill fisonces {Ha133) 124.23
=« pther current aod nan-comrene linhilizies JIGEa0) 25708
Cnshi (ssed ln) generated brom operalions pest working capiul ehanges 0445171 197149
Ancome tes fuid (nesh |EIT 38} [ECTREC]
Ml ensh autllow isflow operating sctivithes (4) 1T XThES) pde LRI
Crsh flows Drums Investing actividle:
Purckase of progeny. plant and equipmest (meluding capnal wook-n pinogresp {3331% 121047
Provend from sk of prepeny, plont end equipment L (HE]
Prarchase of Ewesimeni {1 nay =
lreer corporate deposis grven FELTR TS =
Irder corparate deposit received bk 10580 =
iz esment in idhier bank Bulances (6l osy a2
Proceeds (rom salke of sebaidianes, not of cash disposed oft’ TAsL4 -
Hrderesa neceived 2408 .05
el ensh infow{asillow) frem imvestisg setlvigics (B Th16.55 [EEENEH
sl flows [rom Dnancing ocilvitles:
Repasvmenn of short lem borrowings E [ER]
Ry of leise labdiles JETO) [T REH
Ireeress puaid {374} Ti.20
Diiyvidemd Paid [ENECEH) (LAST )
Ml | | frsm g det (] [TET L] 11740715
M (decrense) in cash and cash oqulvabents (A HBIH C) {EEL 1%} 702264
Cash snd cash cquivelenis at g hogmmieg of the finaecisl year 131024 2215350
Crsh s cash cquivalents wl end of the year B1T.05 1.511.24
Reconeiflaion af cavlk el vesl egiidealents o per the satenisnt of cavl flous!
Cash znd cash equivalests ag per above comgpesse of e Bollowisg:
Cash and cash equivalests HAT.08 1500
Bslanees per statement of 2ash flows 627.08 151014

The above Conselidated Cash Flow Sartement should be read in cosganctinn with the accomyanying mves.

This i g Liatinted Cash Flow referned 1o in our repan of sven due

The: Comscdadaned Cash Flow Statement have boen prepaned woder the indinect mettod as se1 o in Ind AS ¥, Smememat Cash Flows',

Betier pooe L30c) doe novesens of Babddities srbing ffom deancieg acovaties

For Walker Chandiek & Co LLI
Chariered Accouniase
Faren Hegisiration Rumber: G017 30046 5
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Teameco Awbomative Indis Privane Limited

Comsplidated Stutement of Chunges in Eguity for the year eaded 31 Muarch 2025

fA amarany dm £ Adlans, drlecs otfierwine shmteal)

Ao Equity share cupitnl®

Particilars Balanoe as o ’:.::::::::I:;; Ealance as af ﬂ::::;::;::::u Balanee as at
01 April 2023 31 Murch 2024 3 Murch 2025
the vear the year
Eguity share capatal L0 = 1.00 1.00
*Fuce value of equity shoresas at 31 March 2025 of 210 each {31 March 2024: 210 each
. Oiher ¢ jre
- . Securities
Particulurs Capiltilfeweve | il Redempiiun] @ Gl | R Karstag Total
Reserve
Resurve
Balance as of 1 April 2023 1 1,731.90) 0.65 (R 559915 417412
Profil for the vear - - - 159062 1.590.62
Ckher comprehensive income . = - 523 513
Tutal comprehensive income for the vear (1,731 D) .65 602 TARSI0 5. 760,07
Devidenud pasd daring the vear - - - {2633.20) | LAS3.20)
Ealunce as ol 21 March 2024 i1, 731.90) 0.65 .02 484200 3116.77
Profit for the year - - - BIRT.ER B.2E7.HE
(her comprehensive income - - (334} (3234
Total comprehensive income fur the vear (1.TA] 9a) .65 0l 1309754 1137231
Dsvadend pasd during the year " - - (114941 (114540
Balange as ot 21 March 2023 (1, 73190y 0.65 01 1194813 10,222.90
**eler note 16 bar noture and purpase of ather squity
The abirve Consolichited Staternent of Changes m Eguiiy should be read in conunction ibe sccompinying nodes.
Thas iz the Conscdicnied Staiement of changes m equity referred o m owr report of even daie.
For Walker Chawiliok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors
Churtered Acesuniunts Tenmeco Antomadive India Privite Limited
Firm Registration Nulnht.-.l.ﬂ':ll'ﬂ..fr‘.'\: MK ) PRAVEEN Digtally sigied by
An klt Digitady signed by fﬁmmmgﬁr«mh FRI'\:'F.F.H FLMAR
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Pariner Munamng Dhrector Diseciog
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Place: Gurupmm Flace: Pune Flace: Pune
Ete; 01 December 2015 Date; 1] Decenber 2025 Diate: 00 Devember 1025
il i Lt
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Company Stcretary
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Teera Awmemisivn lndis Privae Lissl
Mphes b e Standalie Fhaasclil Sistementy o (he cear endod 30 Narch 3025
T wrsnatr o & Aivoms. amdon sharwus ke
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Mar Preperty. plam snd eulp Right-of-use aseet (ROU ) and Capleul werk-in-progress
Lessehold Plani and CHlice Farstiure and . Righri-uf-use | Caphial nork-
Rartleslory Imgirevement B AMechinery Compaey Equipments Flstures Viklehen Taeal u:r[ﬂ.llu Iu;ru‘rul.
Horiey COFTTIR @A o
Dipening pross camying smoant as on |1 Aped 228 491 AT EREEE L a4z 3743 3550 1947 A A0 a5 Tio0
Addiiims [t} K20 ERLEL) . (R} 741 Aot 4T LW 9.1 34410
Disposalsadiurnment - .55y [T 1200} Vi | (RE 3] = §12.00) [Lroad ] A0 )
Cluskng gross curryling amsust us om 21 March 2024 (i) BTIRE 3,513.43 [JENE] 84,97 55,04 24.1% 445781 41 (IL&0)
Aecumsdared daprosdatinn
Uipening acowunted deprecianion as oo | Apnl 225 di 150,35 1 A a4 a50K dixds park 1} 3T 1,7 34 ron .
Deprevistion charp: for e vear® Law 20 AE2 4 1940 R 028 a5z N800 nu B
Dhisy i - (LT [T [LEET) (LR [LREY] - (1.05) [ETR=T -
Clostng sreumuluteil depreciation as om 31 March 2024 12 16501 1, Bl 44 Ay 43.71 1519 12.5% 21024 414 -
Mt carrykng amsant & ar 31 March 224 447 H14.H1 1,706 54 2440 2126 1.7 [TET] 232057 fran ] [TTET]
€AFOAN COFTRIRg @il
Eipemng gross curmymg amaant as on | Apnd 2128 ] aTaR2 55184 (RE%(E] e Y 5308 s 443741 3041 I E4.30
Aubdrioms 4.0 L1 e Lo, o 1749e Liz = E34 LR 4430 pTL
Disposalsadiusment - [2.52y 124,43} - (R - {410} [EE R R 4EA9) IR0}
Audiustment vn sccomt of discontmed operations frefer nole 253 LLE A9y - {13%,68) 145,548y (3564} | 2084 LRy, (28509 41707} 1443
Closkng gross carrying omousd &s om 30 March 2028 - THLEH 5,.244.37 BEAT indd .14 1334 442502 22857 163,92
Aveamislaned depeeanin
Upening acowrilmed depeecmnos os-on 1 Agnl 2004 [§.53 16241 1, B e (R CER] | 350 12z% 214 2414 .
Dpreciation change (o the vear® 4,00 2044 32664 31,72 434 4704 34T 304 dn BT EE a
Disposak adpanmen) r1.24y P22.50 H (L9T) - (07} 128.5H) 4Ty .
Adnstment on sccomt of discontmmed opertons frefer nole 253 (391} - {021 1017y L4300} 117.03) [ [NERE ] FERLE-T] -
Cluskng sceumuluted deprecistion as os 31 March 2025 s 14351 207113 5608 199 1. IS 2,580,108 15049 a
Nt cnrrying amaant &% at 31 March 2028 = LiyA L] L477.24 Hr 348 724 2.5 20605 1Thd% 163,82
* The deprocimion charge tor the vear melnls deprecutie expense of Mowcare lndia Privede Linsteil which is clessifiod as- discostimed speration irefer sote 45).
by Capiiul work-ln-progress
Far eagital work.m-progress (CWIF). fnlleleg b (he apeing
A i 31 March 1008 Aot dn CWIP ke o periad of TFatadl
s b 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years Mure than X years|
Fraject in progress 1E117 147 - - (HERS]
Froject iemporariby - - - 2% .24
Amsunt i CWIP Bsr o perind ol .
AL MR Less ibam 1 year 1-1 vears 2.5 years Miore than X years Ll
Fruject in progress 10R. M 433 - 11802
Froject iemporarily suspesded - - IR 424

There are ni capital work- in-progress, whose completions is ovenlue or hus exceeded it cosl companed 1o ils original plas.

Mabes:

| Betier wote 42 dor disclnsire of contracunl cotmmitrents for die acquisition of propenty, phant and eguipmes.

- Befer note A1) for disclsure of right of use nssels

-
5

. There s no property, plom asd squpment which are plodged or undey en,
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Metes o the O lidsied Financlal Sias is far ihe year emded 31 Mareh 2022
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Cempuier

Partieutsrs Sopee Tk
ERrasy CarTying @ omar
Dipening gross carrying amaat g on 1 Apal HI25 LA S LRl
Aubdnions 474 478
Diisposals 18] L1RY
Cluskng pross corryving smousd as om 30 March 2024 REX X
Avcnmalared aaesnvian
Dipening seovnubated amonisalion e on §Apel 2028 i Sep ) INTT
Amncetisation ¢herge lor the year® 142 34z
Liispusils ik 1E) 1L18E
Closkog accumulaied amorisatien as oo 31 March 2028 3l A1
et carrying sueunt & ot 31 Murch 2024 THT T67
HRbies COFTTIRY @A oAl
Dipening gress camrying smoant as on | Apei] 24124 EEE ELE ]
Auddminms 127 x7
Dispursals = .
Adiimtment o seogant of discontmeed operaties (refer uie 255 [EERILH [ra¥iLY]
Cluskng gross carryving amousd as em 30 March 2025 (LL.] 1880
Accumisdined amsisakoa
Uipening acowmlnted amariisanen & on 1 Aprl 2024 2 kX ]
Amcrtsation clarge for the yeur* sl 151
Disposale - -
Adjustinen on scooat of discoeriscd operbioes (refer noe 255 [ty {1131y
Clnskog lated amoribsatien & oo 30 March 2028 1321 1511
i carrying amsant g of 31 March 2022 24 b

* The smocisabion charge for the year includes degeeciation expense of Matocare Indin Privare Limited which s classified = disconimued operation {reder noie 45§
Meobess

L. Befer noie 42 dnr doclosure of contraciual coossiments foe the aequisingm of inangihle assets
2. There & no imangible msess which are pledged or under licn

i it e Mty daiee Dnreantiema ke Lo Dliind



Teareco Awtomative India Frivate Limited
Mutes to the Comsalidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 35 March 2025
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5 Loons
Moo Cwrrest Carrent
Pariculnrs Amoand as it Amoumt us at Amuunt os at Amaumt as xt
31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024 3 Nurch 2RIE M Murch 2024
Unsecared, considered good
Loans 1o related purties {refer note helow) e 9 200 (K
Loan to employees 233 158 1469 529
1E3 158 169 208.29
Mudez
Luans fn reluted parties impsecured) = Disclusare as per Section 1RG4} of O es Aok 2003:

Same of the reladed party Iniurest raie pa Temure of loan Furpuse of loan Repaymsent Irequency Jl::l::ll.;l];; 3:':':[:::;0;:
J"l..'d:ml-Mm_ml Mlutomparts | India} TE8 w0 TLO6% o !I'!uun?::u purjfmn: Fall m.p:ymu.m at the Z ST
Limnated b iworking capital) end efmaturity dade
Ne - The Company does not have loans which are gither credst impatred or whese there is signsficam monease ineredit nsk,

Reter pote 33 for disclosare of far values in respect of financial assees
@ CHber Mnancial asseis
Current
Particulurs Amuumt ns at Amuoumt HT Amuunt ns st
3 Muarch 2025 M Murch 2014 31 Murch 2025 M Murch 2024
Umseenred, consilered guod
Feceivables from relabed pariy® R312.20 .
Secuniy deposits 743 3123 13 1778
Dypowmts with bank having maturity more thin 12 meathss D7
Inierest accroed bat not doe oo above deposais ik
B 33063 ALI6 nix 17.78
“Reler nodes 45 and 37
W These depuesis are pledped against the pastantees given by the Company o custemers ansd government authorities
Eeler mote 35 for disclosure of far values tn respect of financasl assets
T Deferred tax assedsTiabilities (net)
The halance comprises temparnry difference miributabie 1o
Prrticidnrs Amumnt ns al Amaoml us st
3 Murch 2015 3 Murch 1034
Deferred tax linhilities
Property. plamt and equipment and intangible assecs dd 33
Right-af-use nssets 779
3111
Drcferred tax ussets
Diebined benefit ohligations 4590 ikd 50
Provissomns 733 G 3
Lease liahilires a9 10146
126.22 12130
DeFerred tax asseis inet) B4H3 RN
Movemenl in deferred tas assees' Eabilitic Ilzlinfzﬂ I:_n::l'ﬂ D!Fr“mlmfl"d Right-ofmse assets Total
abligations amoriisatiom
Deferred tax linhilities
At Agril 2023 - 53.37 1KY Gl 18
Charged fcredited)
-t prosfit o Toas 17.90) (2.2} [ALER Ll
-t wither comprehensave income .

Adusimeni o sccount of discontinucd opernbions {reéer note 453 P14 (LR 4] [LELS]
At 31 Narch 2024 - 4432 T.79 sL12
Charged T eredited)
<ty profil or loss - L1305 ARz 1303

i ather comprehensave inoime
« Aulqustment om account of discontisued sperations (refer note 45) = 132 s 130
At 31 March 2015 - 2260 79 4139
Delluc beseit Provisinns Lease liabilities Tutal
Dreferred tax asvels
AN Agril 1023 LLNITY TLA 12.30 12338
Credited [charged)
-bir profil or s (150 j.30g [ L.B4} AEEAM)
-tar arther comprehensive inceme 236 1365
- Aalusiment an acceunt of discenbinued spermbons (efer noke 43) 1360 1360
At A1 March 2024 4450 G4 likAd& 12130
Credived {charged) -
ir profit or Joss T27 1465 (1500 2042
<t ither comprehensive income 123 - 1023

Aulgustment on account of discontitued opembions (refor note 45) (16,103 1566 ) LX) §25.73)

At 31 Alarch 2015 590 7133 RA49 162X




Tennecs Auwtomative Indin Privote Limited
Notes 1o the Complialated Finaneiol Statements for the vear ended 31 Muarch 2023
AU anmounes i 8 Miltions. anlecy orherntse ghated)

B Inceme lax unulljnﬂl

Purilcuiars Amupunt x at Ao ms al
31 March 2825 11 March 2024
[meoune tmx gssets(nel | 116,76 ¥o0 4R
116,76 148
% (hiber nop-curment assels
Ampunt @ at Ao my al
P Henliey 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Capatal advances - comsidered peod 17.82 41,44
Prepasd expenses 154 103
Comporate socml respansihalaty {CSR ) - excess spemt® 27,95 17.32
Dther advanoes L3R
47.71 6122
* Refer e o 32{0) for Compomie Socidl Responsibility {TER)
Invemtories (vabued af bwer of cost or net realisalde voliee)
Ampunt ay at Armound ws ai
FpEA 1 11 March 2025 11 March 2024
Faw materials [meludes stock m transit T 5160 millien {prevaws vear; T 99,20 mallion))] 453.00 1,051.38
‘Work-in-progress 136,26 F46.21
Finishexd goods [chdes steck in transit-2 50.2% mallon (previoas year: $ 42,60 mallion)] 175.44 30.73
Stores anid spones Kb 37 T1.87
Packing matenals 516 533
Traded goods [inclodes siock in trmsid il preyioas year: 3007 mallion)] - 139.07
B54.97 1.530.59
Mole: The shove mventory is oct off of the provisson for ehsoleie ond exoess made in acconbince with the policy of the Holding Company smommting te 3 7100 milbon (previoas year 34650
milbion]
1 Iny L]
Amavunt as &t Arund ay 5l
Particulars 3 March 2825 11 March 3024
Men-Carrent:
Investment af fwir valee throagh profit ar fos
(i} Imvestmeni in equity shares afother entiiy . anguoied
Ml equity shares (31 March 202:68: 86459040} fally paid of 2 10 each in Aople Benewable Power Private Limited” BT
(i} Investmenl in eguity shares of other entily, ampusted
3545 eouity shaces (31 Murch 202423 545) fully paid of 2 3303 eoch in Copazo Power Limiied .89 .84
(i} Fmyestment im equity shares of other entity . ungooted
62,0000 equity shares (31 March 2024:Nil) fally paid of 2 10 guch in Yash Meial Resoerces Privale Lin 1.0
3.9 H.50
Agpregote amount of megueted invesiments 3.9 H.ED
Agpregate amount of impairment in the value of invesimenis - -
* Reder mivte M for assels classified as held for sale
Refer note 35 fior discBosure of fair values o respect of finaecial assels
11 Trade receivables
Anscunt as at Amiund &y &
Pativubany 3 March 2035 31 March 2004
Trade recervables: onsaderad good, secured 0.7 Q.56
Trade receivables. congdered good, unsecured 2EIT.IR 2,74 44
Trade recervablis from related pasties- considered pood, unsecured IT4.EN 110,66
made recesvables stpnificant incremse mceredit risks nseoured 39.70 42.66
Trade recervables « credit impaired - 0.4k
333261 200897
Le=s: allowances for expected credil locses 139,79} (42.66)
Lexs: imude receivahlos - credit impoired . {0, HF)
Tutal receivahbes 219282 LR65.96
Refer note 37 fior related party balances.
Refer note 35 for daschosiene of fuir values i respect of finacial nssois
Trade receivabies speimy schedule ny atl 31 March I025
Particulars (hatstmnding for fellowing perinds frmm due date of payment
Muof dee 0 - i menths & ol - | vesr | 122 vemrs -3 vears More thun 2 vears Tl
i} Undisputed tmde receivables « consadered good 244004 T51.7R . s s a 319282
(i) Unidispated trade receivables « whech have 1053 8.6k B4 Ld H4 38,79
sapmificnnt increase in credil dsk
{itip Unclsspuied tmide receivables - credit impaired =
{iv) Drspuded trade receivables - considensd good . -
i v} Disputed trade neceivables - whach hise =
sagnilicant merease o credil osk
| vi) Daspusted trade receivables - credit impaired N . . -
Tutal I451.57 TTHAR K14 1.68 84 - 3213161
Less: Allowanees for oxpecied credit losses (39.79)

Tual




Tennecs Auwtomative Indin Privote Limited
Notes 1o the Complialated Finaneiol Statements for the vear ended 31 Muarch 2023

SAW qurounes i Willions. anleos crberitse chated)

1

Trade receivables apeiny schedule oy ai 31 March 2024

Particulars 4] limp for following perisids from due date of payment
M doe @ = & months & momihs = | year | 1-2 years 13 vears More thun ¥ vears Total

{1} Uil pruted trade receivables - consadened gaod 2254 51 SE2.IE AT A 1E65.96
{ i) Uniispuated trade receivables - which have 4.EH 1451 1312 QRS 4166
significant increase in credil nisk

(ini) Unclssputed imde recervables « credst impaired 24 (KR 12 0.
{iv) Despusted trade recervables - considensd grod . =

| v Disputed tradle recetvabbes - whech have =
sagnificant merease in credil osk
{vi) Desputed trade recervables - credit impained . -
Tuial 16118 STL1Y L2 Likug 1Ll = 190491
Less: Ablowances for sxpecicd credit losses (42.96}
Total I R65.90

Cash aml cosh cguivalenis

Ampunt as at Ao mnd @5

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

np Cush und cash equivalents
Balarces with scheduled hanks:

<O cument scemans 627.05 1511.24
61785 151124
vy Bunk balsoces ofber than cosh aml cosh egquivalents
Depesits wiih criginal matumiy moee than 1 months bal less than 12 months* 0.5 0.5
.5 .50
Refer note 35 for dasclosiere of foir values o respect of finacial nsseis
OINE 5 il lsoms {31 March 2024 T 050 malliens) 1% umsder Tsen with banks
c) Reconciliation beeween the opening and closing balonces in the balapce sheet for linbilities urising from Anpncing sctivities (excepd dividend paid):
Farticulars Lense Hobilities St I_lm
horrowings
Opening Balunce as on | April 2023 L46.76 LR
Wom cush changes due (e
- Recognitiom of labilities 65. 74
Interest expense 14.21 -
Deletion' adjustment of lishdises (.54 ) 5.6
Canh flows doring the vear dae o
Repmyment of lsahalibes {RI.E3}
Clusing Balunce as on 21 March 2024 148.29 =
Mom cnsh chonges doe te
Adjustment on sceouni of loss of control
- Recogmtion of Hakalibes 4414k
= Interest expensc 1229
= Deletionmljusiment of liahilies (hAly
Cash Mows doring the year dae in
Bepayment of liahalities {BT.03F
= Adjustiment an accoand of discantinued opemismns (relier note 453 {72.44)
Clusing Bolunee as on 11 March 2025 ISR =

Ohther current pssels

Farticulars

Amount xs at
31 March 2025

A mnt & sl
20 March 2024

Balances with povernment autharmes

Prepasd expenses

Cioards andl Servioes tux recovemble *

Adbvanee o suppliors

ACunsidened good

Longidered doubtiul (with significant increase in credat rigk)

Lesa: loss allowince

Export incentive receivable
Other advances

* It represents Goods and Seraoes tax paid on fnshed poeds 1o ranst a6 al year eml.

5.03 IR
30.91 .58
13.74 1404

7. iR

5,59 11,4y
12,99 49.64
(5891 (L1.M1

T.00 Ll

444 i3

7.7
6l.22 145,61

T sprce b wen samnanally fefr hlek)



Tenneen Autemotive Lisfiz Private Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Flnancial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
AN amounes i & Millions, priess otherwive steted)

15 Egquity Share Capital

Poariizabars Aot s i Aot 45 at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Authorised share capital
22500 (previons year s 225000 11% Comuolotse Preference Share Capital (2 100 sachy 2.35 D5
254275000 (previous year: 254 275 000) Equity Shure Copral 2 10 cach) 154278 JE4a78
154500 2.545.00
Issued share eapiral
10000 (previous year @ LWED0D) cquity Share Capital (£ 10 each) PRl L.
[ 1.00
{a) Movensents in share capital
Particulars Nugmlie AdEHHERL
of shares
Asat 01 April 2023 [RTERTA] Lo
Movement during tle yesr - -
Asat 31 March 2024 100000 (T}
Movement during the year - -
As ar 31 Mareh 2025 100000 100

{b} Right'restriction attached to equity shares and 11% comualative preference shares,

Equity Shares: The Hodding Conmpany has one class of equity shares having a par vabue of 10 per share. Each shareholder s eligible for ene vote per share held. The
chividend proposed by the Board of Directors is sibject 1w oihe approval of the shareholders o the ensuing Annwal General Meeting, except in case of interim divideml. In the
event of liguidaton, the equity sharcholders are eligible 10 recéive the remaining assets of the Holding Company after dismribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to

their shareholding,

Preference Shates: The authonsed share capital includes 22 200 (getual numbar of shares), % Cunilative prefesence shares of £100 each which ase not yet issued

{c) Shares held by Holding' Ultinate Holding Compasy and/or thelr subsidiaries:

MNme of the shareholders®

As at 31 Mareh 2025

As at 31 Mareh 2024

Mumber Wi buslebing Numbier He holding
Equity Shares of € 107- each lebd by:
Tetneco Clisn Al lndio Limited { Tormerly known as Teaneeo Clean Aae ladla Private 4o ooy 100t =
Lirnited), the Holdig Company
Tenneco Mauritius Holdings Limited, Maoritive, (Infermediate Holding Company) - G H04 9305
Tenneco Mavritus Lisited, Sauriiues, & fellow subsidaasy ] A, 7196 Ty
LWk 0 100% 1k 0. 1%

() Detadly of shares keld by sharcholders holding mere than 3% of the shares bn the Company:

M of the shareholders®

As at 31 barch 2015

Asat 31 Mareh 2024

Number

% buldlg

Sumbier

e holding

Equity Shares of € 10/ each keld by:

Tenneco Cleen Al Indin Limited {former by knowis a8 Tenneeo Clean Aar bdia Private
Lirnited), the Holdig Company

Tenneco Mavritius Holdings Limited, Maoritive, (Infermediate Hobding Comgany)
Tenncce Maurtins Limited, Mouriuws, a fellow sobsidary

G

Lr

Q504
7.196

LEEH
T

*The above mformation 5 furnshed as per the sharehodder register at the year end.

e} Details af shares held by proasoters of the Congraimny:

MName of the promater 31 March 2025

31 March 2024

%% of total

Number of shares
Shares

Changes daring
the year

Number of
slires

% of tatal
Shires

Changes during the
Vear

Tenieco Clean Ao lndia Limned (formesly known as Gl ygy 100%
Tenneens Clean A Indin Private Lonited ), the Holding

oty

Tennece Maoritius Heldmgs Limited, Mavratius,

{lntermedeate Holding Comgany)

Tenneco Mauritius Limined, Maurines, a fellow 1 15

subsidiary

10H0%5

(§00%)

{ 1D

1,00, 600 T

100

100"

4} There are o shares reserved for isswe under optiong and contracts or commitoeenis: Further, there are a0 shares that have beein ssaed during the last 5 veass pursuant o a

contract without payiment being received in cash, oo share allotted as fully paid up by way of bomes shanes or ne shires bowght back.

{Thur spsace faw Deor borsfonedly feft Alead)



Tenneen Autemotive Lisfiz Private Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Flnancial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Al ampounts in & dillions, wnless ookeraive sioied)

16 Oiler equity

Pirticalars Amount a5 st Adriount @5 al
31 March 2015 31 March 2024
Capital reserve {1, 730.90) (1, 73L.90)
Capital redensplion reserve 064 1%
Siecuities preminm reserve B2 B0
Reined carmbngs 1194813 A E42.00
10, 222,90 3,116.77
i) Capltal reserve
Amount as a8 Amount as at
Farticulayy 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balaince as an the beginming of the vear {1, 730.90) (1.731.90)
Al mwvvernent dirmg the year - -
Balance as at the end of the vear 11,731,910} {1.731.90)
(i) Capital redeiupiion reserye:

. Amount as ar Adriniag a5 at
Pasficnlarg 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balaice as ar the beginning of the vear .65 s
Aulel: et disring the vear & -
Balanee as at the end of fhi: vear .65 ]
(i} Secarltbes premium reserve:

Partielars Admonal a5 il Adrount &% at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance ag at the beglnnigg of the vaar G2 B0z
Add: miveernent during the vear - -
Balance as at the end of the vear & Oz
{iv) Retalned Earnings:

Amount as at Aduount s al

barsiealyzs 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance ag arn the boginnuag of the veas 4 24200 Son s
Add: Comprelensive income for the year & 25554 1,365 85
Less: Dividend paid dunng the year (IREEE ] (2,653.200
Balance as at the end of thi vear 1194813 AR42.00

Sature and purpose of other reserves
{i) Captal reserve:
Capatal reserve Ls artribuiable i merger o the preor vears ol dee 1o consolidaiion.

{ilp Capital redenpthon reserve:
Caparal redenplion reserve 15 the accemulation of profie an ferfeiure of preference shares.

{iii) Securities premiwm reserve:
Securities preminm reserve i used 10 recond the premiwm on issee of shoses, The reserve i utilieed in sccordance with the provigions of the Ace

{Thiv apace b been intentionafly Jefi Manki



Tenneco Automotive Indla Private Limdied
Motes to the Conselidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
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17

18

Lease liabilities
Mo carrent Curren
Agoaint a5 at At as at AdiEnE a8 at Aot &5 at
Particalars 30 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
Lease labilities (refer nome 400 1438 T6.20 2152 61
14.28 Th29 21.52 h3.
Rfer note 35 for disclosure of fair values in respect of finaneial labilities
Provisions
M carrent Current
Parthculars Aniviind as ab Amivient 4% i At @8 @t Anmivint as ai
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 A1 March 2024
Proviswon for wormanbees (reler note (&) below) - - I 1&.0% 128. 16
Provision for cmployee benefits
Provision for compensated absences (refer note (1) below) = .60 12481 11433
Proviscon for grotuity | refer pole (] below) A1 84 3113 | 7.9 12 8y
41.94 3793 263,69 255.49
i) Movement in pravision for warraniies:
Bt hoans misv Anant a8 at Amwint as at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Urpening balance 12816 17259
Adhl: additional provisicas made during the year b 51 1386
Lizss: wiilized dunng the yeor 1158 53.29
Closling Balanee 11604 114,16

Warranty estimates are estabhshed wsing historcal information on the nature, fegeency ond average costof warranty clams and also management extinaies
regardiing pessible Dnuee ourdloy on servicing the cusiomers for any cormective action in respect of prodiscr filure.

iy Compensated absences

The amount of provision of £ 12981 millions {previous year: & 11453 milhods) 15 presented as current, sisee the Holding Company does not bave an
umscotiditional tght 1o defier settlement for any of these obligations.

The assemptions wed in deterinig the compensated absences benelil obligation are as given bebow:

Particulars Amount as ot Amiunt as af
31 March 2025 A1 March 2024

Financial assuimpt s

Dot rate A0 T2,

Salary growth rate HIIRTTIEA 00k

Denwpraphic assumptions
Moriality mte Indinn Assured Lives Momality  Indian Assered Lives Momality  (24012-

{ M-k Lllnirste 14} Ultimane
Disability rate 5% aof Maoriality Raie 5% of Moralily Faie
Witledrawal rane T.50% 6355,

Renirement age 58 yeard S yeurs

) Gratulty (defined benefit plang

e Holding Company provides for grataity for cesployees m India as per e Pavment of Oramity Act, 1972) Emplovees whas are inconlinuans service fog a
FlLTiuIJ of 4 WELrS ans |.‘|(E|1s||: o gratualy. The amount of Bramialy |!;|yu='n.||.' an retrement Termmntion 15 the cnq‘iiﬁyl:n::i last drawm basic 5.;1|;u_f per minth
computed proporioeately for 15 doyvs salory mulaplicd for the number of years of service. Tlie gratuity plon 4 a funced plan and the Holding Conmpany makes
comiributions 1o recognsed fund o ndaa, Life heurmee Corporation (LIC)

Anmusant 85 at Amsnunt @s a2t
EArtk Ny 30 Mareh 2025] 31 Mareh 2024
A Change (n defined benefit ohligation {DBO)
Defined benelit obligaten at heginning of year 19118 15406
Current service cost® 2148 15.79
Interosr cost® 13.24 1341
Henelin payments from plan asses® [REX-10] (14T
Actuarial (goaniloss® 44.33 1731
Adjustnent o account of discontnued operations (refer note 43) i21.42) -
Diefined benefit ehligation at the end of the year 13470 191,18
Anibant &5 at Ausiunt @5 @l
Partkcdlsss 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
B Change (o fale valoe of plan asseis
Fair value of plan assers o beginnig of year 147.0% 13722
Intercst moomme* 1 1.66 Q900
Employer comtributins® 4438 1542
Henelin paymeits from plan asses® (1481 14T
Hemeasurements - refuim on assets (encloding interest income|* (W] LR
Adjustmest on aecount of discontinued operations | refor noge 43) (1542 -
Fuir value of plan assets af end of vear 173.97 14705

{Thur space fax heen wemionadly deft hient)

* The above balance also inelude balance of Motocare India Private Limited wihich has been disclosed as discontmued operations (refer note 43).
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Particulars

Amonni s al
31 March 2025

At as al
A1 March 2024

C. Asseis and liabilitles recognised (o the Balance Shect

31 March 2025

Presem vabue of funded defmed benefit obligation 23370 s

Fatr value of plan assets 17197 14705

MNet lability arising from deflned benefit olligation S9.73 4413

Net Linbility recognbsed in the Balance Sheet

Current [sabadiny 17.7% 1250

Won-current liabilioy 41 3133

Total 59.73 44,13
PFarticulars Adnmonnd as at Admmaund as at

31 March 2024

b, Reconciliation of amounts in Balance Sheet

31 March 2025

et defined besedit Habiliy st beginning of the year ad13 i B4
Diefined benehit cost includied i Statement of Profh and Loss® 2276 19,30
Total remcaswremients inclded an Oiher Comprehensive (lnoome) | Loss® 4322 (LR
Employier coaribations to the fond* [44.38) {13.02)
Adbjustinent on pecount of discontinued operations (fefer note 451 { BN} =
Met defined benelit labiliny 59.73 dd. 13

* The above balonce also mnclude bakance of Motocare India Provate Lideed wldch hoa been diselosed o5 discontumsed opermiions (refer note 45),

PFarticulars Amwent as st Ammount as at

A1 March 2024

E. Total expense recogmised in Statement of Profit & Loss Account

Demographic sseumptions
Mmlalii_\' ndle

Linedtan Assured Lives
Mriatioy | 2006-05)

Service cost
a. Cuttent service codl 17.93 133
Total service cost 17.493 1139
het interest cost
a. Inferest expense an defined benefin obliganon 12004 12.54
b Interest (incom: |oon plan assels i 10645 {1, 16)
Total net interest cost 1Al 138
Diefised benefit cost included in Statement of Profit and Loss 19.35 16,77
Hemeasurement
a Actuanal (gaind | s doe 10 Anascil assunplion clanges in DEO 4250 163
b Actuasial {Gana) ! Loss doe 10 Experience on DBO [{16) RS
¢ Remwm on Plan Assets {Exchiding Interest Income 1 .65} {113}
Total actuarial (gaka)'bss inclsded in other comprelensive (loss) / coms 4065 {9.35)
Total expemses S99 T2
F. Major category of plan sssets as % of ldal plan asseis
Insuianee manzged finds L, 100
i, Expected contribution to the gratutty fund o the next year 62 1826
H. Actuarial mssumgthons
Financial assumpiims
Dol re 3 T2
Salary growth rane 1000 LR
Expected rate of retum on plas assets f 3 7. 206

Ultisnatie Liltirreate
Diisability rane A% of Mormaliay Rase S04 of Morcality Rate
Withdra wal rate (basia dafferent age geoups ) T80 R
Retirement age 58 years A8 years
L. Weighted averape durailon of INBO (vears) LA .88

Ll ity Assured Lives
Mostalivy | 2012-14)

(Thes space has feen mtentionally fof fleanky
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1

1. Maturity anslysls - Expected cash flow for following vears

Witliin | year 18.36 1280
Hetween | 1o 3 year A2l T.87
Borween 3 to 8 yeam 2614 il
Later thon § yenss 1a3.24 ek

K. Sensitivity analysis®

Crrutiiify

Effoet on DBO due 1w discount rates jup by 19%) 21534 Lal.u
Effect on DB doe to discount rates {dowi by 1%) 25504 15070
Effeet on DB due 1w salary excalateon (up by 1%0) 25286 1an.1
Erfeet on DRO due 1o salory esealaton (down by 1%%) 21637 Ial.24
Effoet on DBO due o withdrawal raves (up by Fa) 2am 17400
Erfeet on DBO due o withdrawal raes (dawn by 1%) 2329 175,78

* [Hscount rave, salary escalation rae and withdrawal rare are sigoificant actoarial sssomplions. The change in the present value of Defived Beoefil Obligntion for a
change of 100 basts polnts in he s gnficant actuznol asqunmplion 15 given above.

Lindtation of sensitivity analysis:

The above sensitivity analysas are based on o change i an sssunption while boldag all other assumpions constanl. In practice; this is unlikely 1w sccur, and ehanges
in some of the assumiptions may be cormebated. Whe calewlating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation fo significant actuariol assumptions, the same method
(present value of the defined benefie obbiganon calonloted with the projeened woit ersdic method st the end of the reporting penod) has been applicd as when
caleulating the defined benedit lability recognised in the balance sheet.

Thsere was mo change in the methoeds aged i preporing the sensinvity aalyses from prior years.

L. Itesk exposure

Valuations are based on cerain sssumptions, which are dynamic in pature aid vary over tine. As such valuation of he Company is exposed 1o [albowing
rizks -

n) Salory Increases: Higlher than expected inereases i salary will icreade the defined benefit obligation.

) Imvestment Fisk: Since the plan 3 funded then assers labilitnes nesmateh and actoal ivestment retuen on assers lower than the discount rate assumed an the laso
saluation date can impoet the defined benefit obligaion.

o) Longevity: The present value of the defined benedin plan lisbilay s eolealated by reference 1o Uee best estimate of the meortality of plan pasticipants boil during and
ofier their cogloyment. An increase in the life expectaney of the plan participants will increase the plan's labiling.

i) Discount rate: The defived benedlt obligation calealated uses a discount rane based on government bands, 17 bond viebds &l the defined benefit obligation will
tend fo anciease,

o) Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest e will iereage the plan labiling howover. this will be portially offset by an increase in the valse of the plan's debe
InvesTments.

I} Mortality and disability: I the actual deaths and disability cases are lower o higher than assumed in the valisation, it can impact the defiived benefit obligation.

) Withdrawabe: 17 the aciwal withdrawals are higher or lower than the psgumed sithdrawals or there s a change in withdrawal rates @1 subsequent valuations, it can
imipact defined benefin obligation

Oiber nop-carrent Habdlities
Amount ag al AHWUEE 35 AT
Rartiealars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred imcome (oaking contracts) 24143 17664
24043 17664
Vemfor bill inancing
Farticulary Amrint 88 @l Admoiial as at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Vendor Bl lnancing S0l.44 48132
501344 AR
Mote:

Mote! Vendor bill fmancing refers v the balusees pavable 1o the banks post supphiers discouting their mvoices under sopplier financing afrangements, This tacility 12
1o enable seloct vendors v recelve carly payment for their imvoiees direct |y from the bank and the Holding Comgasy makes the payments within the due dotes agreed
with the supplicr and thene are no special guaraniees to secie the paymenis o be made.

i Theiw siporee fues bewor detentisnally Jeff Blanks
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Trade Payables
Amwount s al Amount as at
Fartioniany 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Tonal owmstanding dues of nilcro enterprizes and smsll onieprises (efer nole 44 814,35 HUE.36
Total awtstanding duss of creditives other than micoo enberprises and small enterpeises® 2 30k 44 330103
321084 4,200.39
*Refer mote 37 for related party balnnees,
Rzfer note 35 for disclosure of falr values in redpedt of Tinoneial labilities
Trade pavable ageing schedule ws at 31 Mareh 2015
Particulars Orutstanding for foflowing periads from due date of payment
LUnbilled Mot due | Less than 1 year|  1-2 vears 2-3 years Mure than 3 years Total
(i) MSME* - Hlh42 7.33 - - - 814.35
(1) Oihers 24918 111278 T24.43 293 23 046 2 3096.49
Lk Dispated dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Digputed dues - Others - - = =
Traite pavable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024
Particalars Outsiamdbng for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Mot due | Less than 1 year| 1-3 yvears 1-3 vears Muore than 3 years Tuial
(E) MEME= - 25462 4315 - - 049 H9R.36
(1) Others S8 121461 157779 2.54 284 1.97 33103
(Eip Digpruted dues - MSME - . - - - - -
L) Dhsputed dies - Othess - - = - -
*MEME as per the Macro, Small and Mediom Evterprizes Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act)
Oeher financial lahilities
Ammnni s al At as at
Firiicatare 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Capital credinos® 5241 650
Empliyen benefits pavable Td.R2 Ta. 11
Consederation payable o customers | others 32773
Secunty deposiis piven 1o customers - LoES
Oithers™™ 1300 R0
140063 65T.8%
*Refer note 37 for related party balances,
**Refer note 35 for dusclosure of fhir values in regpect of financial habilines
Db ewrrent linbilltbes:
Aol s al Adtmound as at
Pariiculary 31 March 2028 11 March 2024
Advance from customers 4.63 T4.50
Diefierred icome (tooling contracts) 300 .57
Customes seewrily deposin 0. .ER
Suutory dies 157.3% 6143
Payable to velaved party (refier mote 37) T3k
Others - 1668
193,88 AU5.66
Corrent tax Habilities {nef)
Amsount s at Amiouat s at
Partiontirs 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current tax Habilities fiet of advance 1ax) 29239 R4
H92.39 Y284

(Thix space ks hees ineeionmdly deft hieok)
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Revenue from operations

For the yvear ended Far the vear emded
31 March 225 A0 Mlareh 2024
Sale of goods 047433 18,283 66
Hale of services
Inladmation lechislogy enablod seevices 94,77 154460
Business support servioe Tl 572
Engtieening sorvices TS 7153
272121 18,590.51
Oither operating revenne
Serap sales 32492 3356
Export incentives 2748 2iL0H
a4} 54.54
20,781.61 18645005
For the year ended  For the vear ended
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price: 31 March 225 31 Mareh 2024
Contracted proce AL 07388 19 15467
Adjustinents:
Less: discownis, rebates, refunds and eredisg 20T ARY R
Hevenae from operalions 2k, THL61 18,645,105
Oiher incoimns

For the vear ended
31 March 2125

Faor the vear ended
31 Mareh 2024

lnterest ineonss on

- fixed deposins with bank [ l] 3559
- imcome tax refund 15 :
- financial assets at amonised cosl 0.1 134
Liabulity mo kenger requited wrinen-back el
Proviseon for doubilul advances o supplier written-back 542 -
Forergn exchange fluctuanon (ner) R s |
bligcellatens teome L. 144
48.29 4620
Cost of nmterials o d
For the yvear ended Faor the vear ended
31 March 225 A1 March 2024
Opendig stk 1,051,358 RELEL
Add : Purchases 14,387.02 12, 756.44
Leas: Closing swock (453 (M1} (LA 5E)
Audjusimenon account of disconnnved operations (refor note 45) (598, TH) 3208
Raw materials consumgibon 14, 356,62 1272414

{Thix space fiex heen tieedionadly left hieal )
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Change la inventorics of lnished poods, work-in-progress and traded goods

Fuor the yvear ended
31 March 2125

Fuor the vear ended
A1 March 2024

Opening stock
Woth-n-prrogress
Fingslved goods

Tradied goods

Agdjustmient an acesunl of discontinued openations (refer note 45)

Less: Closing stock
Work-in-progress
Finisled goods
Tradied goods
Adjustmient on aceount of discontimued operntions (refer note 45)

Employee benefits expense

Lan 21 15542
31073 ane
23007 0123
(422.23) (2%1.14)
17379 43730
136,96 14621
17544 31073
239.09
: (42223
3TAN 17370
(3561} 16351

Fur the yvear ended
31 March 2125

Faor the vear ended
0 Mareh 2024

Salarees, woges and bonus

Cantribution L provident ancl sber funds [reter note (a) below|
Ciratuity expense [refer note 18{ch]

Seall welfare expenses

(@) Defined Contribution Plans

Amount recogaised i the Stteasnt of Prodin and Loss
(1} Prervidens Tund

1it) Employes siane insurames

Finanee costs

L, 136,74 IRLERE
4508 4901
19.33 16.47

14067 13924

1,344 86 1.268.11

EER 4518
X 37
45418 45.97

For the vear ended

Faor the vear emfed

31 March 2025 A1 March 2024
Interest i bease labiliny 4.24 446
Intereston delayed paviment of tx JERA 1.84
Other inaeiests 30,44 EEEL
49.77 40.19
Degreciation and amartisation expense
For the yvear ended For the vear ended
31 March 20125 31 March 2024
Depreciation on property, plant amd squipnwent (refer noe 3) Jihh 54 EAT
Depreciation on righ-o-use agsels (refer note 3) (TR 1376
Amortisation of intmgihle agsets (refor noe 4) 157 1.34
38525 A74.Th

(Tl space s heen intewionrdly deft hiank
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31 Odher expenses

For the yvear ended  For the vear ended
31 March 125 31 March 2024
Congumpiton of slomes and spares 250,54 23787
Packong materals consumed 297 4R 26556
Power and Tucl 2322 20040
Frvght and foewarding charges 170,14 150152
Fepoirs and mainiemnnee:
- Buildings 1887 Q959
- Phant and machinery 143849 13719
- (hers 1827 2188
Rent {refer note 44 0.6l 18.40
Hates and taxes 18.849 m
Travellhing and convevance T0.KS Thhs
lnsurance 1547 1578
Communieation expnses 742 1105
Printing and stationery 1023 1212
Legal and professional fees LA LER T
Payment o avditons CAL S
Provison for expected credit loss LA 12.940
Proviason for doubtiul advances - 420
Fesearch and development expenses EENE a3
Contractunl labour expenses Fa4.42 33329
Provision for Warrnly esponses 651 1354
Lows op sale of property, plant and equipment {net) el 038
Coeporate socil regpansibility {CSR) expendinure ELT| 3247
Feorvalty Expense {refor note 17) 46575 HiE 44
Mlavagement support charges (refer note 37) 9Ll 15281
Mliscellanesus expenses 09,249 0742
244580 2462 H5

I Tl g fues bewor detentianally Jeff Blanks
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Income tax expnse
For the vear ended For the year ended
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Ineome tax expense rom conlinning operations.
- Current tax 1 A41.50 11307
- Tax pertaining o carlier years .04 440
- Daeferied s {33.446) 545
Incoare tax expendke fom discontued operations: 24075 a5
1.664.73 58178

The tmapor compofents of income iy expense and the reconcilianen of expense based on the domesiie effective tax ote of a1 25.17%
(51 March 20240 251 T4 amaf thi reporied i expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Profit before income tax expense [Fm conlinumg operaliens U e 1, 25764
Profit before ncoane tux expense fom disconiineed operations B0 i671
Tadal profit before lneome (ax expense Q05161 217440
Prevalent tax rate of 251 7% (previows yeor © 25.17%) 230487 247258
Tax effects of amounts which ore not dedoctible / fallvwabbe] incaleolamng taxable income:
Moi-ieductible expeises for 1y purpose 2116 2047
Tax relared 1w earlier years .5 1.1
Iseome mxahle at different time on sule of subsidiary (h23.20) -
Difference on gecount of loat of control of subsidizidisconinued operations® {152.68) =
hers 1. 577
Income fax expense 1.664.73 581,79

*Abpve includes 18 reconciliation of continued and discontinued opesatbons. Refer note 45 for discontinued spertions.

Assets classified as beld for sale

Diuelng the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board of Divectors of the Holding Company, at its meeting held on 10 Fanuary 2025, passed o
vesolution 1o sell the entre sharcholding i Maple Renewable Power Pravate Limited ("MEPPL™. Accordingly, the Holdirg Comgany
tssued @ notice of rermmation of the agreement via lener dated T March 2025 e disinvest i dnvestment m MEPPL. This investinent ad at
31 March 2023 is pending o be transferred a2 ot bobanee sheet dwe. Consequently, the investment has been classified 25 an “Assot Held for
Sala®

Subseguently, en L6 May 2025, the Holding Company sobd 115 entine shareholding in MRPPL fora totad comdideration of 28,70 million.
The details of Maple Benewable Power Privave Linuted as at 31 March 2023 o5 keld for sabe:

Partbculars Amsount as af 31 March 2015
Assers classified as held for sale 870
Tatal Pl
Laabulivees relating 10 assets classified as held for sale BT
Total 8.7

(T space fes heow (nterdionlly fef Bigak )
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Finnncial risk ousnagenent

Flnancisl issitroments by aiegnry®

Pariculars Level of Aroisne as 31 31 Manch 2025 Amaant as ar 3 March 3024
hierarchy

Flnancisl nssets measwred ot ansrtised cost! L}

Lasami 1 emplenvees 3 402 1157

Lioass to zelnied parties 3 - 2RO

ikher francial asscs 3 K339 76 104

Trade receivaklos 3 L L by 1RE5.96

Cash and cagh cquivaloes 3 6705 151124

Bank hakieces other than cash and cash squivalents L] L] 150

Finuneial assets messured st falr vaboe through prefit sr boss:

Investments 2 339 HED

Totul amseiy L lnd4d 4,644 50

Finnnekal liahilities

Lense limbilities L] 15 80 (Bl

Trade payables 3 320084 421438

Wendor bell financing 3 Sk 44 2§13

b fmancial liahiksi k] L) 63 157,59

Tostul 52070 & 4HH.EH

*There ore oo finsncml assels and lishilines whech are messared ar @ar value throwgh pratil oc doss or fair value threogh cther comprebensive mcome-

Falr volae hierarchy

The fir vahse of fmancinl Fstruments 2 referred 10 m oose (i) obove has been classified oo fuir velue hisrarchy categones depending on the nputs used in the volution
iechrecuie. The hierarchy gives the highest poomay o gooied prices m ective markets {or deniionl assets or babilsies [Level 1 | omd lowest priority i
unohservahle inpots [Level 3 measurements |,

Leevel b2 Qucted prices (unndjusted) in active markess for financial ssirumenis.

Lewvel 2t The fair vakhse of financial estruments that are oot tradal inon sctive marked i deteromned using vulustim techmcpes which maximse the ase of ahservable mmirke
dlata redy 2 kil os passihle an ity specific estmates.

Level 3: ¥ ome or mare of the sipnifican emuts is not based on observable marker dote, the meirument i cluded i lovel 3

The carrying amownt af rede receivahles, other bank halaness, csh and cash equivalents. boares 1 employees and relased parties {correns), secursy deposil (current), trade
pavahles, vendor ball financing snd other financial BEahilitizs which are shan term m nsture are considersd 1 same ag dheir fir values.

The fae valus of securiy deposds. loans to employees, reeanvable from relaied party amid lease lishilsies aro colouloted basad oo cosh ows discewmad osing a cement kodnsg
raic ar inferest rate agreed as per controciul agreomeni.

Al fimancial assers and financial lmbalities ane clessbied os kevel 3 s values nche fair voboe heerarchy due 1o the use of anohservable mpucs, mckading can crodn resk, cooepe
invesinoenis

Irvestremts and asset held for sale are clossifed as level 2 i values inothe e valoe hioochy,

There have been no rensters hetween Level 1, Level 2 and Level 2 fior year ended 31 Manch 2025 and 31 Banch 2024,

Risk nazny

The Hebding Coopany's ocinies spose i oo markel nsk, Bquididy msk and credd rsk. The Holding Companys Board of Dwectars. hes overnll respunsdhiliay o the
esanhlshmen and oversigin ol the Hodding Compam's rsk management framewock: This nole explaims the sources of risk whach the entity is exposed o and how the enimy
mamapes the risk and the related smpact in the firancial sialements.

§A) Credit risk mansgement

Credlit risk i the risk thy o coamerparty fads w dischorge an oblignoan o the Holding Company. The Heldmg Company 15 expased w0 this tisk for vanous financal
instrumemns, [or example by gmefing lbaes and receivables do custamers, placing deposgs, ete. The Holding Campany's caximum expasure to crodt risk is limited to the
warrying smaunt of fedkmwing tvpes af Amncinl ase.

= cash and cash sgaiva o,

= trude Tepsivable,

« loams onid receivoblzs mensured ot amanised cost. md

= hamk balapees ather than oash and cosh equivabents

Credii risk manzgement

The Holding Compary assesses and monages credia risk hased oo internal credit ratng sysiem. cominzoasly monivoring: defauls of osstomers and cther comtepaties,
idemified wither indvidually or by the Holiding Company, and meorpomtes this mformation mio s onedit sk comtrols. Ingemal credi g 15 performed: dor each class of
Tinaneml instruments with diffecent chamctenistics. The Holiling Company assigns the following credit ratings ir ench class of fimncial assets basad on the assumpoions, inpuis
amil Factors specilic o the class of finencil exsers

A Lo

B Mlediuny

£ High

Assets under crechl rsk

Credit rating Particulars Amoumt &3 0t Amnuni as ad
31 Murch 2022 31 March Ju2d
ArLow Cash und cash equivalents 427.08 1.511.24
Bark halances ather than cash and cash equivalents A0 [FE]
Cither financinl nssets H,330.78 51604
Trade recenvable 3, E92.H2 2 RS 06
Loans H.02 21LEY
B: High Trade roceivable 30 a0 &b

Cash and cach aquivalems aod bank deposin
Credit nsk refated 1o cnsh anid cash coquivalents and bank deposits = mamaged by only occeprimg kighly raied banks and diversifying hank deposie and accounts in difforen
‘hanks acrass the cosmry,
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Trade seccivabies

The Holfding Company chisely montiors ihe credit-wanbiness of the debiors ifroaeh mnmml sysiems that are comfgored o defime oedin lemiis of customers, thereby, limiting
the predit nsk o prescakuloted amounss. The Hoeliding Company asseses increase i eredit nsk on oo ongoing basis for amoants receivable tha beeone past due ond defauli &
comidered o have cccurred when ninoumds receivable become six renths past due

idrieer fimenetal cosen e fovas measared of csortived eoss

DOiker financinl asseis measured ab amonised cost which conssis of security dopesits, recovable fram reloted party and Joans io omployees. Crodit risk relsied b these viber
fmancml zsseis is managed by monitenng the recoverabality of such ammmts contemmousky, while o the same tine internol cenirol system in place ensure the amoans zre within
abefined lemits. Furtter, i respect of mvestmend ot fair value theough profin and loss socound, the credi rsk i respect of sach invesinenis are 2ssessed on the basis of the fair
valug of the respeetive companies determined hased on the currem bid price of respective investment as mi the balsnee shoet date.

Expected erodin kosses for financisl nssets

Expecied crodin boss for irsde recelvables wnider simplificd approach

The Growp recognises lifztime oupecred oredit losees oo imade receivobles using o simplified approach, wherein Group bas defined pacestege of provision by ambsing
histarical renid of defenli based n the criteria defined above and such privision percentage devormingd have been considercd #0 recognise life e expected credit losses un
trade receivables

Reconcilinting of liws provision - lfetime expeoted eredit bascs

Reconcilintion of nss allswance Trade recedvabie
Lass sllowance om 1 April 2023 Ipxy
Lrpairmem ks recogmisedmeversed during the vear® I
| Amaunes written off {1.76)
Loes sllownmee om 31 March 2024 42540
Impairmen bes recogmised reversed during the vear® [ 5]
Aumaunts written off -

[ Adiustment on ocooant of dscominued operations {refer pove 453 R
Loss allowance o 31 Morch 2623 3079

*lochdes expected crodit ks allnwance losses recognised for discontinued apemation (reder naie 451

Flnancial assets (odher dbam frade receivobles)

The Halding Company provides for expocted creds bosses on other than tmde receivables by assessing individual finaneinl swinements for expectation of any credd loss e,

« Far cash & cash equealenis and oeher hank balances - Since the Molifing Campany deals with anly high-mied hanks and financial institations, crodil risk i respect of cash
andl cash oqaivalems and bank deposits is evaluated as very bow

= For loans to anployees and secunty deposits pasd - Credii risk 5 considered ko because the Holifing Company is in possession of the andedving assel

« Far recervahle from relsiod party - Mamgemem considers the recenable from relstsd pany o be ke credit risk snce they bove o ow risk of defool and the relsied porbes
has & srong capaciy bo meet its concraceasl cash flow obfipstions in the near term.

= For investmem ot fair value thrugh profic oo oss account « Cradie risk in respect of such invesaments are mssessad o the besis of the iy valoe of the respective conspanies
etermene] based oo the omrent bid poce of respective asvestment g at the halance sheet dae.

= [For pther financinl assees - Credit risk 15 evalunied basad oo the Holding Company kniewledee of the cradn worthiness of these paroes and loss sllownnee 5 moasisred. For
such firancial ossets, the Company poficy i oo provide for 12 monmih expecied credii Josses wpon imsial recognition and provide for Bfetinme expected credic loeses upon
signileant imereese in crod sk

Linsidity Risk

Praodent liguidity rsk management mmplies masszining sufficient cash and marketahle securmies and ihe svailshilty of funding throaph an sdeqguare smosm of comitied
wreddit Tacilities o meer abligations when due. Due oo the misre of the basiness, the Holifing Corqany maineeins fexibility in Ginbing by maicmining availability ander
comimitted favilities,

Manapement monivars culfing forecasts of the Hildng Company's Liquidiny position and cach ond cash eqguivalenss on the basis of expected cash lows. The Holding Compary
takes e acooun ibe Bauidsy of the marke in which the iy operaies. Inaddgion, the Holding Compamy”s liguidity management policy invelves projocting cash oo in
majur currencies and comsiderng the level of loaid assels pecesary in meet these, momiiocng balance shest luidity maries opainst inkernal sl exsamal reguloiory
reguirements and maintaming debi firancing placs

Fimncing srrangements

The alding Company had socess w e fillowag andraws borrowing fncilibes 23 e end of the reparting period:

Pariiculsrs 31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Flogzing mte

=Expiring within one year {bank averdmifi, short worm oredii and other Scdiines | BO5.RT LUST.

BOEET 195770

Maturities of fnoncial Lizhities
The amnunts disciosed in the mblke ore the comractunl wadiscounted cash fows. Halonces doue withis 12 momehs equal ther carrying balances as the impact of discounting is
nol sigmifivant.

(Comtractanl af linbiligies

Farticulsrs Less than | vear 1-3 year 34 veur More than & years T oeal

Ax ot M March 2025

Mom derivatives

Lense Fabilities 24,0 1441 ol - a2
Trade pavahles 32ME4 - - - 121084
Wender bill fisane 03,44 - - = 50344
Uiker Fnancal linbili 163 = = = Idikad
Tabul ARTESY 14.98 v = J.R94.03
Particulars Less thmn § vear 13 yeur 32 yenr More than £ years Tutal

A ut 31 March 2024

Mum derivatives

Lense babilities T T9.32 Q.52 - 154,48
Trade pavable A 203 - - - 4.309.18
Wendor bill financing 4zl - - - 441,32
[Ciiheer Fnancial liahidies. 65789 - - - £57.89
| Tastul £433.33 7053 [ LF] - 50387
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(€9 Marked Risk

11

Foreign eurrency risk

The Halding Commpamy is exposed 1o foeeipn exchange sk arising fram foceign cormency ransaccians, primariby with respect o ihe US Doller, Fure opd Gireot. Britsan Poand.
Foreign exchanpe risk arises fram recopnised nssets and Bebilities dessminnied moa currency that is not the functiceal currency of any of the Hakding Corgpany. Consedering
the low velome of foreign cormency imnsacions, the Halding Company's exposure o foreign currescy rsk s htted and the Holding Company bence doss not use nny
dhrvabive msinements o mannge is scpeure. Also, the Holding € oompaey doos nel ase farward contmacts snd swaps for speculative purposes.

{2} Farcigm currency risk expasire

The Holding Company exposure io foreim currmey (FC) risk ot the o of the reporting perisd expressed in 2 millions as foflows

Farticulsrs Carrency Amoumt @ ot 31 Mareh 2023 Amouni oy @i 2] Morch 2004
In FC Inl In AT In ¥

Fimmncisl nysel

L ash in Hank LIS 162 LAR5T Li3:53 743
ELR - - a0 iz

Trade recavabbs LUK LR L] L¥ L[4 ] 1137
LISy 4Rk 41137 L H] 24879

Exposure in forelgs currency risk {asseiy) .83 25944 4010 23143

Finaacial Eahibity

Trode Payables. ELR .79 A9 079 T
GEP Q.0 .65 0.0k {180
CNY - - 197 275
Lisiy 536 47578 107 RE7.13

Oher finamcis] Hakility

(Capital croditoes EUR A1 13 e B85
LIS - - LINTE} 1.42

Exposure to lereign curreney risk {iabilies) 042 2508 3144 1.204.67

Met exposure io foreign carrency risk 449 (H75.24)

Semsitivity

A hiy pomsible strenpbening | ing) af the ¥ apzinst all other foeeign currencies = linascial year end woald heve affected the mensorament of fiancial

instramerns denaminsted in a foreign ;:urrmc)' anil affiecasd profit or loss by the amauni shawn below This ambesis assumes (e all other varishles remain comstant and
ignores my impact of loneeast sabs and purchases,

Aot on ol Amunt oy at

i 31 March 2628 31 March 2024

USIF Semnitivity

INR /USD - Increase by 24 L (&)

IKH /LUSEY - decreuse by 2 (1.1 Hed

- Amoumt s sl Aanound as 6l

Piientess 31 March 2028 31 March 2024

ELRO Sensitiviey

[NR /EUR - Incresse by 24 {103} (101§

INR ELIR - decrease by 2% Lo Lol
Amonmt 5% of Anwnt oy 85l

Fiilenlui %I March 2625 31 March 224

GIF Senskivity

INR AGHP . Incresse by 2 jiony (0

INR AGID .« decrease hy 2% 00t no1
Amonmi ns ol Amoani us af

Lo ] 31 March 2635 31 March 3124

CNY Sensithity

INIACNY - lncrease by 2% . (3.41)

MR ANY - decrease by 2% i 341

{Thin space Jur Beew indewriomally Joft hiank)
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ilii Eterest ruie risk
{u) Linhilities

]

|l

i

The Halding Company dos nat lave any bomewmgs onil hence there 5 no imesest rne nske

Assels
The Heldmg Company’s fixed deposds are carned at amaor sed oot sod are Mxed rae depusss. They are therefore nal subgect 1o inferest raite rsk os defined m Ind AS. 107,
since mether the carrying amoant nor the fuure cash fows sl thidunte becase of o change in market ederest rates.

Price rlsk
The Haliling € oompany does not have any significant investments m eguety instruments which cresie an expasure (o price nsk

Capital Manugemeat

The Hnking Compamn’ 5 capiinl manzgavent objecimves an

= 1o ensure the Holdng Company“s abulity wo comiizoe 0g a going concern

= iy prowide an adequale rewm to shorebolders

The lalding C ompare: moniars capital on the boss of the carrying amourn of soquity kess cash and cash equivalems = preseneed on the Pace of halonee shee.

Muanapement assesses the Hobding Company®s capilal reqairaments in arder to mastain an efficent overzll financing structure while avosdng excessive leverage. This inkes
intis aceount the subordination bevels of the Halding Company's various classes of debt. The Holdng Company manages the capaal ssructure and mokes odjusiments o m the
light af’ changes i economsc canditions snd the risk damcteristics of the underlying assets. In arder wo maimuin or adfast the capital structare, the Hedding Caompony may
adjust the smount of divicends paid w sharehodders. retum capital to sharsboldere. issue new dares, or sell rssets to redoce debt

Amound as ot 3 Amount e ar 31
Fartculars

Mdurch 2033 March 1024
Towl deba . .
Less: Cash and cash equivalenis a27.03 1.511.24
Nt deba (827.05) {L511.24)
Toial equiry 11, 22560 311777
et debd to equity rotine = -
Poee:
Deba 10 equiry raiio has been shiwwn as Wil a3 the colculaied anwors depicis 2 negatve balance.
Divislend
Farticulars ¥ Murch 3658 31 Wlarch 021
Equity shares
Lenterim divicdendd o per 21 1,4%4 415 cynity share for the year emded 21 March 3023 I, k49.ai 1E53.H

431 Mvbarcl 2024: I6, 53220

The Board of Direviors of the Holdimg Company: in ios meeiing hekl on 26 Jane 2024, 21 Oowber 2624, 26 December 2024 and 17 Manch 2005 have declared and pacd an
interin dividend of @ 125,21 | %SG, ¥ DTN and T 149,680 respectivelly, on fully paid cquny shares, oggregating w ¥ 1,149.4] millions for the financial vear ended 31
Morch 2025,

Suhsequent to the year end, the: Board of Cerecers of the Haolding Company in #is meeimg held on 86 Moy 2025 have declaral and paid everem dividend of T 34 141k an gally
paid equity shares. The e hos not been recognized as Gishilay and considered us non odjustng evem,

PRl apuace s Devn iugnnosals Gt il



Tennecn Awtemotive India Private Limited
Nobes to Uhe C Widated Fi lal Stini

AN ety fr E millione, wiless atherwise slaled)

37 Helated party disclosures

ts lor the vear ended 31 Mareh 2025

{ap Name of related parties and nature of rebithonship:

1]

(i)

(i)

Parent entities:
Uhirmate holding company

Irmediaze holding company:

Intermediate holding coampanies:

Pogasus Holdings One LLC

Tenneco Clean Adr India Limdted { formerly known as Tenneco Clean Air India Privame
Limited) {with effect from 25 March 2025)
Tenneco Mauritivg Holdings Limited, Mauritos (6l 24 March 2025

Tesneea LLC. USA {lormetly, Tenneco Ine., LISA)

Tenneeo Autobwiive Operating Company LLC {formerly, Tennéoo Automoiive Opetating
Commpany Inc., LISA)

Tenneco Intematoial Holdings Corp., USA

Tenneeo {ilobal Holdings nc., U5A

Tenneco Mauritiog Limited, Muagrntiog

Parthes under common contral with whn transactions have taken place during the vear

Fellow subsidiaries

Koy management personne]

Tenneeo Automomve Tradig Company LLE (formetly known a5 Tenneco Antomotive
Trxding Compey

Tenneco Automotive Europe BV, Belgnon ( fermedy. Tenneeo Automotive Burope BVEA
Boelpiu)

Advanced Suspension Technobegy LLC | formerly, BV Awomotive Dic )

Tenneeo Automotive Brazl Lid

Monroe Mekico 5.DE B L DE CV {formerly. Monros Mexico 540V, Mexioo)

Fric Rot 5.ALC, Arpenting

Tesineco Autonwtive Fastern Furope Sp 2. o, o

Tenneco Ride Control South Aftiea (PTY) Lid., South Afriea

Blomrie Crechin 8RO, Czecl Republic

Tenneco {Suzhou) Co. Lid., China

Tenneeo (Changzhouw) Ride Control System Co. Led | formerly, Tenneeo | Chongehou) Ride
PForformonce, Chinap

Tenneco Korea Limited, South Korea

Federal Mogul Coventry Lamited. UK

Federal-Mogul Motorpares (Incdiah Lanived, Tndiz

Diewv Japan Lid., Japan

Tenneco | Suzhou) Ride Comrol Co., Lid Clina

The Pullman Company LLE (formerly, Thee Pulloss Compasy)

Fiederal-Mogil de Mexico 5. de BRL de OV (fomsetly, Temneco Mexicon 5 de RL de CY)
Federal-Mogel Motorpars (Singapose) Pre Lid {formerly, Federal-Mogul Motompans

[ Singapore} PLed)

Federal-Mogul Motorpars LLC

Foederal-Mogul of South Afvica {Propricty ) Limited ( formerly, Fedemnl-Mogul of S_Adrica)
Federal-Mogul Goerze (India) Limied, India

Federal Maogul Izgnition Produees India Limited, India

Fiederal Mogul TPR India Limited, India

Federal-Mogul Sealing India Limited | India

Federal Mogul Anand Bearing lndio Limited | India

Federal-Mogul Motorpares LLC, Southifiebd. Michigan, USA

Federal Mogul lraly sl faly

Federal-Mogil Mtorpars LLC, Fort Lasdendale, FL, United States

Federal Mogul Metorparts Corporation - Landerdale

Federal-Mogel Fractuon Products T hailamd) Lanited, Thokand

Federal Mogul Maetompars, Skokic, USA

Diewe Automotive lne Southfield, Michigan, USA

Momroe Australin Pry Lid {formerly, Mooroe Asstealia)

F-M Smyrna | Snayema)

F-M Wilkebrock - Be (Begaexp®)

Federal Mogal - Powertrain L

bostocane Incdia Privite Limited, ndia (freim 25 Manch 2025

Br. O Subramananm, Managing [Meector

Mr. Praveen Kumar Singh, Director

Pl Mayun Ramdasi. Company Secretary (ull 14 January 2025)
bls, Priva Nemge, Commpany Secretary §fom 15 May 2025)

s, Jyoti Blhuirana

B E'radce-p Cigutam

Mr. Pravik Artray

br. Sanjeey Kuimr

The abaye Hating meludes the rebsted parties with whom transactions bave tiken place mothe current yeor or previsis vear

{Thix space fiex heen aeesionadty deft hieak)



Temneen Automotive Indin Private Limited

Motes 1o the Conselidaied Fluancial Statements for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2015

A iF cnnemant dr & prillions, unles otheraive soted)

Related party disebosures {cont*d)

(b} Transactions with the related parties In the ordinary course of busisess:

Mature of transactin

Nature of related party
relationship

For the year enaded
21 March 2025

Fuor the vear ended
A0 Mareh 2024

(1) Salbe of goods
Tennees Autcanotive Operating Company LLC (formerly, Tenneco

cemedliate . ] 5
Auformetave Chperating Company lae, LSA) abemacliats haldling company 1gda 4360
::\':mud Suspensgon Techonlogy LLC ( formerly, Deiy' Automonyve Fallow: sulisiiiary FTHE 13,00
Temneeo Autemotive Ewrope BY ., Belgiom (formerly, Tenneco ) : 2
Autsritive Exrope BVEA,, Belluns) Fellow subsidiary 15.4WF Sih3d
Temneeo Auteaotive Trading Company LLC {formerly know as " s ~
Tenneso Autemotive Trading Company) Fellowriuisldiary 156
Tenneco Ride Control South Adrica (PTY ) Lid. ., Sourtly Adiica Fuellow subsidiary 287 el B 1
Tennees Autsnetive Eastern Ewrope SP. 200, Poland Fallow subsidiary 02 [ ]
Munroe Mixkeo SDE R L DE CV {(former |y, Monroe s -
Mexico S0 0 V. Mexicol Fellow subsidiary 158 05
Dirvy Japan Ll Japan Fellow Hubsidjur}' 2444 2442
Tennecs Aulomolive Brazil Lud Fuollow subsidiary 132 2462
Fric Rot 3400, Argentiin Fellow subaidiary 2226 12,04
Federal Mol laly .11 Fellow subsidiary 282 32
Federa I-M:.mgm _nr South Afiica (Propricty ) Limited (formeely, Federal Fellow subsidiary 564
Muzul of 5 Afvica)
Fedetal-Mogul Motorparis {Singapone) Pre Lid | formerly. Federal- S

Fellow subsidiary 214

Mogul Moworparts | Singapose) PLid) I
Mutocare budia Private Limited. lodea Fellvw sulsidaary AT

{fruen 25 March 2025) "
Federil-Mopul Goetee {ndia} Linsned Follow subsidiary h.23
Total 2 31652
(il) Sale of services: Information rechnology enabled services
Tenneco LLC ., USA formerly, Tenneco Inc_, LISA) Intermediate boldimg company 94,77 154 /0
Tatal bE Al 1540640
(ili} acome from Business Support Services
Tenneco LL('1 U.';;&iﬁlnmﬂ}', Tenmeco lae, LUSA) Intermedenge |hJ||J!hg COMIapInY 827 1324
Temneeo Autemotive Evrope BY., Belgium (formerly, Tenneco L
Autamative Europe BYBA.. Belgium) Follow subsidiary 4208 4R3I
Tenneco Automotive Operating Company LLC {forinerly, Tenpeco . . 0
Auiorotive Dperating Compary Isc., USA) Inteemediate bolding company 023 14974
Fedenl-Mopul Motsrparis LLE Firllow subsidiary 250 [
Taotal TAh T5.78
(v) Purchase of goods
Tenneeo Auteanotive Efm:pu_r Fl‘u'.: Belgium ( formerly, Tennecno Fellaw subsidiary 236,18 15650
Autonwdive Europe BYBAL, Belium) °
Monroe Ceechia S RO, Criech Republic Fellow subsidiary {134 [ V]
Tenneeo Bide Contral Scwih Adnea (PTY) Lud., Soutls Africa Fellow subsidiary a2 3.2
x\l;mnd Suspension Technology LLC { formerly, DriV' Automotive Follw subsidiary 249 940
Tenneco (Swehou) Co. Lid, China Fellow subsidiary 145 {73
Tenneen (Changehou) Ride Control System Co. Lid {formerdy, H L "
Tenneens (Changahou) Bide Perfomuanees, China Pellw; bl iflary L3 20
Tenneen Autcanotive Brazil Led Fellow subsidiary 249 221
E-bd Willebrock - Be |Begaexpt) Fellow subsidiary - -
Dy Japan Lid., Japan Fellow subsidiary - {28
F-tl Srmyrna ( Smyma) Fallow subsidiary 0.7 -
Federal Mogiel Coventry Lomied, LR Fellow subsidiary 2406 340
Fedetal Mogul Anamd Bearing India Lud, 034
|'L'|ltrn|3‘[ugu| Frictoom Prodiscts I,T.hii.hhld! Lemated, Thatlaisd Fellovw subsi h, 1. -
Federal Mogul Motorparia Endia Lud, Fuollow subsidiary 144 52150
Fideral Mogul Goetze India Led. Fellow subsidiary 1202461 .50
Federal Moyl Ignition Indea Led. Fellow subsidiary 53234 B52 )
Federal Mogul TPR lodis Lid. Follow subsidiary 103 .
Teaneen (Suzboul Rade Control Co, Lid Ching Fellow subsidiary 047 2
Tenneen Autemotive Eastern Ewrope Sp oz oo, Fellow subsidiary R k45
The Pullman Company LLC { formely, The Pullman Company Fellow subsidiary - .67
Tutal 2019165 1aH4.03




Temneen Automotive Indin Private Limited

Motes 1o the Conselidaied Fluancial Statements for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2015

AR aovemyny i & oilliong, unlees otherwive staied)

Related party disebosures {cont*d)

(b} Transactions with the related parties In the ordinary course of busisess:

Mature of transactin

Nature of related party
relationship

For the year enaded
11 March 2025

Fuor the vear ended
A0 Mareh 2024

() Purchase of propenty, plant and equipnsent

Munroe Avstralia Pry Lid {farerly, Mootoe Austrliag Firlhsw subsidiary [REEH
;':.:\-:mtd Suspeinsion Technology LLO( formerly. DeiV' Automotive Fallow:dibeidiary ~ 136
Tutal - 1H.HY
{vih Linferest incoime
Federal Muogul Motorparts | Indi) Limited Fellow subsidiary 1584 20030
Total 15.48 2030
(vil) Re-imbursement of expenses paid
Dy Japan Lud., Japan Fellow subsidiary 226
Finderal Mogul Goetze {Indiap Limaod 1719
Federil Mozl Mosorparis Ddia Luf, Fiellsw subsidiary (L2
Fric Bor 8.4 00, Argenting Fellow subsi (Al
Federal Mogul Ignimion Indin Lid. Fellow subsidiary -
Tenneco Clean Adr India Limrted (formesly knowan as Tenneco Clean Imumbeddiate holdmg comgpany 024
Adr India Provate Limited) {froen 25 March 2023) -
E-M Sryrna {Sovima) Fellow subsidiary 048
E-0 Willebrock - Be |Begaexpd) Fellow subsi [IEE
Federal Mugul - Powertenn LLC Fellow subsi -
Federnl Mogel TPR lndia Lid. Fellow subsidiar R
DoV Automonive Ine Southfield, Michipan, USA Fellow subsidiary -
Tenneco Automotive Europe BYHA, Belgiun Fellow subsidiany - {51
Tatal 1164 .51
(vill) Re-imbursement of expenses recelved
Teaneo Clean A lndia Limited (fommetly known as Tenneco Cléan Immediare holding company L
Adr Indin Private Limited) {from 25 Maorch 2025} =
Federalbogel Motorpars LLC, Southfield, Mickigan, LSA Fellow subsidiary 1.54
Federalhogul Motsrparts. Skokie, UEA Fillow subsidiary 1LLAK
DRIV Automotive Inc Southfiebl, Michigan, USA Fellow subsidiary .45
Federal Mogal Powertrn L1 Fellow subsi 1202
Federal Mogul falysrl Fellow subsidiary (KIS}
Federal Mogel Goerze India Lid, Fellow subsidiary 6.21
Federal Mogul TPHE lades Lid, Follow subsidiany 130
Total 613 -
(hap Sale of Investosent
Foderal-Mogul Motorparts India Limied Fellow subsidiary §,291.54 -
Tutal B.293.54
(1) Inderest on recoveralle (rom related party
Federal-Mopgul Motorpains India Linied Fellow subsidiary 190 -
Tural 19040
(xip Gain on sabe of investment(subsidiary)
Federal-Mogul Motorpans ndia Limited Fellow subsidiary 573451 =
Tatal 573451
i} Boyalty
Tenneco Automotive Operating Company LLC [foemeely, Tenneco e e . & 7e
Aultitnoiive Operating Compiany Isc., UEAY Intermediate bulding eompany Bl SR
DR Awnesotive Ine Southfeld, Michigan, UsA Fellow subsidiary - 25135
Total 465.75 433509
{adii) Manngement supiport charges
Tenneen Autemotive Operaing Company LLC (formerly, Tenneco Lsermidbirs holdingcompany 91-40 182 &1
Automotive Operating Company Inc., LSA) -
Tostal G140 1HLE1
{iv ) Dividend Pubd

. . S i Immediare holding company Gida
Tennees Mavetius Holdmgs Limed, Maurinss {111 24 Maseh 2025) LT 246228
Tenneco Mot Limited, Maurities Intermediate boldimg company 2x 71 |G 52
Sanjoey Kurmir Singh Ky manageiient pecionnel [IRIE] {105
Tatal 1,149.43 1.653.25
(xii) Loans to related partles
FL‘dL‘IuI-”"LDEI.IJ _\tuuupnm {India) Limired, India Fellow 5ubgidi;u}' A0
Toral JELAHE -
(%) Lonm payment recelpt {inter conpany deposits)
Federal-Mopgul Motorpars ¢lsdia} Linsed, ndaa Fellow subsidiary 1054
Tatal 105041 -




Temneen Automotive Indin Private Limited

Motes 1o the Conselidaied Fluancial Statements for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2015

A iF cnnemant dr & prillions, unles otheraive soted)

Related party disebosures {cont*d)

(b} Transactions with the related parties In the ordinary course of busisess:

Nature af transsction Nature of related party For the year enaded Fuor the vear ended
relationship 31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024

{avl) Metworking fees

Federal-Mogul Motorpars LLC, Southfiebd, Michigsn, USa Fellow subsidiary AL

Total Al -

(uvii) Relmborsement of expenses by group companies

Federal Mozl Giodrze ndia Lad, Fellow subsidiary f2l 1518

Federal Muogul TPR lndia Lid. Follow subsidiary 1354 24m

Federal Mogal - Powereom LLE Fellow subaidiary 1x02

Federal-Mopul Motspars LLC, Seubificld, Michigan, USA Fellew subsidiary X T8

Federnl Mogul Moterpaoris, Skokee, USA Fellow subsidis 11.HR 33

DRV Avtomotive lie. Southfield, Mickigan, USA Fellow subsidiary 0.4% (.

Federal Mogul laly .01 Fellow subsidiary S -

Tatal 3544 211.28

(uvlil) Renmmeration to key managerial personnel

Me. RO Sabmersintiam Maonaging MMeector 33758 ILnh

Mz Praveen Koemor Singh Dhrecuor 1754 17481

Me. Sanpeev Kumar Dhrector 3568 2404

Me. Pratik Atiray [Hrestu RAO5 552

e Pradesp Gautam Dhirecior w42 550

o Company Secrelary

Mz, Mavuri Bamdast il 14 Janary 2029) 1.64 124

Ma. Jyom Khuorana Uompany Secretary 024 240

[Tistal [UERES 034

Nites:

13 Al sales and purchase above are inclusive of GET {wherever applicable). Sales ase net of the sales retum.

1) Kev Managerial Personpe] who are under the employment of the Cotpany are entitled 1o post-comployment benefits and other long ferin emploves
benefitg secoguised as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee Bepefits” in the finoneial staternems. As these cmplovee beoefis are lump swm amouwnts proveded on the
basis of actuarial valustion, the sane s not included above

i Thix space bues bigen iniertionally fefl blanki



Temnven Awtsmotive India Frivaiy Limited
Mites b the {
AT cnienrs de o milliis, arides sekeivtie draded)

Kedated party disclvsures (vont'd)

4ot Bulampes with related partics & st il year ond 31 March 20252

il I i Lad Simi s Bor ibe year ended 31 March 2025

Mamuge of related parmy Aumaiimt @5 al Aminiisl as @)

Paribeubar -

] ' y 1 March 2025 1 Maren 2024
i) Trade payunhle
Temnoco Auioimoiive Opeabmg Company LLT (formedy, Tenneco Aagommolive A
Cherading C my I, US4} Imtenuediaiy boiding compsmy pus o -4 BOO5
Tomiven Hulnlmm“.-l'lfumve BY ., Bdgmem (formerty, Tommeoe Auamosive Ewmope Falkvirmitehtinny 1400 adae
BYBA., felyinmk *
Aabvaneed Buspension Technology LLC | fnmers, Dely Assomsiin Ini | Fellivw subsidizey i LI¥
Monroe Coechin 5,100, Ceocs Republic Fellow subsidisny ool Dl
Temneco Autnmoiyve Basiern Europe Spo2. oo, Fellw subsidinry in 0w
Temneco Ride Coernl Soath Afvicn {PTY) Lad. Sowh Adnes Fellww sobsiiliary nxl nEy
Diriy Japsin Lad . Japan Fellow subsidissy oAl 253
Tiomaiaten § St hosat Cib, L, Chimn Fellow subsidisey a3l ]
Tomiwwn Aubmmrive Braal Lk, Braerl Fellow sifsidiary s [LR]
Ty Auiommive Ine Scuthficld, Muckigan, LSA Fuelluay srhwiilisey - I505
Temeen Forse Ll | Sl Kores Fellow subsidisry a 049
Temneen {CRsmprhoul Exde Comral Systom Co Lid | formesly, Tenmeos Feli i 120 am
T b Ride Perfimmance, China) e ot .
Federal Migul Covmiry Limited, LK Fellimw subsidinry 05 051
Ferleral Mogul Mutornans ladia Ll Feliow subsidisny - 445
Foaoral Megul Goetee Inda Lok Fellow submidiney - AT
Federal Mogul Ipsition Imadin Led Fellow srbaidinry - 5948
T mieon | suehion) Rode Conined o, Lid China Fellw sunsidisey [E1ex &
Temiecn Autnmoive Eanermn Fuope 52200, Poland Follow subsidisy a 08
Fastsil 2744 1049 46
(i) Cagpital creditors
Temmzn Aulomimice Europe BY | Belginm (formery, Tonmeos Antomesive Ermepe s
BN, Beliumg Fellow sutmilizmy E LED
Advanced Suspension Technalogy LLA | firmerdy, Dol Asceroine Inc ) Felbow submidiary - 04T
Temneco Autnmoliye Basigrn Eurogs Sp 2. 0.0, Fellw sibsidiory = LE}
| Listal - p |
i} Fayables to relsied partie
Temtaco Clean Al b Limiiod {formery Knoen s Temteon Clean Adr India Fels il an
Provale Limised | e
“Lutal = T
div ) Trade receivahles
Temnseo LLC . USA (limecsly, Tereeon bac,, USA) Intenmediaty Bolding vompany 1146 sy
Temmen Awinmirive Oporating Company LLC (fomedy, Tenneos Aagomotive )
(Opeving gty ., L) lstemeesiane kaoldisg compeany (EE ] sy
| Advaniesd Sespension Technnlngy LLA | timmerty, Dol Asscsmtive Ing | Felmy sunsidine Al 291
Temeco Autmmnotiyve Eompe BV Bebglon (formerly, Tenmems Aakmegive Eirope
BB, Belglum) Fellow subailinry 1442 I8
Toeneen Ride Comtrol Seath Adricn (FTY ) Lad . Soeh Awa Fellow subaldisry 04 10%
Sdciroe Meexdos S5 18 . L BEC.V {femerly, Moopoe Mexico 540 Y, Medco) Fellow sihaidiney 187 07
;cdn:l,-hﬂupulull South Adrics (Proprictyd Linsited dhemaly, Palersd-Mopul of Felioi sibsidiney 50 .

Adnga)
[Driy Jajrm Lid | Fapan Fello shaidiney 21 42
Temaen Auimurive Bowal Lid, Bl Fellow subsidisny [ EE] T4
Fra: Rt 5 AL, Argenisg Fellow subsidinry e 1242
Temneco Autimmive Baviern Euripe sp Foo, Palad Felliww suhaidinry QLo fe
Toderal Mogul Gortee [nda Ll Felhow suhsidisny = e 33
Federal Mogil TPR Tndia Lad Fellow sibsiiliney - 16T
Feileral Mogul Hady sr.l Fellw srhsidinry - LR}
Federal-Mopul Matopams LLC, Smnhfichd. Maxchipes USA Fellow subaidisey - FE]
Feileral Mogul Mousrparis; Skokie, USA Fellww suibsidizry - (RS
Fealeral-Mopul Matorpars LLC Fellow subsidisny LIX 019
Iy Aulomecive lee Souihibeld, Michigss, USA Fellow subsidisy - nor
Ferleral-Mogul Mosomorns {Saingapons ) Pee Lid (formasly, Fidernil-Mogul Fellw mubsiilismy nel -
Metnzre belis Privase Limited, Indin Fallw sseachary 1 i
iEnm 25 hanch 2025) = as
Tuinl IT4EE 4L |
dvh Recovcrabie from rodated pariy
Fedderal-Mopnl ri= ¢ndin | Lasiol, India Fellivw subisidian £ 520 =
“Tastal IJI)_'.‘_I_; s
ivl) Loans in reluged pariles
.I-'ﬁlu'lI-Mn!ul Mﬂuﬂm Lemiigl, Linia Fellisw sulsiiliney - 2o (1
{Tetnl i 42008 |
il Lows allwaansr for grade receivahies:
Uniormedists bolding sompany’

Lusss allowance Fallim sabsidinry a2 12.1n
‘T inl 1.4z 12,10

Motw (i1 Lerss allomeance has been determaned by appiying cxpocted crodit kess modie]. Loss sllomanos has boen daommed on the estie made rocervahle Balimee Som relssed

PR
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Tenneeo Aubemetive Inidia Private Limided
Mates to the Cosselidstid Financial Sarements for the vear caded 31 March 2025
FO ety 0 & aniflione encom mhane dave, i lims kv e sl

M Reveiie felelod distloaics

a4 Bevenie from Conrsens wilh Cestomss

Incdinn Acoaniing Standard |15 Revermm fom Coatraces sath Custommens Ind AS 11570 evinbhishes o fmmeweek for detormimmg w boibser, bow moch sad when mwemse i wongnised ond requires

dharloaures aboul the rvrre, amee, beung anl sceramty of reveoues aml caeh foes ariseg oo sustomer amitace, Unider Ind A5 1 wvemoe iy neeegnised thrmgh

i1 Pdeniify ihe comfrecilad with cisiomer:

(i1 Nkamiiby separsie peetomsscs obligations inthe conirace

{1l Dremarmine the trmasciion poce;

{v i Albeaie the trareschion prce io B porfommsaoe chligalions. mil
v Bocognise meversr whom o perlommency ohligrim is stisfnf

b Dissggregats of feveniie

Fevame recognised mamby comprises of sale of prodocs which majoely compreses of shock obaervers and viher auio componones. Soi vat helow 52 dee disggregion of the Holding Cempanys revmm

from smiraces with Gusimmens

Far ehe year emded Pur thse venr enderd
Cachiiary 31 Madili 2025 31 NMareh 2004
Rrvenue from comirach with cuseamers
Rale ol products
Domsstie; L 064 39 17,16060
Expurs |55 83 IAY R
iteralliie stz L]l 5454
soh it overed wniler Tad A5 015 20, 7RI &1 LH 505
Paiiieilry Fut ehe year vade
31 Madili 2025
Revenne by thme
Rzvermar eroograssd ot pomi o hme ST 1B
Reveime eetoguiised uvet tine 246 14 1oL B35
Tidul 20.THL&L 1864505 |
© Contraci halaners
The flllowing e geovukes indmation ssout soeeivahles, conli et and o 5 Dt Luiie ot i h Cusioiner
Fut ehe year vadid For e vear esde]
b 11 SMareh 2014 A1 Mareh 2024
Contract Babiisies
Addvatcei ol oS 483 450
Phefereed ineome Dneling coniracs ) 7253 BB
Seourity tepraits recomod Froms cusiman L (] Il
i sl L 1] ! gl - ALTE
T omir et linhiligies. 27T 2511
4 Trade receivahles
Thie flliving talsde provides infenaiion seoud secsivables lon comrun 'with cusnmens
Furi the yar i) Fui e viear dided
Farticulir
i 31 March ZN2E 31 Mareh 2824
Reteivahles
Traik recemahlos 321L61 250802
Lww 1 Allrmaaces for expeciod credi lose (Rl (L]
Lzza. trade oueivabies - ciodil imainzi ~ {031}
Nt reeely ahles 3191 82 TS50 |
" ileami i e & e st B hiligies fialliniis
Paiticuliry Ambdiad oy 47 30 Masreh 205
Cantrant Lishilivies
Canyidernitan payahle .
T cuslinmiEs | I::""'d Adds ances Tri castnes m';::"m.d:;:?m
distribiitaes | inlbeis
[hpening balances 527.73 Iz 4506 LTl
Mbditirs dunng e peer - (KRR ng2 LR+
Peve e recegrosed dimng the yasr! ameting refinded during the ywar - (LR (R {15k}
Al oo aovoiiil of diseontinin dpemns (el e 45 1527.73) - 112050 11762}
Clising balescy = 2ITET 4.53 370
Farticubars Amuni m 31 31 March 2lip4
Cantrart Lishililses
Uil s s
T Diferveil Securily depaclis veselved
b3 eastamors | ey Advances frim costmers s casknii o
disirituinrs | others
Chpenlng bulunce 146 7 101 51 803 154K
Akt dusing te pea ] LI T4A0 B0
Heveree reoopreaed diming the year amaue vefinded doeing the year (TGN E 441340y 123.37) |LE97H
Clusing halemce 4.7 i T4da (115}
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Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

(AN amownts in & millions, except share daia, unless otherwise stated)

39 Segment information

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Board of Directors being the Chiel operating decision maker of the Helding Company has
determined its only one business segment of manufacturing of auto components and hence there are no other identifiable reportable

Segments.

Further, during the current year the Holding Company has transferred Motocare India Private Limited ("Motocare') (erstwhile subsidiary)
o Federal-Mogul Motorparts India Limited pursuant to which Motocare ceased 1o be a subsidiary of the Holding Company and the same

15 disclosed as discontinued operations {refer note 45)

The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers. The following table shows the distribution

of the Holding Company’s sales by geographical market, regardless of where the poods were produced.

Geographical information in respect of revenue from customer is given below:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
India 19.224.79 17.208.70
Other countries 1.556.82 143035
20,781.61 18.645.05

Carrying amount of segment deblors by geographical market (net of provision)

Year ended

Year ended

Pitrtigalary 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
India 377189 2.605.80
Other countries 42093 260.16

3.192.82 2.865.96

The Holding Company has common assets for producing goods for India and outside countries. Hence,
assets/additions to property, plant and equipment cannot be furnished.

(This space hay been intentiomally left blank)
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Teneco Autonstive ladia Private Limited
Modes 1o the Consolldated Financial Statcments for the vear ended 31 March 2025
(A armounes i & millions, excepr shoare dote, sless asheridse stted)

Al Leases

(1) Asseis taken on lease
(i) Right-ol-use

Following are the changes in the careving value of right-of-use for the vear ended 31 Mareh 26215

[ Categury of ROU asset |

Farticulars Leasebild land Basklaings Vihicle Tatal

Goross carrying value

Asat 01 April 2023 156,00 AT 1595 44,92
Additiens/transfers - LLE 126 69,72
Dispn:u].x":\d)uilluuﬂh - (G |:I - f-M:l.ll]
As at 31 March 2024 1564 XIRA2 19.21 Sipdadd
Addations /transfers - 42346 184 44,10
[MaposaleAdyustments - 14758 RN (48,59
Im]"unll:um: on secouil of discontiied operatons (sefer note 455 = (173.407) = {173.07)
Asat 31 Moreh 2015 156,910 15003 20,04 12697
Accumulated depreciation

As af 01 April 2023 1242 198.51 1088 11201
[hepreciotion charge for the year® 1 .1+4 6721 Tdh L3
[rispioaale’ Adjusiments - 151983 - {S51.98)
Asat 31 March 2024 14.26 23 1134 241.34
Dezprectinion charge (o0 the year” 1.t LERY 158 wT.EE
Dispum]a-'ﬂ.ﬂjusmmmx - NT.SQJ (048} (4R.07)
IAdJu.luLI!u.'lll o aceounl of discontimued operntions (sefes note 45) - (RIS - {111.66)
As at 31 March 2025 15.%Hp 119.1% 15.41 150,49
Net carrying vilse

As ar 31 March 2024 142.04 114.58 587 1p3.0%9
As b 31 March 2025 L4 1AM lnAs ERE] 17648

* The ageregate depreciatton expense on tght-of-use asets s incloded wnder deprociation and amomezation expense in the swtement of profit and loss. Further, the
depreceation charge for the year includes depreciation expense of Motocone Indm Private Limited which isclassified as discontinued operation irefer note 45).

The following is the break-up of current and pin-current lease labilities for the vear ended

P i Anmuni ws a Amsuni o at
31 March 2025 31 March 2014
MNeom-current bease Habilities 14,28 T6.29
Current kease liabilities 21.52 £3.99
540 14028

The following is the movement in lease linbiities for the vear ended 31 March 2025

Atusunt s al

Fatiduee 31 March 2025
Agat U1 Apreil 2024 140,28
Addations 11
Fmance cost accrved during the vear® 12.29

Dezlatiens’ Adjustmetits {14t}

Payiment of lease liabilithes® {/7.03)
ir‘.d:u:llllnll o peeount of descontimued operatons inefos note 455 {T2.44)
35,80

The follawing is the movement in lease liahiities for the vear ended 31 March 2024

Aot a5 al

festina 31 March 2024
Asar 00 April 2023 L. T
Addations Bl T
Finanee cost acerued duting the yvear® 14.21
Delerions! Adjustnents (R.E4)

Payrent of ease labilities® (%1.65)
140.18

* Finausce cost acerucd during the yvear and paymeni of lease lobilities imcludes amount pertaining o Motocare Indiz Private Limited whach is classified as discontinsed
aperation (tefer note 45)

The tallde below provides details regarding the contractual naturities of lease labilities of non-cancellalile contractual ¢ htments as on an undiscounted basis.

Amwsant &g al Amsunt as a4t
Paxiicolars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Less than one year .02 450
e Lo Tive yedrs 1510 To.RD

More than fivie wars - -

The Holding Conpany dees not face o significant Bquidiny sk wath regard to Hs bease liabilities a5 the current assels ase sufficient 10 meet the obligations selated o lese
lrabilities as and wihin they all doe.



Temseeo Autommtive ladia Private Limited
MNodes to the O lidated Financial Stat ts Tor the year ended 31 March 1015

{Adl ermiounis dn & anillioes, excepl share doete, iiless atherwise sialedy

The following are the a ts recognised in profit or loss:

For the year coded Amount a5 @t
Farfimtars 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciution expense of right-of ude asses 1613 L83
[t expense on kease Habilities 4,24 446
Expense relating o short-lemn leases {Hcluded in other expenses) aihl &40
19.98 41.62
(Hy Lease relaied disclosures

{ap The Holding Company has leoses for [snd and buildings ond veliches. Each hase 15 reflected on the balaner sheet as 8 nght-of-use asset and o lease labadity. The
Holling Company classifies s nght-of-ude pssets ina consistent momner o s lad and buildings and velacles,

{18} Tzl cash autflow for beases for the vear ended 31 March 2025 was £ 34 2| mallions (previows year § 3540 millions ).

{ch The Holding Company has short teem bease nprecments mowhich there are no lock i periods: The disclosere requirement rebated o ttal commitment of shom term
leases 18 thus not appleable o the Holling Comgiasy.

() The weighted averape ncremental borrowing rate appled o discownt leage labilities s 1% poo 31 March 20242 100% pa)

(e} lnformatsen abodit extension sbd Ermmaien opHions

Right of se assets HNumber of Range of Average remaining [ Nomber of leases | Sumber of leases with] Number of lesses with
leases remaining term lease berm with extension option |  purchase ogtioa termimating option
Lamil 5 51 - 91 Yenrs) T years - - 5
Butldings 4 9-27 muoinths 18 nwnths - - 4
Velicles L5 - 53 aonihis 23 pwithis - - 15

{f) There are no leases widel are yet 10 commenes ks on 31 March 2025

A1 Contingent lubilities

Anmuni @y af Amsunt as at
Faztieutars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Clanms against the Company not acknow ledged as delis:
- Incoini 4% matters (1) a7 3044
- Exeise/ custoans matiers (1) 4817 144,87
- Babes i and Goods & service tax (GET) natvers (3) 40,54 0,99
- Eengloyee related mattess (4) 0.3 122
= Claims by lender agamst mterest o loan (5§ - L.31
= Claiers by vendor agamst goods supplied (5) - 034
= Ohers (5) - 3.0
G118 T44.57

{10 Do s related contingent labilites are prmarily comprising of corpistite 12 muate and also cengin ranslst prcing naners.

{11 Excise related marters are primarily related to valuation of excisable goods and customs related mamers are primarily related 10 demand of custom duty and interest for
the tme barved warehouse and non-fulfilment of exporn oblhgstion.

{3 sales wx and GST retated marters are prmanly related 10 suppressed wenover and GST credin availment.
{1 Emnplovee related contingent lizbilities are peimarily comprizing of miscomdset by employvess, long term absences and compensation matters.

{51 Claims by lender, vendos and other matters are prinsnby related to recovery of old dues and disputed matters.

11 b5 et practicable for the Holdimg Conpany to cstimate the twmngs of cash outflows, if any. in neepeet of tee above pending resolition of the respective proceedings.
The Hobding Company does pot expect any reimbursements o respect of the obove contingent habalises.

The Holfing Company e expraed o elaims amd legal aetons arising in the ordimary course of business. The Holdimg Company accrwes & lability when o loss is condidered
probablbe and the amoust can be reasonably estimated. 1o the opinion of Management. the owcome of any existing clauns and legal o regelatosy procesdings, if decsded
adversely, is oot expected 1o bayve a moterial sdverse effect om the Company's business financial condition and reswles of aperations bused on the curent position for ssch

claimslegal avlions.

{Thix space fes heen tnteriionally deft Altead )



Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
fAN amounts in € Millions, unless otherwise stared)

42 Capital commitments

. Amount as at Amount as at
Pactionlay 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Property, plant and equipment (net of advances paid) 46.58 6265

46.58 62.65

43 Earnings per Share

For the year ended For the yvear ended

Factiomliny 3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit for the year for basic/diluted earmings per share

- Continuing operations 7.606.71 914.77
- Discontinued operations 68117 67585
Total profit for the vear for basic/diluted earnings per share 8,287.88 1,590.62
MNumber of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 100,000 100,000
Less: Shares reduced during the period - -
No of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,060,000 1,00, 000
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS 100,000 1,00, 000
MNominal value of shares (T) 10 i
Earning per share - basic and diluted (%) for continuing operations T6,067.08 9.147.66
Earning per share - basic and diluted (%) for discontinued operations 6,811.67 6, 758.54
Earning per share - basic and diluted {¥) for continuing and discontinued operations §2,878.75 15,906.20

44 Transfer pricing

The Finance Act, 2001, has mtroduced, with effect from assessment year 2002-03 (effective April 2001), detailed Transfer Pricing regulations (the
regulations) for computing the mcome and expenditure from ‘mternational transactions’ between *associated enterprises’ on an “arm's length” basis.
The regulations, inter alia, also require the maintenance of prescribed documents and information, including furnishing a report from an Accountam
within the due date of filing the Return of Income. For the fiscal yvear ended 31 March 2024, the Group had undertaken a study to comply with the
regulations for which the prescribed certificate of the Accountant has been obtained and this did not envisage any tax liability,

For the fiscal vear ended 31 March 20235, the Group will carry out a simalar study to comply with the said regulations. In the opimion of Management,
no adjustments are expected to arise based on completion of this study.

{This xpace hay been intenfionally foft blank)



Tenneco Astomaotive [ndin Private Limited
Netes to the ComeBdated Financial S4atements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
Al amonniy e ¥ Milltons, unless otherwvene stated)

45 Discontinmed pperations

Drnng the yeor ended 11 March 2025, the Helding Comgpany has transferred g5 206,064,039 cguiy share in Motocore India Provate Limated ("Matocare') (ecstwhile subsidiacy) i
Fedemal-Moegul Motorparts India Limated (lellow subsidiang FMMEP®L for o consideration of 3 8,293 54 mallions. The tmosaction was completed on 24 March 2025 (Transaction
i}y, pursaant in which Motocare ceased 1o be @ subsidiary of the Holding Company. The gimn oo sale of subsidmry e the excess of consideratiom neceived over the carryng value
o' net issels of subsidary Le., amountiog te 26,738 48 miilion bas been recogrised in "Excepbiomal dem"”. FMME agreed b pay mierest @11 2% pes anonm compoanded anmually, on
the pustmding reeeivable to the Compmmy. The olal consideration, along wih the secrued imtenest, is 10 be paid by FMMP within twe vears Bom the tramsaction date, The sl
eonsideration = receivable as ot the balonce sheet date and disclosed under the head other non carrent fimancial nssets (Befer mote 6) along with the micrest aceroed on the receivable
froem the relutod party,

(ip St af profit soal loss of dise I i
Particulars Peried ended Year coaled
24 March 2015 31 March 2024
Revense
Eevenue fram operabions BEIZA1 T342.63
DOither income 204 3TE
Total imceme BA336 TA77.41
Expenses:
Coat of mw mmtenals consumed 4, 16T G A TE1 AL
Purchase of dock-mn-trxle 1091 68 211620
Champes in myvenlaries of fimshed goods, worksmeprigress and stock-mstrade {39223 LT
Emplaves henefits expense ARTIT 24273
Finunce cosl 16940 2047
Depreciation and amuerhzation expense R60 7549
Ohher axpenses T b IR6S5T
Toml expenses B 0ok 44 Bl T
Prafii before tus fnon discontineed operations ML a7
T expense an discantinued opermiions 24075 240 B6
Prafit after tux from dissostineed operations HELIT TEES
(Mher comprehensive incoms: from discontinued epembions i1.97 [EATH
Total comprehensive income from disconfivued operations GTH1S HTdAE
Enrnings per equity shure (for discontinsed operations )
Busmc EFS {3} B 6T £,75841
Erluted EPS (13 &R L6T B 75841

(i) Wet cash Oows attributable (o discostineed operations

PFarticulars Perivd cnaled Year eniled
24 Maurch 2025 31 Muarch 2024
Cash flows generated from apernting sctivibies 1X5.63 TdA 29
Cneh dlaws genembed fromfused in) myesting activities 320 {34700
Cash flows (imed in) fimancing activities [ {56570}
Mt cash Bows {used in)'generwted from discontinued eperations 172.51 145.8%

(Fi} Detuils ol corrving nmeund of wascts and labilities us on date of sale of sabsidiary (24 March 2035}

Particulars A al
24 Muareh 2115
Property, plam anid equipmend | 45413
Copilal Wark in Progress 443
Righi-oluse assets 624l
Intangible mums 07l
Intangible meete under developmeni 130
her non-currend anal current financial nssels 23.33
Dicterred tax assets (net) 21.5%
hber non-carrendt and currend assets 1559
Inventories | 38654
Trale recervables [,571.35
Cash anad cash equivalenis 43345
Laans 125400
Tutal nssets JHa2.35
Lease liabilitics 7144
Man-currend ond current provisians 1574
Trade paynhies L3070
(hher Aramcial Habilities 37851
iber currenid leabalzies 130340
Curnrent tao liabahities (et} 1056
Tutal linhilities 1.247.29
Mt mwsets 15550
{iv) Detnils of sule of idiary
Farticulars Amaunl
Consideminon recesved B 29154
Carryng amount of net assels derecngnesed as an 24 March 2025 (1,355 4K
Giuim ven ande of subsidiary [ekd 1]

(Thar space far boen aemisrnalle feft Mook



Tennevo Aniomadive Indin Private Limited

Soles i the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
() crmecarniy se & Millfonz, unlexs atherwine st

A6 Aabditional Disclosures
i) The Holding Company does nol own any smmovabbe property jother than properises whers the Company o the lessee and the lease agreements ane dily executed in fvour of the lessee).
B} There are mo proceedings mitated or pending aeamss the Growp for belding any benam property wider Uve Probdrion of Benann Propety Transactions Acl. VYRS snd rules mmde there under.
€} The Halding Compuny has nat revaloed s property, plant sl equipmed (iecludeng dght-of-use assels) or ntangable ssses or both during the yiear
iy The Holding Company hes been sanctioned o warking capaal il in exeess of s 5 crore by banks, Pursuant 1o the ienns of the saneten letiers, the Holding Comgiamy 12 non requered o (ke any guartedy return o sistement wath such banks.
¢} The Holding Compuny has not been declored o wilful defanlier by any bank or fmancial mstinaten or govermment or govermment authory.
1y The Holding Company does not have any matenal rmisactons with strock-olf companies.
g The Holding Company da nof buve any charges or satisfaction which & vl o be regasered with Registrars of Companes (ROC) beyond the statutiry petiod,
h) The Holding Company bas nof traded or arvested m Cryplo curmeney or virtual eurreney durmg the Snaneal vear.
i) The Holding Company lave med any such iransacton whech is not nécorded in the books of sceounts that has beon sumendered or disclosed as ancome durmg fbe year in the tax assessments unader te Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, search or survey o0 any other selevant provasions ef the Inceme Tax Act,
i1 The Holding Company hes not inken Loans or Advansces m the natuee of lean from any promoters, Directors, KMPs and thse related partees {43 per Companses Acr, 2003}, which are repavable on demand or withowt specifyang any tenms or period of repayments.
kp The Holding Company has ot granted Loang or Advancss i the nature of laan o any prsmetens, Directors and KMP% and the related parties {As per Companies Act, 2003}, which are repasable an demusd or without specifying any tenns or period of repaymenis.

1) The Holding Company hes complicd wiih the mumbir of e prescnbed under clase (877 of section 2 of the companies aet, 2003 rend with the companies {restrction on number of loversh rale, 2017

mj The Holding Company have nid slvanced ar looned or invested funds 10 any olther péraomis) or enityl e ), melading foredgn entities (Intennediaries) with the usderstanding thal the Intermediary shall:
11 directly o malarectly bend or mvest in other persons o enbiies ddeniified in any nanner whaisoever by or on behall of the company (Ulimaie Benelicaiesj or
12 provide any guoraniee, security or the like o or oo behalf of tle Ullimate Beneficiures.

1) The Holding Company havie ned receaved any lusd from any personi4) of eotiny es), dncludmg Toredgn entises (Fonting Pacty) with ithe understading (whether recorded showntmg or otlerwise b ihat the Congpany shall:
113 directly or madarectly bensd or mvest i other persons o entibes adentified 0 any nunner whatseever by or on behal o the Fundmg Party (Ubsmate Beseficimes) or
12y received amy pusranies, security or the like o or on behallol e Ulimate Beoefcries

o) s por the MOA ootfication daved (95 Auguse 2002, the Central Govermrent has notilied the Comganses ( Accounts ) Founth Amendment Rules, 20220 Ag pee the amended rubes; the Compaites are reguared v mainain back-op an daily basis of such beoks of acceunt and other relevam books and papers

mnartined i electronse mde that slwould be sceessible m hadis atall the tme Also, dbe Compamies sre reguared o create bockup of necounis on secvers playsically locoted m Endis on o dowly basis, The books of secomt along with otber rebevant reconds and papers of the Giroup are mamtatned in
ebeeiromse ol Thess are readily accessible m Dndon anall tases bowever backup s aol manntsined i i
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MNuotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in & Millions, unless otherwize stated)

47

48

49

50

51

Aundit Trail

The Ministry of Corporste Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso o Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by
the Companies { Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies which uses accounting software for maintining its books of accounts. shell use only such sccounting
soltware which has a feature of recording sudit trail of each and every transacoon, creatmg an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when
such changes were made and ensuning that the awdil trail cannot be disabled.

The Holding Company and its subsidisry use accounting softwarne to maintain their books of account. which has a feature of recording auwdit trail (edit log) facility and the same
have been enabled throughout the except for the following instances. Furthermore, the audit trutl has been preserved by the Holding Company and its subsidiary as per the
stetutory requirements for record retention where audit trail is ennbled.

1. In case of Holding Company - Audit truil feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting software 1o log any direct data changes, used for maintenance of books
of accounts. The audit trasl feature at the application level was enabled and operating throughout the year,

ii. In case of its subsidiary - Audit trail feature 4 not enabled for certain changes made wsing privileged/admmastrative sccess nghts, and the feature of reconding sudit trail (edit
log) facility was not enabled at the database level to log any direct dat changes

The Indian Parhament has approved the Code on Social Secunity, 2020 which could have a likely impact on the contributions made by the Holding Company towards Provident
Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Lubour and Emplovment has released dratt rules for the Code on Secial Security, 2020 on 13 November 2020 and has invited suggestons
from stakeholders which are under sctive consideration by the Ministry, The effective date from which the Code pnd applicable Rules shall be applicable 15 vet to be notified.
The Holding Compuny shall assess and evaluate the likely financial impact once the subject rules are notified and become etfective.

The Holding Company has received certain whistiehlower compluints during the current vear, including subsequent to the year end, alleging certmn financial irregulantics and
cthical concems. Based on the available mformation and facts, meluding preliminary assessment, management has not identified any matters that would require adjustments to
the amounts reported i these consolidated financial statements. Furthermore, management has engaged independent third-party forensic specialists to investigute the
whistleblower complamts received. As of the reporting date, investizations for certam complaints have been completed, and ne material financial impact has been identified.
Investigations into some matters are onpoing, and menagement remains confident that these moters are not expected 10 hove o matenal impact on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Consequently, no adjustments are required 1o be made to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
Mansgement will take appropriate actions based on the fnal findings of the mvestigations.

Previous year/period numbers have been regrouped! reclassified, wherever considered necessary,

Rounding off
Amounts mentioned as "0" i the finance! statements denote amounts rounded off bemg less than 1 mallion,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLF Fuor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Tenneco Automotive India Private Limited
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